
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF 

YPSILANTI BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

April 2, 2019 
 

Work Session – 5:00 p.m. 
Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center 

7200 S. Huron River Drive 
Ypsilanti, MI 48197 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 
MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 
TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 
 

                                 
 

WORK SESSION AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 
      

 
5:00pm 

 
CIVIC CENTER 
BOARD ROOM 

7200  HURON RIVER DRIVE 
 
 

 
 
 

1. DISCUSSION ON ATTENDANCE POLICY 
…………………..……………...................................................................TRUSTEE ELDRIDGE 

 
2. AGENDA REVIEW .............................................................................. SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
3. OTHER DISCUSSION   ............................................................................   BOARD MEMBERS 

 
 
 



 

 

Attendance Policy 



 

REVIEW AGENDA 
 

A. SUPERVISOR STUMBO WILL REVIEW BOARD 
MEETING AGENDA 



 

OTHER DISCUSSION 
 

A. BOARD MEMBERS HAVE THE OPPORTUNITY TO 
DISCUSS ANY OTHER PERTINENT ISSUES 



   Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
7200 S. HURON RIVER DRIVEYPSILANTI, MI 48197 

 
  SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO  CLERK KAREN LOVEJOY ROE  TREASURER LARRY DOE 

TRUSTEES: STAN ELDRIDGE  HEATHER JARRELL ROE  MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS  
JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

 

                                 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
       TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 

    7:00 P.M. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INVOCATION 

 
3. PROCLAMATION FOR LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL DIVISION 1 STATE BASKETBALL 

CHAMPIONSHIP 
 

4. PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. 7:00PM  - RESOLUTION 2019-14, CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #214 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 

 
B. 7:15PM – RESOLUTION 2019-15, CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #071 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 
 

C. 7:30PM – RESOLUTION 2019-16, CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #215 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC PONDS 

 
D. 7:45PM – RESOLUTION 2019-17, CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #072 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC PONDS 
 

E. 8:00PM – RESOLUTION 2019-18, CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #216 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINTS APARTMENTS 

 
F. 8:15PM – RESOLUTION 2019-19, CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 

ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #073 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINTS APARTMENTS 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

6. CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION AND MARCH 19, 2019 WORK 
SESSION AND REGULAR MEETING  
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR APRIL 2, 2019 IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$627,215.64 
 

7. ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 2 April 2, 2019 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. 2nd READING OF RESOLUTION 2019-07, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-485, AN
ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI CODE OF
ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 42-210 ENTITLED FIREWORKS
(1ST READING HELD AT THE MARCH 5, 2019 REGULAR MEETING)

2. 1ST READING OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484, AN ORDINANCE PROHIBITING
RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS WITHIN YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP AS
PROVIDED BY THE RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA BALLOT INITIATIVE 1 OF 2018
(TABLED AT THE FEBRUARY 5, 2019 REGULAR MEETING)

NEW BUSINESS 

1. 1ST READING OF RESOLUTION 2019-20, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484,
PROHIBITION OF RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA ESTABLISHMENTS

2. REQUEST TO APPOINT RYAN HUNTER TO THE ANN ARBOR AREA
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (AAATA) BOARD WITH TERM ENDING APRIL 30, 2024

3. RESOLUTION 2019-08, FEE SCHEDULE AND VALUATION DATA FOR BUILDING,
ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, SIGN AND BIKE PATH PERMITS

4. RESOLUTION 2019-13, PROFESSIONAL SERVICE FEES FOR TOWNSHIP, ATTORNEY,
PLANNER, ENGINEER AND FIRE DEPARTMENT

5. REQUEST TO APPROVE AGREEMENT WITH THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD
COMMISSION FOR THE INSTALLATION OF NINE (9) SPEED HUMPS ON EDISON AVE.
IN THE AMOUNT OF $61,950.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-446-000-818-022

6. BUDGET AMENDMENT #6

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

1. REQUEST OF SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO TO ACCEPT QUOTES FOR THE 
FOLLOWING EQUIPMENT

• TORO 5910 MOWER IN THE AMOUNT OF $111,739.20 TO BE BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-774-000-977-000 CONTINGENT UPON BUDGET AMENDMENT 
APPROVAL

• FORD F-550 WITH ARBORTECH 11’ CHIPPER BODY IN THE AMOUNT OF
$69,969.00 TO BE BUDGETED WITH 80% CHARGED TO LINE ITEM #101-774-

1-977-000 AND 20% TO LINE ITEM #226-226-000-977-000 CONTINGENT 
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT

• BOBCAT 36” TREE SPADE IN THE AMOUNT OF $9,866.64 TO BE BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #212-212-000-977-000 CONTINGENT UPON BUDGET 
AMENDMENT APPROVAL 



Ypsilanti Township Board Agenda Page 3  April 2, 2019 
  

   
    
   
 
 
 
 
  

 
2. REQUEST OF TRAVIS MCDUGALD, IS MANAGER TO ACCEPT THE FOLLOWING 

PROPOSALS: 
 

 REQUEST TO ACCEPT PROPOSAL FROM COMCAST FOR THE 
INSTALLATION OF ETHERNET NETWORK SERVICE BETWEEN NINE (9) 
TOWNSHIP LOCATIONS WITH INSTALLATION COSTS OF $40,930.00 AND 
MONTHLY COSTS OF $3,202.00 FOR SIXTY MONTHS (60) BUDGETED IN LINE 
ITEM #101-266-000-857-100 

 

 REQUEST TO ACCEPT PROPOSAL FROM ACD FOR INTERNET SERVICE AT 
THE CIVIC CENTER IN THE AMOUNT OF $699.95 FOR SIXTY (60) MONTHS 

 

 REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE LOW PROPOSAL FROM NEXT INTERNATIONAL 
FOR SERVER HARDWARE IN THE AMOUNT OF $61,600.00 BUDGETED IN 
LINE ITEM #101-266-000-977-000 

 

 REQUEST TO ACCEPT THE PROPOSAL FROM GRANITE 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FOR PLAIN OLD TELEPHONE SERVICE (POTS) IN 
THE AMOUNT OF $281.00 PER MONTH FOR TWELVE (12) MONTHS 

 
3. REQUEST OF TRAVIS MCDUGALD, IS MANAGER TO ORGANIZE A “CASH AND 

CARRY” EVENT TO DISPOSE OF RETIRED AND/OR OBSOLETE EQUIPMENT AND TO 
DISPOSE OF ANY UNSOLD ITEMS THROUGH RESPONSIBLE RECYCLING 

 
4.    REQUEST OF MIKE SARANEN TO SEEK QUOTES FOR NEW TRUCK FOR HYDRO 

STATION USE 
 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS  

    
  
  

 
 
 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Proclamation 
 

Honoring 
 2019 LINCOLN HIGH SCHOOL  

BOYS VARSITY BASKETBALL TEAM 
 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti wishes to recognize and congratulate the 
2019 Lincoln High School Boys Varsity Basketball Team on their outstanding, history 
making season; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Team’s hard work and dedication resulted in clinching the 2019 
Southeastern Conference White Division Championship, the 2019 Division 1 District 
Championship and for the first time in school history, this exceptional team became the 
2019 Division 1 Regional Champions and the MHSAA 2019 Division 1 State Champions; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, freshman, Emoni Bates was recognized as the 2019 Gatorade Player of the 
Year and the Associated Press Player of the Year and Jesse Davis, Lincoln High School 
Boys Varsity Basketball Head Coach was named Coach of the Year by Detroit News All-
State; and 
  
WHEREAS, Emoni Bates, Jalen Fisher and Amari Frye were recognized as the 2019 
Southeastern Conference All-Conference First-Team, Tahj Chatman and Trevon Davis 
were awarded the 2019 Southeastern Conference Honorable Mention, Trevon Davis 
received the 2019 Southeastern Conference Sportsmanship Award and Tahj Chatman, 
Ryan Barker, Cameron Johnson and Antone Swanson were recipients of the 2019 
Southeastern Conference Scholar-Athlete Award; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Detroit News All-State recognized Emoni Bates (Dream Team), Jalen 
Fisher (Division 1, Fourth Team), Tahj Chatman (Honorable Mention) and Amari Frye 
(Honorable Mention) and; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of 
Trustees would like to give a special recognition to Coach Jesse Davis for his role in 
leading the team to become the 2019 Division 1 State Champions. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
Board of Trustees on behalf of all our residents wishes to applaud the 2019 Lincoln High 
School Boys Varsity Basketball Team on their history making season. Go Lincoln 
Railsplitters!  
 
Dated and Signed This 2 Day of April, 2019    

   

 

 _______________________ 

__________________________ Stan Eldridge, Trustee 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor  
 
 _______________________ 
__________________________ Heather Jarrell Roe, Trustee 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk  

                                                                
_______________________ 

__________________________ Monica Ross Williams, Trustee 
Larry J. Doe, Treasurer  
 
 _______________________
 Jimmie Wilson, Jr., Trustee 

  



 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
 

 

 
 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-14 
 

CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  
#214 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees approved the Planned Development 
Agreement with Diverse Real Estate for Lakewood/Majestic Lakes, which requires 
the installation of a streetlight and camera at the entrance to the development. One 
streetlight will be constructed at the intersection of Tuttlehill Rd. and Fawn Dr. It is 
being requested of the Board of Trustees for the creation and establishment of 
special assessment district #214 for the purpose of defraying said cost of street 
lighting by special assessments against the property especially benefited; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk requested of Detroit Edison, proposed plans 
describing the street lighting improvement and the location of said improvements 
with an estimate of said costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 11, 2019 Brandon Faron of Detroit Edison Community 
Lighting Group prepared and submitted proposed plans to install street lighting for 
Lakewood/Majestic Lakes, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 197 parcels, which 
said plans included, inter alia, the installation of “one (1) new wood pole and one 
(1) Code 48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” with the cost of said 
improvements being approximately: 
 

Total Estimate Construction Cost: ..................................... $3,004.89 
Total Lamp Charge For Three (3) Years: ............................... $518.94 
Contribution (Cost minus 3 years revenue): ..................... $2,485.95 
Total Annual Lamp Charges: ............................................... $  172.98 

 
WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019 the Township Clerk received notification from 
the Township Assessor that the cost of providing a street light for Lakewood/ 
Majestic Lakes, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 197 parcels, which said plans 
included, inter alia, the installation of “one (1) new wood pole and one (1) Code 
48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” (construction costs of $2,485.95 for 
the installation will not be included in the special assessment district and has been 
paid by Diversified Real Estate) will be $.88 per parcel for a 3-year period; 
thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at $.88 per parcel for street lighting, 
reflective of the current rates set by DTE as well as current electrical usage for the 
year, 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has given notice to each record owner of or party 
in interest in property to be assessed, by first class mail, addressed to the record 
owner or party in interest at the address shown on the tax records, at least 10 (ten) 
days before the April 2, 2019 public hearing, setting forth the district affected in 
said petition, place and purpose of said public hearing to allow any interested 
person an opportunity to voice any objection which may be offered against creating 
said district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has also published in a newspaper of general 
circulation the time, place and purpose of said public hearing and the district 
affected thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2019, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti held a public 
hearing to hear any objections which may be offered against creating said special 
assessment district. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that special assessment district #214 be 
created for the purpose of providing one (1) streetlight for Lakewood/Majestic 
Lakes, consisting of 197 parcels. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board accepts the plans and 
estimate of costs as presented by Detroit Edison for Lakewood/Majestic Lakes, 
consisting of 197 parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, the installation of 
“one (1) new wood pole and one (1) Code 48 support arm with one (1) 135w 
Led light” (construction costs of $2,485.95 for the installation will not be included 
in the special assessment district and has been paid by Diverse Real Estate) will 
be $.88 per parcel for a 3-year period; thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at 
$.88 per parcel for street lighting, reflective of the current rates set by DTE as well 
as current electrical usage for the year, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Supervisor shall make a special 
assessment upon all the lands and premises contained herein to defray the 
expenses of lighting said streets. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall hereinafter annually 
determine on or before September 30 of each year, the amount to be assessed in 
said district for lighting said streets and shall direct the Township Assessor to levy 
such amounts therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that when the special assessment roll has been 
prepared and filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said assessment roll 
has been confirmed, the Township Board shall appoint a time and place when it 
will meet, review and hear any objections to the assessment roll. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall give notice of said 
hearing and filing of the assessment roll in the manner prescribed by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
March 11, 2019 
 
Name 
Address 
City, State Zip 
 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at Approximately 7:00pm for the Creation of 

Streetlight Special Assessment District #214 Lakewood/Majestic Lakes 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of streetlight special assessment district #214 Lakewood/Majestic Lakes for the installation of one (1) 
streetlight to be located at Tuttlehill Rd. and Fawn Dr. 
 
This will include your property located at:  property address 

             parcel              
              

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The Detroit Edison lamp layout for the proposed new streetlight is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the one (1) streetlight is $2,485.95 and is being paid for by the developer. DTE has 
fixed the annual lamp charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to $172.98. This cost is divided 
among the one hundred ninety seven (197) parcels and equals $.88 per parcel. After the third year, the costs 
will reflect the current rates set by DTE, as well as current electrical usage over the year.  
 
Total estimated annual costs for the additional streetlight would be $.88 per parcel, per year 
 
You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org. 
 
To Legally Protest the Streetlight Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk        Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
 
lrs 
 
cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION 2019-15 

CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  

#071 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 

WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Planned Development 

Agreement between Ypsilanti Township and Diverse Real Estate, the 

Township Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti proposes to install a 

security camera at the intersection of Tuttlehill Rd. and Fawn Dr.; and 

WHEREAS, Diverse Real Estate has paid for the purchase and 

installation of the security camera; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board proposes the creation of a special 

assessment district consisting of 197 parcels known as Lakewood/Majestic 

Lakes, which will be benefited to defray the operation and maintenance 

cost of the security cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has solicited Requests for Proposals 

for the proposed project describing the security camera improvements, the 

proposed location of said improvements and estimated costs; and 

WHEREAS, Conti Corporation, a video security company, licensed by 

the State of Michigan, prepared and submitted proposed plans to install, 

operate and maintain security cameras in public areas located within the 

boundaries of Lakewood and Majestic Ponds, which consists of 197 

parcels with the following estimated costs: 

          $4,908.09 

$6,900.72 

$     11.68 

•Costs for purchase and installation
of 1 security camera (paid for by
Diverse Real Estate):

•Total Annual Residents’ Cost for maintenance 
and operation of security cameras:
(First three years)

•Annual cost per parcel

•Monthly cost per parcel $         .97 



 
WHEREAS, the plans, estimates of cost and proposed special 

assessment district were filed with the Township Clerk for public 

examination and notice of the public hearing upon the same was published 

and mailed in accordance with the law and statute provided as shown by 

affidavits pertaining thereto on file with the Township Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid notices, a hearing was 

held on the 2nd day of April, 2019 commencing at approximately 7:15pm 

and all persons given the opportunity to be heard in the matter; and  

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the Township Board believes 

the project to be in the best interests of the Township and of the district 

proposed to be established therefore; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED as follows: 

1. That this Township Board does hereby approve the plans for 

public security cameras as prepared and presented by the 

Township’s licensed security system contractor and its 

annual estimate of costs for the operation and maintenance 

thereof. 

2. That this Township Board creates a special assessment 

district located within the boundaries of Lakewood/Majestic 

Lakes with the district to be known as Lakewood/Majestic 

Lakes Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District 

No. 071 within which the costs of the operation and 

maintenance of the security cameras shall be assessed 

according to benefits. 

3. That on the basis of the foregoing, this Township Board does 

hereby direct the Supervisor and Assessing Officer to make 

a special assessment roll in which shall be entered and 

described all the parcels of land to be assessed with the 

names of the respective owners thereof if known, and a total 

amount to be assessed against each parcel of land which 



amount shall be the relative portion of the whole sum to be 

levied against the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district as the benefit to the parcel of land bears to the total 

benefit to all the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district. When the same has been completed, the Supervisor 

or Assessing Officer shall affix thereto her certificate stating 

that it was made pursuant to this resolution and that in 

making such assessment roll, she has, according to her best 

judgment, conformed in all respects to the directions 

contained in this resolution and the applicable state statutes. 

4. When the special assessment roll has been prepared and 

filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said 

assessment roll has been confirmed, the Township Board 

shall appoint a time and place when it will meet, review and 

hear any objections to the assessment roll.

5. If the special assessment roll is confirmed, the Township 

Board intends to hold a public hearing once each year in 

future years, on or before September 30, to reassess 

property in the special assessment district for the costs in 

the next year, and will provide notice of such hearing in 

such a manner as prescribed by law.

6. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 

conflict with the provisions of the within resolution be and the 

same are hereby rescinded. 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

March 11, 2019 

Name 
Address 
City, State Zip 

Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at Approximately 7:15pm for the Creation of 
Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #071 Lakewood/Majestic Lakes 

Dear Property Owners: 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #071 Lakewood/Majestic Lakes for the 
installation of one (1) camera at the intersection Tuttlehill and Fawn Dr.  

THE TOTAL COST PER HOUSEHOLD FOR THIS YEARLY ASSESSMENT WOULD BE $11.68 PER YEAR. 

This will include your property located at:   address 
parcel 

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 7:15pm in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 

The layout for the proposed cameras is located on the back of this letter. 

Installation charges for the one (1) camera is $4,908.09 and will be paid for by the Developer. Conti 
Corporation and Comcast have fixed the annual charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to 
$6,900.72. This cost is divided among the one hundred ninety seven (197) parcels and equals $11.68 per 
parcel, per year. After the third year, the costs will reflect the current rates set by Conti Corporation and 
Comcast.  

You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org. 

To Legally Protest the Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office at 734-484-4700. 

Sincerely, 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk    Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
klovejoyroe@ytown.org     lstanfield@ytown.org  

lrs 

cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org
mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-16 
 

CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  
#215 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC PONDS 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees approved the Planned Development 
Agreement with Diverse Real Estate for Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds, 
which requires the installation of a streetlight and camera at the entrance to the 
development. One streetlight will be constructed at the intersection of Textile Rd. 
and Huron River Lane. It is being requested of the Board of Trustees for the 
creation and establishment of special assessment district #215 for the purpose of 
defraying said cost of street lighting by special assessments against the property 
especially benefited; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk requested of Detroit Edison, proposed plans 
describing the street lighting improvement and the location of said improvements 
with an estimate of said costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 11, 2019 Brandon Faron of Detroit Edison Community 
Lighting Group prepared and submitted proposed plans to install street lighting for 
the Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 53 
parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, the installation of “one (1) new wood 
pole and one (1) Code 48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” with the 
cost of said improvements being approximately: 
 

Total Estimate Construction Cost: ..................................... $2,398.23 
Total Lamp Charge For Three (3) Years: ............................... $518.94 
Contribution (Cost minus 3 years revenue): ..................... $1,879.29 
Total Annual Lamp Charges: ............................................... $  172.98 

 
WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019 the Township Clerk received notification from 
the Township Assessor that the cost of providing a street light for Ponds at 
Lakewood and Majestic Ponds, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 53 parcels, which 
said plans included, inter alia, the installation “one (1) new wood pole and one 
(1) Code 48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” (construction costs of 
$1,879.29 for the installation will not be included in the special assessment district 
and has been paid by Diverse Real Estate) will be $3.26 per parcel for a 3-year 
period; thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at $3.26 per parcel for street 
lighting, reflective of the current rates set by DTE as well as current electrical usage 
for the year, 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has given notice to each record owner of or party 
in interest in property to be assessed, by first class mail, addressed to the record 
owner or party in interest at the address shown on the tax records, at least 10 (ten) 
days before the April 2, 2019 public hearing, setting forth the district affected in 
said petition, place and purpose of said public hearing to allow any interested 
person an opportunity to voice any objection which may be offered against creating 
said district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has also published in a newspaper of general 
circulation the time, place and purpose of said public hearing and the district 
affected thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2019, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti held a public 
hearing to hear any objections which may be offered against creating said special 
assessment district. 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that special assessment district #215 be 
created for the purpose of providing one (1) streetlight for Ponds at Lakewood and 
Majestic Ponds, consisting of 53 parcels. 



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board accepts the plans and 
estimate of costs as presented by Detroit Edison for Ponds at Lakewood and 
Majestic Ponds, consisting of 53 parcels, which said plans included, inter alia, the 
installation of “one (1) new wood pole and one (1) Code 48 support arm with 
one (1) 135w Led light” (construction costs of $1,879.29 for the installation will 
not be included in the special assessment district and has been paid by Diverse 
Real Estate) will be $3.26 per parcel for a 3-year period; thereafter, said costs shall 
be estimated at $3.26 per parcel for street lighting, reflective of the current rates 
set by DTE as well as current electrical usage for the year, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Supervisor shall make a special 
assessment upon all the lands and premises contained herein to defray the 
expenses of lighting said streets. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall hereinafter annually 
determine on or before September 30 of each year, the amount to be assessed in 
said district for lighting said streets and shall direct the Township Assessor to levy 
such amounts therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that when the special assessment roll has been 
prepared and filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said assessment roll 
has been confirmed, the Township Board shall appoint a time and place when it 
will meet, review and hear any objections to the assessment roll. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall give notice of said 
hearing and filing of the assessment roll in the manner prescribed by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
March 11, 2019 
 
Owner 
Address 
City, State Zip Code 
 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2018 at Approximately 7:30pm for the Creation of 

Streetlight Special Assessment District #215 Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of streetlight special assessment district #215 Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds for the 
installation of one (1) streetlight to be located at Textile Rd. and Huron River Lane. 
 
This will include your property located at:  Property Address 

             Parcel Number             
              

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 7:30p.m. in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The Detroit Edison lamp layout for the proposed new streetlight is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the one (1) streetlight is $1,879.29 and is being paid for by the developer. DTE has 
fixed the annual lamp charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to $172.98. This cost is divided 
among the fifty three (53) parcels and equals $3.26 per parcel, per year. After the third year, the costs will 
reflect the current rates set by DTE, as well as current electrical usage over the year.  
 
Total estimated annual costs for the additional streetlight would be $3.26 per parcel, per year 
 
You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org. 
 
To Legally Protest the Streetlight Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk        Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
 
lrs 
 
cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION 2019-17 

CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  

#072 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC PONDS 

WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Planned Development 

Agreement between Ypsilanti Township and Diverse Real Estate, the 

Township Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti proposes to install a 

security cameras at the intersection of Textile Rd. and Huron River Lane; 

and 

WHEREAS, Diverse Real Estate has paid for the purchase and 

installation of the security cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board proposes the creation of a special 

assessment district consisting of 53 parcels known as Ponds at Lakewood 

and Majestic Ponds, which will be benefited to defray the operation and 

maintenance cost of the security cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has solicited Requests for Proposals 

for the proposed project describing the security camera improvements, the 

proposed location of said improvements and estimated costs; and 

WHEREAS, Conti Corporation, a video security company, licensed by 

the State of Michigan, prepared and submitted proposed plans to install, 

operate and maintain security cameras in public areas located within the 

boundaries of Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds, which consists of 

53 parcels with the following estimated costs: 

          $4,908.09 

$6,900.72 

•Costs for purchase and installation
of 1 security camera (paid for by Lombardo 
Homes):

•Total Annual Residents’ Cost for maintenance 
and operation of security cameras:
(First three years)

•Annual cost per parcel $     43.40 



 Monthly cost per parcel     $       3.62 
 

 
WHEREAS, the plans, estimates of cost and proposed special 

assessment district were filed with the Township Clerk for public 

examination and notice of the public hearing upon the same was published 

and mailed in accordance with the law and statute provided as shown by 

affidavits pertaining thereto on file with the Township Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid notices, a hearing was 

held on the 2nd day of April, 2019 commencing at approximately 7:45pm 

and all persons given the opportunity to be heard in the matter; and  

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the Township Board believes 

the project to be in the best interests of the Township and of the district 

proposed to be established therefore; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED as follows: 

1. That this Township Board does hereby approve the plans for 

public security cameras as prepared and presented by the 

Township’s licensed security system contractor and its 

annual estimate of costs for the operation and maintenance 

thereof. 

2. That this Township Board creates a special assessment 

district located within the boundaries of Ponds at Lakewood 

and Majestic Ponds with the district to be known as Ponds 

at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds Neighborhood Camera 

Special Assessment District No. 072 within which the costs 

of the operation and maintenance of the security cameras 

shall be assessed according to benefits. 

3. That on the basis of the foregoing, this Township Board does 

hereby direct the Supervisor and Assessing Officer to make 

a special assessment roll in which shall be entered and 

described all the parcels of land to be assessed with the 

names of the respective owners thereof if known, and a total 



amount to be assessed against each parcel of land which 

amount shall be the relative portion of the whole sum to be 

levied against the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district as the benefit to the parcel of land bears to the total 

benefit to all the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district. When the same has been completed, the Supervisor 

or Assessing Officer shall affix thereto her certificate stating 

that it was made pursuant to this resolution and that in 

making such assessment roll, she has, according to her best 

judgment, conformed in all respects to the directions 

contained in this resolution and the applicable state statutes. 

4. When the special assessment roll has been prepared and 

filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said 

assessment roll has been confirmed, the Township Board 

shall appoint a time and place when it will meet, review and 

hear any objections to the assessment roll.

5. If the special assessment roll is confirmed, the Township 

Board intends to hold a public hearing once each year in 

future years, on or before September 30, to reassess 

property in the special assessment district for the costs in 

the next year, and will provide notice of such hearing in 

such a manner as prescribed by law.

6. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 

conflict with the provisions of the within resolution be and the 

same are hereby rescinded. 



 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
March 11, 2019 
 
Name 
Address 
City, State Zip 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at Approximately 7:45pm for the Creation of 

Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #072 Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #071 Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds 
for the installation of one (1) camera at the intersection Textile Rd. and Huron River Lane.  
 
THE TOTAL COST PER HOUSEHOLD FOR THIS YEARLY ASSESSMENT WOULD BE $43.40 PER YEAR. 

 
This will include your property located at:   address 

parcel 
                        

 
The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 7:45pm in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The layout for the proposed cameras is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the one (1) camera is $4,908.09 and will be paid for by the Developer. Conti 
Corporation and Comcast have fixed the annual charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to 
$6,900.72. This cost is divided among the fifty three (53) parcels and equals $43.40 per parcel, per year. After 
the third year, the costs will reflect the current rates set by Conti Corporation and Comcast.  
 
You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org.  
 
To Legally Protest the Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office at 734-484-4700. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk      Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
klovejoyroe@ytown.org      lstanfield@ytown.org  
 
lrs 
 
cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org
mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-18 
 

CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  
#216 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINT APARTMENTS 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board of Trustees approved the Planned Development 
Agreement with Nautica Point One LLC for Redwood/Nautica Point Apartments, 
which requires the installation of a streetlight and camera at the entrance to the 
development. One streetlight will be constructed at the intersection of Tuttlehill Rd. 
and White Wing Dr. It is being requested of the Board of Trustees for the creation 
and establishment of special assessment district #216 for the purpose of defraying 
said cost of street lighting by special assessments against the property especially 
benefited; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk requested of Detroit Edison, proposed plans 
describing the street lighting improvement and the location of said improvements 
with an estimate of said costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, on January 11, 2019 Brandon Faron of Detroit Edison Community 
Lighting Group prepared and submitted proposed plans to install street lighting for 
Redwood/Nautica Point Apartments, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 1 parcel, 
which said plans included, inter alia, the installation of “two (2) new wood poles 
with one (1) Code 48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” with the cost of 
said improvements being approximately: 
 

Total Estimate Construction Cost: ..................................... $3,493.84 
Total Lamp Charge For Three (3) Years: ............................... $518.94 
Contribution (Cost minus 3 years revenue): ..................... $2,974.90 
Total Annual Lamp Charges: ............................................... $  172.98 

 
WHEREAS, on February 11, 2019 the Township Clerk received notification from 
the Township Assessor that the cost of providing a streetlight for Redwood/Nautica 
Point Apartments, Ypsilanti Township, consisting of 1 parcel, which said plans 
included, inter alia, the installation “two (2) new wood poles with one (1) Code 
48 support arm with one (1) 135w Led light” (construction costs of $2,974.90 for 
the installation will not be included in the special assessment district and has been 
paid by Nautica Point One LLC Homes) will be $172.98 per parcel for a 3-year 
period; thereafter, said costs shall be estimated at $172.98 per parcel for street 
lighting, reflective of the current rates set by DTE as well as current electrical usage 
for the year, 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has given notice to each record owner of or party 
in interest in property to be assessed, by first class mail, addressed to the record 
owner or party in interest at the address shown on the tax records, at least 10 (ten) 
days before the April 2, 2019 public hearing, setting forth the district affected in 
said petition, place and purpose of said public hearing to allow any interested 
person an opportunity to voice any objection which may be offered against creating 
said district; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has also published in a newspaper of general 
circulation the time, place and purpose of said public hearing and the district 
affected thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 2, 2019, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti held a public 
hearing to hear any objections which may be offered against creating said special 
assessment district. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that special assessment district #216 be 
created for the purpose of providing one (1) streetlight for Redwood/Nautica Point 
Apartments, consisting of 1 parcels. 
 



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board accepts the plans and 
estimate of costs as presented by Detroit Edison for Redwood/Nautica Point 
Apartments, consisting of 1 parcel, which said plans included, inter alia, the 
installation of “two (2) new wood poles and one (1) Code 48 support arm with 
one (1) 135w Led light” (construction costs of $2,974.90 for the installation will 
not be included in the special assessment district and has been paid by Nautica 
Point One LLC) will be $172.98 per parcel for a 3-year period; thereafter, said costs 
shall be estimated at $172.98 per parcel for street lighting, reflective of the current 
rates set by DTE as well as current electrical usage for the year, 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Supervisor shall make a special 
assessment upon all the lands and premises contained herein to defray the 
expenses of lighting said streets. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall hereinafter annually 
determine on or before September 30 of each year, the amount to be assessed in 
said district for lighting said streets and shall direct the Township Assessor to levy 
such amounts therein. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that when the special assessment roll has been 
prepared and filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said assessment roll 
has been confirmed, the Township Board shall appoint a time and place when it 
will meet, review and hear any objections to the assessment roll. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Township Board shall give notice of said 
hearing and filing of the assessment roll in the manner prescribed by statute. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 















 

 

 

 

Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
March 11, 2019 
 
Name 
Address 
City, State Zip 
 
 
Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at Approximately 8:00pm for the Creation of 

Streetlight Special Assessment District #216 Redwood/Nautica Pointe Apartments 
 
Dear Property Owners: 
 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of streetlight special assessment district #216 Redwood/Nautica Pointe Apartments for the installation 
of one (1) streetlight to be located at Tuttlehill Rd. and White Wing Dr. 
 
This will include your property located at:  property address 

             parcel              
              

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 8:00pm in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 
 
The Detroit Edison lamp layout for the proposed new streetlight is located on the back of this letter.  
 
Installation charges for the one (1) streetlight is $2,974.90 and is being paid for by the developer. DTE has 
fixed the annual lamp charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to $172.98. This cost will be paid for 
by the one (1) parcel and equals $172.98 per parcel. After the third year, the costs will reflect the current rates 
set by DTE, as well as current electrical usage over the year.  
 
Total estimated annual costs for the additional streetlight would be $172.98 per parcel, per year 
 
You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org. 
 
To Legally Protest the Streetlight Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 
 
If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk        Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
 
lrs 
 
cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

 
 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

RESOLUTION 2019-19 

CREATION OF NEIGHBORHOOD CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT  

#073 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINT APARTMENTS 

WHEREAS, as a requirement of the Planned Development 

Agreement between Ypsilanti Township and Nautica Point One LLC, the 

Township Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti proposes to install a 

security camera at the intersection of Tuttlehill Dr. and White Wing Dr; and 

WHEREAS, Nautica Point One LLC has paid for the purchase and 

installation of the security camera; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board proposes the creation of a special 

assessment district consisting of 1 parcel known as Redwood/Nautica 

Point Apartments, which will be benefited to defray the operation and 

maintenance cost of the security cameras; and 

WHEREAS, the Township Board has solicited Requests for Proposals 

for the proposed project describing the security camera improvements, the 

proposed location of said improvements and estimated costs; and 

WHEREAS, Conti Corporation, a video security company, licensed by 

the State of Michigan, prepared and submitted proposed plans to install, 

operate and maintain security cameras in public areas located within the 

boundaries of Redwood/Nautica Point Apartments, which consists of 1 

parcel with the following estimated costs: 

          $4,908.09 

$6,900.72 

$2,300.24 

•Costs for purchase and installation
of 1 security camera (paid for by Lombardo 
Homes):

•Total Annual Residents’ Cost for maintenance 
and operation of security cameras:
(First three years)

•Annual cost per parcel

•Monthly cost per parcel $   191.69 



WHEREAS, the plans, estimates of cost and proposed special 

assessment district were filed with the Township Clerk for public 

examination and notice of the public hearing upon the same was published 

and mailed in accordance with the law and statute provided as shown by 

affidavits pertaining thereto on file with the Township Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the aforesaid notices, a hearing was 

held on the 2nd day of April, 2019 commencing at approximately 8:15pm 

and all persons given the opportunity to be heard in the matter; and  

WHEREAS, as a result of the foregoing, the Township Board believes 

the project to be in the best interests of the Township and of the district 

proposed to be established therefore; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED as follows: 

1. That this Township Board does hereby approve the plans for

public security cameras as prepared and presented by the

Township’s licensed security system contractor and its

annual estimate of costs for the operation and maintenance

thereof.

2. That this Township Board creates a special assessment

district located within the boundaries of Redwood/Nautica

Point Apartments with the district to be known as

Redwood/Nautica Point Apartments Neighborhood Camera

Special Assessment District No. 073 within which the costs

of the operation and maintenance of the security cameras

shall be assessed according to benefits.

3. That on the basis of the foregoing, this Township Board does

hereby direct the Supervisor and Assessing Officer to make

a special assessment roll in which shall be entered and

described all the parcels of land to be assessed with the

names of the respective owners thereof if known, and a total

amount to be assessed against each parcel of land which



amount shall be the relative portion of the whole sum to be 

levied against the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district as the benefit to the parcel of land bears to the total 

benefit to all the parcels of land in the special assessment 

district. When the same has been completed, the Supervisor 

or Assessing Officer shall affix thereto her certificate stating 

that it was made pursuant to this resolution and that in 

making such assessment roll, she has, according to her best 

judgment, conformed in all respects to the directions 

contained in this resolution and the applicable state statutes. 

4. When the special assessment roll has been prepared and 

filed in the office of the Township Clerk, before said 

assessment roll has been confirmed, the Township Board 

shall appoint a time and place when it will meet, review and 

hear any objections to the assessment roll.

5. If the special assessment roll is confirmed, the Township 

Board intends to hold a public hearing once each year in 

future years, on or before September 30, to reassess 

property in the special assessment district for the costs in 

the next year, and will provide notice of such hearing in 

such a manner as prescribed by law.

6. That all resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 

conflict with the provisions of the within resolution be and the 

same are hereby rescinded. 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

March 11, 2019 

Name 
Address 
City, State Zip 

Re:   Public Hearing Scheduled for Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at Approximately 8:15pm for the Creation of 
Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #073 Redwood/Nautica Pointe Apartments 

Dear Property Owners: 

The Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees set a public hearing to consider the request for the 
creation of Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment District #073 Redwood/Nautica Pointe Apartments for 
the installation of one (1) camera at the intersection Tuttlehill Dr. and White Wing Dr.  

 THE TOTAL COST PER HOUSEHOLD FOR THIS YEARLY ASSESSMENT WOULD BE $2,300.24 PER 
YEAR. 

This will include your property located at:   address 
parcel 

The public hearing will be held on Tuesday, April 2, 2019 at approximately 8:15pm in the Civic Center 
Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti Township. 

The layout for the proposed cameras is located on the back of this letter. 

Installation charges for the one (1) camera is $4,908.09 and will be paid for by the Developer. Conti 
Corporation and Comcast have fixed the annual charges for the first three (3) years, per agreement to 
$6,900.72. This cost is divided among the one (1) parcel and equals $2,300.24 per year. After the third year, 
the costs will reflect the current rates set by Conti Corporation and Comcast.  

You are welcome to attend the meeting or you may send written comments of approval or objection in advance 
of the public hearing to the address listed above or by email to klovejoyroe@ytown.org or lstanfield@ytown.org. 

To Legally Protest the Neighborhood Camera Special Assessment: 
An owner or party in interest, or his or her agent, may appear in person at the hearing to protest the special 
assessment in person, or may file his or her appearance and protest by letter before the hearing, and in that 
event, personal appearance shall not be required. The owner or any person having an interest in the real 
property who protests in writing at or before the hearing may file a written appeal of the special assessment 
with the State Tax Tribunal within 30 days after the special assessment roll is confirmed. 

If you have any questions or need additional information, please feel free to contact my office at 734-484-4700. 

Sincerely, 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk    Lisa Stanfield, Deputy Clerk 
klovejoyroe@ytown.org     lstanfield@ytown.org  

lrs 

cc:  File 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 

HEATHER JARRELL ROE 

MONICA ROSS WILLIAMS 

JIMMIE WILSON, JR. 

Clerk’s Office 

7200 S. Huron River 
Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI  48197 
Phone:  (734) 484-4700 

Fax:  (734) 484-5156 

mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org
mailto:klovejoyroe@ytown.org
mailto:lstanfield@ytown.org


 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 

 



 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 

 

gSupervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk Lovejoy-Roe,  

                                        Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe, 
                                                          Monica Ross-Williams, and Jimmie Wilson, Jr. 
 

Members Absent: Treasurer Doe 

 

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 

 
1. DISCUSSION ON RUTHERFORD POOL BATHHOUSE DONATION 
                                                                           …………………..SUPERVISOR STUMBO 

 
Attorney Winters stated that the law states the Township cannot donate public 
funds without a contract that would give the Township control over how the 
funds are spent and to make sure the funds were being used for a public purpose. 
He said back in 2004 the Township donated $6,000.00 to Rutherford Pool for 
Operations and in return, the township would have a certain number of passes, 
there would be certain programming events at the pool and the Township would 
be able to utilize the city parks at no charge. He said if the Township decided 
tonight to help with the Rutherford Pool they have a guideline for what was done 
in 2004. Attorney Winters stated that it was important for children to learn how 
to swim since there was still a high number of child drownings. He said at this 
time he did not believe there was enough information to craft a contract but 
would encourage the board to discuss what was be needed to be in the contract 
that would benefit township residents. 
 
Trustee Wilson stated that he would like the Attorney to look into it further 
because he believed it would be a good partnership and he believed many 
township residents frequent the Rutherford Pool. He said it would also be good to 
show the township desires to work with other entities for good causes. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated it would be more convenient for our residents to use 
the Rutherford pool instead of traveling to Canton or Ann Arbor. She said she 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 

agrees with Trustee Wilson about collaborating with other municipalities for good 
causes. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she supports Rutherford Pool and she would suggest 
that included in the contract Township residents would have the same rates as 
City residents for swim lessons and entrance fees.  She stated that she knows the 
pool does special events and maybe one night could be a special Ypsilanti 
Township night to promote the pool for our residents. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated 
that in areas that are rural or have lower income residents, the children do not 
have the opportunity to learn to swim and she said as Attorney Winters has said 
there was a high rate of drownings among children. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that 
if Rutherford Pool would receive contributions of $50,000 by March 7, 2019 that 
would entitle them to a $50,000 match from MEDC. She asked Attorney Winters if 
the Board could approve to give them the funds now and make it subject to the 
approval of a contract.  She said she would like the board to notify Rutherford 
Pool what our contribution would be so they could meet the deadline made by 
MEDC. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the contract development should involve Angela Verges, 
Recreation Director. He said she could help with identifying what programs would 
be beneficial for our youth and seniors in Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated the YMCA is doing programming in apartment 
complexes. She said they were also teaching swimming to residents in the 
apartment complexes. She said she would like to know how to get scholarships 
for our residents at Rutherford pool. She said there was also transportation 
concerns to get our residents out so they could participate in these programs.  
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated that AAATA buses go to near the pool and to our 
Recreation Center on Clark Road. She said residents from Precinct 3 could walk to 
Rutherford Pool because it was very close. She stated that on their website for 
Rutherford Pool it does not appear to have different fees for non-city residents. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated that if we are going to offer these services to our 
residents it should be in our ytown recreation book. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 

Supervisor Stumbo stated that we would donate $5,000.00 contingent upon 
finalizing a contract.  She said that should be enough for them to get the 
$5,000.00 match from MEDC. 
 
Attorney Winters stated they would craft a contract after meeting with Attorney 
Angela King and Angela Verges. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she would send a letter that it was the intent of the 
Board to donate $5,000.00 contingent upon finalizing a contract with them. 
 

Michigan Department of Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant 

 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the Township Elected Officials along with Chris Nordstrom, 
Carlisle, Wortman & Associates met with Kirk Profit and he encouraged us to try 
for a MDNRTR Grant this year.  She said the deadline for filing for a Grant this year 
is April 1st, 2019. Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated the group decided to write a Grant for 
Loonfeather Point Park. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said the Park Commission approved the 
grant at the Park Commission Meeting last night. She said the Board is required to 
hold a Public Meeting for the grant and she said she was requesting that the 
Public Meeting be set for the March 19, 2019 Board Meeting if the Board agreed. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that if we did not get the Grant this year it would be 
submitted next year. 
 

Other Business 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe asked Trustee Eldridge if he wanted to add to the agenda and 
discuss his issue that he had wanted to discuss tonight that was not on the work 
session agenda because his information was not ready for the board packet. She 
asked since there was time did Trustee Eldridge wanted to discuss it, if the board 
agreed.   
 
Trustee Eldridge stated he would discuss it at the next board meeting. He said he 
had wanted to discuss something with seven board members but was not aware 
that the deadlines had changed regarding items for the agenda. He said he asked 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 

the Deputy Clerk before tonight’s meeting if the notices had gone out to the 
Trustees and he was told they had not regarding changes to the board deadlines. 
He said now there was a second item to discuss, which rules does the Board 
govern from because he said the only ones he found were rules adopted by the 
board that were 40 years old. He said our deadlines for submitting material for 
board meetings, in the current rules, are different from the ones that were 
changed in an email. He asked which ones should take precedent, the one that 
was voted on 40 years ago, or the one that was changed by a unilateral decision. 
He said he did not care which one the board decided to use but he said all board 
members needed to know so everyone would be on the same page. He said he 
would wait for the next board meeting for his issue. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said she would like the residents to have time before the 
meeting to review the packet and if having the deadline for the packet would give 
the board and residents time by Wednesday before the Tuesday board meeting 
that would be a good period.  
 
 

2. AGENDA REVIEW…………………………….…………………….SUPERVISOR STUMBO 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident stated she had researched on the web the 
communities that have recreational marijuana dispensaries. She said some have 
managed them very well and some have not. She feels that marijuana 
dispensaries would not be beneficial to Ypsilanti Township. 
 
Attorney Winters stated he was going to an MTA conference regarding rules and 
regulations on marijuana. He said he would attend the conference on April 1, 
2019 and get as much information as he can before presenting the resolution to 
the board at the April 16th board meeting.   
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated she appreciated all the hard work that has went into 
researching the legalization of marijuana in Ypsilanti Township. She said she 
believes all the issues that come before the board whether you are in favor of it 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 

or not should be given the value they deserve. Trustee Jarrell Roe stated she 
appreciated all that Attorney Winters had said but she suggested, if it was the will 
of the board, to go ahead tonight with our prior motion of opting out but still 
have a resolution presented at the April 16th board meeting. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said she wanted to wait. 
 
Attorney Winters stated that if the board went through with the prior motion 
tonight there would be no need for the resolution. He said the resolution was just 
to put the ordinance in the proper framework. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe stated she felt that the resolution would let our community 
members know that we are still learning about this issue and waiting for the State 
to give us direction on how this will look and we are not just throwing it away. She 
said its’ a hot topic in our community and she wanted the residents to know we 
are not ignoring it. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it was tabled for us to get together as a board. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated it was tabled until the board wanted to bring it back. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it was tabled until the board had time to discuss it. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe said yes it was tabled until we had time to learn more about it. 
She stated that Supervisor Stumbo said she was worried that LARA would act 
quickly and removing from table would resolve that concern. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the motion to table was to learn more. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe said we had more information and said she thought we could 
do a resolution later explaining purpose of opting out and plans for future. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said that it would not be good to remove from table and vote 
without notifying the public. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 

Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if there would be a public announcement regarding the 
resolution and ordinance on opting out of the marijuana businesses for the 
meeting in April. 
 
Attorney Winters clarified that he would be attending the conference on the new 
marijuana law on April 1st and the Resolution would be ready for the April 16th 
board meeting.  
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe said she would remove her request to act on the tabled 
motion and the opting out motion at the regular meeting tonight and wait until 
April.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said that she went to a conference at the Capital on this 
subject and she learned a lot.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 5, 2019 WORK SESSION, FEBRUARY 5, 2019 
WORK SESSION, FEBRUARY 19, 2019 WORK SESSION, CLOSED SESSION 
AND REGULAR MEETING 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she had shared some changes with Clerk Lovejoy Roe 
for the minutes.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she had made changes. 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
             

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 5, 2019 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $664,789.07 

 
ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

1. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 
 

Attorney Winters stated they are having their first negotiation meeting with the 
Firefighters tomorrow. He said all the contracts seem to expire on the same year 
and we would like to change that so we are not going through different contracts 
at the same time. 
 
Attorney Winters stated they would have the final review of the regional recycling 
authority agreement that would come back to the board at a board meeting. He 
said this newly developed authority would be more appreciated in the future.   
 
Attorney Winters stated they are dealing with some ongoing issues at the ACM 
site. He said there might be changes made regarding the transfer of authority 
between WRAD and ACM. He said if there were changes between WRAD and 
ACM the Township would be involved. Attorney Winters stated the Township has 
a development agreement with both WRAD and ACM and if there were a change 
in authority, the new agreement would have to be brought to the Township 
Board for their approval. He said the Township Board is a partner with this 
project. 
 
Attorney Winters stated the ACM Pilot payment for 2018 would be about 
$223,000.00. 
 
Attorney Winters stated we still have ongoing issues regarding neighborhood 
stabilization. He said Mike Radzik and his staff work very hard on issues of blight, 
drugs, and crime. 
 
Attorney Winters stated he has a meeting tomorrow with Pastor Ford of Greater 
Faith Transitional Church who had acquired Kaiser School.  He said he received an 
email today from their attorney who said they were no longer representing 
Greater Faith Transitional Church. Attorney Winters said he still plans on 
attending the meeting with Pastor Ford. He said one critical issue that must be 
dealt with is the fire suppression system in the sanctuary. He said that when the 
meeting was set up the general contractor, fire suppression contractor and others 
who would address the other violations would all attend. He said he does not 
know if those contractors will attend the meeting. Attorney Winters stated if 
Pastor Ford and the Greater Faith Transitional Church are not proceeding in a 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 8 
 

good faith timeline, we may request the board to address this at the April 2, 2019 
board meeting. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST OF FIRE DEPARTMENT CAPTAIN FRED ANSTEAD FOR YPSILANTI 
TOWNSHIP TO BECOME A MEMBER OF THE HOUSTON-GALVESTON AREA 
COUNCIL’S (H-GAC) COOPERATIVE PURCHASING PROGRAM KNOWN AS 
HGACBUY (TABLED AT THE FEBRUARY 19, 2019 REGULAR MEETING) 
 

Supervisor Stumbo stated this was tabled at the February 19th meeting because 
the board needed clarification of this program.  
 
Chief Copeland stated they are asking to join HGACBUY, which would allow the 
township to have pre-bid pricing. He said they could check different vendors for 
pricing and choose the best vendor. Chief Copeland stated they are asking the 
Board to consider joining this group. 
 
Trustee Jarrell Roe asked if all the vendors were from Texas. Chief Copeland 
stated it was a nationwide company and they have vendors all over the country.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that there would be a fee when you purchase 
something through this group.  
 
 Chief Copeland agreed that when you purchase through this group there would 
be a fee.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo questioned the fee being 1.5% of the total of every purchase 
order. 
 
Chief Copeland stated that if you purchased one fire truck the fee would be 
$2,000.00 but if you bought two fire trucks at one time the fee would still be 
$2,000.00. Chief Copeland said there is a fee when purchasing but there was no 
fee to join. He said you could still use other vendors and not purchase only 
through HGACBUY. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 9 
 

 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she would need clarification on HGACBUY 
purchasing program administrative fee schedule.  
 
Trustee Wilson stated the actual item on the agenda was whether to join 
HGACBUY purchasing program but it was not to purchase anything. He said the 
details for purchasing were not what we were addressing. Trustee Wilson said 
that before the Chief would purchase anything through this procedure it would 
have to be approved by the board. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated we would have to sign a contract and she asked 
Attorney Winters if he had reviewed the contract. 
 
Chief Copeland stated, again, that there was no cost to join or even to look for 
pricing through HGACBUY. He said this item on the agenda was only a request to 
join so they would have other avenues for pricing for purchases they may make in 
the future.   
 
Attorney Winters stated the Township has had for many years a financial policy as 
a guideline for handling purchases. He said it might be that we need to make 
revisions to our financial policy to include these new entities if they were in line 
with our policies.  
 
Chief Copeland stated that with this system, the pricing is already laid out and we 
would look at the items we want and see if the cost was a good price.  He said this 
was a tool to use to get a price but the board would decide if they would purchase 
the item. 
 
Trustee Eldridge asked Chief Copeland for verification that if we purchase from 
this group we pay a fee up to 1 ½% which was still lower than purchasing from 
somewhere else.  
 
Chief Copeland said yes. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 10 
 

 Trustee Eldridge asked that if we can see the pricing on line without joining why 
we would have to sign a contract. Trustee Eldridge said the way he understands 
the contract was that if we buy a fire truck from this group and it was approved, 
article 6 “Payments” in the contract states that we would have to pay the balance 
in full within 30 days of the invoice. He said he did not think we had ever done 
that. Trustee Eldridge stated since we know their price why couldn’t we buy it 
locally for the same price.  
 
Chief Copeland stated that he did not believe we would get a better price than 
with this group.  Chief Copeland stated this group also gives a prepaid discount. 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she has more questions than answers at this time. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that we usually do not finance our purchases. 
 
Trustee Eldridge said he would not want to move forward tonight with the 
questions that he feels need to be answered. 
 
Chief Copeland stated he guessed this would be tabled again. He said if it pleases 
the board he could back off from this entirely. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she understands the Chief discovered this tool from the 
City of Ann Arbor and maybe others in his area of expertise, which can be used to 
save money on purchases such as fire trucks. She said what you are asking for 
tonight was only approval to use the tool, you would come back to the board for 
approval to purchase from this group.  
 
Chief Copeland explained that he has a truck committee that has gone to various 
sites to put together packages on how to purchase the next two engines. He said 
because we have the new high-rise buildings coming into the township that it may 
be time to purchase ladder trucks. He said that when you look at pricing on the 
trucks, even with the millage, there would not be enough funds to do that. He 
said last year was the first year we had a balanced budget since he came to 
Ypsilanti. He said if you change brands of trucks, you change mechanics and he 
felt he would like to stay with the same brand to keep the same mechanics. Chief 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 11 
 

stated when he went out to the dealer, he suggested this group so we could save 
some money and he said if we only purchase one truck we may not save as much 
money but if we are purchasing multiple trucks we would save more. Chief 
Copeland said this is a good tool to use that but we do not have to use it. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo asked the board if their questions had been answered and 
they responded they had. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. REQUEST TO APPOINT BRAD CANNON TO THE YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
PARKS COMMISSION FOR THE TERM ENDING NOVEMBER 20, 2020 

 
Supervisor Stumbo introduced Brad Cannon to the board. 
 

2. 1ST READING OF RESOLUTION 2019-07, PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-485, 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
CODE OF ORDINANCES, CHAPTER 42-210 ENTITLED FIREWORKS 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this Ordinance would reduce the number of holidays 
for setting off legal fireworks and the State had gotten more restrictive. 

 
3. REQUEST OF MIKE RADZIK, OCS DIRECTOR FOR AUTHORIZATION TO SEEK 

LEGAL ACTION IF NECESSARY TO ABATE PUBLIC NUISANCE FOR 
PROPERTY LOCATED AT 1114 HUNTER AVE. IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$10,000.00 BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-801-023 

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated they did not comply so possible court action will make 
them comply. 

 
4. REQUEST FOR AUTHORIZATION OF PURCHASE AGREEMENT WITH DTE 

FOR THE INSTALLATION OF TWO (2) NEW WOOD POLES, TWO (2) 58w 
LED LEOTEK FIXTURES, ONE WITH A 6’ ARM AND ONE WITH 17’6” ARM 
TO BE LOCATED IN SUGARBROOK PARK IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,779.94 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 12 
 

TO BE BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-956-000-926-050 CONTINGENT 
UPON APPROVAL OF THE BUDGET AMENDMENT    

 
Supervisor Stumbo stated this request came from a meeting Habitat for Humanity 
had with Sugarbrook residents and the two lights would help in the park. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said the following items were to set Public Hearings.    
 

5. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 
APPROXIMATELY 7:00PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #214 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 

 
6. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:15 PM – CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #071 LAKEWOOD/MAJESTIC LAKES 

 
7. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:30PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #215 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC 
PONDS 

 
8. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 7:45PM – CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #072 PONDS AT LAKEWOOD AND MAJESTIC 
PONDS 

 
9. REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 AT 

APPROXIMATELY 8:00PM – CREATION OF STREETLIGHT SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #216 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINTS APARTMENTS 

 
10.  REQUEST TO SET A PUBLIC HEARING DATE OF TUESDAY, APRIL 2, 2019 

AT APPROXIMATELY 8:15PM – CREATION OF SECURITY CAMERA SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT #073 REDWOOD/NAUTICA POINTS APARTMENTS 

 
11.  BUDGET AMENDMENT #4 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 13 
 

Supervisor Stumbo stated the Budget Amendment was for the park lights and a 
PTO payout. 
 
AUTHORIZATION AND BIDS 
 

1. REQUEST OF SUPERVISOR BRENDA STUMBO TO SEEK QUOTES FOR THE 
FOLLOWING EQUIPMENT 

 TORO 5910 MOWER WITH 16’ CUT WITH ENCLOSED CAB 

 FORD F-550 XL C/C REG CAB, 4X2, 2 DOOR, DRW 

 PULL BEHIND GASOLINE POWERED 12” CAPACITY WOOD CHIPPER 

 BOBCAT 36” TREE SPADE 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said this was a recommendation from the men who run the 
Parks and the Mowing here at the Civic Center.  She said she had distributed 
pictures of each piece of equipment. She said this request was only for seeking 
quotes and then it would come back to the board.  
 
 OTHER DISCUSSION……………………………………………….BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said we would add the Public Hearing on March 19, 2019 for 
the Grant application under Other Business, all agreed.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated she had an announcement that the Census was hiring 
and it was on the Web.  She said the rate of pay starts at $15.00. 
 
Work Session ended at approximately 6:55 p.m. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 5:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. 
 

Members Present: Supervisor Stumbo and Clerk Lovejoy-Roe, Treasurer Doe 

                                        Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Monica Ross-Williams,  
                                                          Heather Jarrell Roe and Jimmie Wilson were late                                                      
 

Members Absent: none 

 

Legal Counsel:  Wm. Douglas Winters 

 
1. DISCUSSION OF ATTENDANCE POLICY…………………TRUSTEE ELDRIDGE 

 
Trustee Eldridge stated that a couple years ago they had changed the attendance 
policy for the Trustees. He said he initiated this again to see if there was a need to 
draft an Attendance Policy for the elected officials regarding attending meetings 
or their required work schedule. He said he was bringing this up again because 
residents and township employees had requested him to do so. He said if there 
was a will to move forward we would discuss it. Trustee Eldridge said that even if 
the township came up with a policy for the elected officials he said there would 
be no penalty if an elected official did follow it.  He said his suggestion would be if 
the board agreed there should be a policy and if an elected official violated it 
although their benefits could not be diminished the board could restrict them 
from receiving any pay raises that other board members earned. He said that the 
state law might be in contrast to MERS which states you need to work a number 
of days per month for so long before you are eligible for retirement. Trustee 
Eldridge stated he felt the board should discuss adopting a formal attendance 
requirement for elected officials. 
 
Treasurer Doe questioned the MERS requirement because in the auto industry an 
employee could be off at least 90 days and still be eligible for retirement. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 2 
 
 

Trustee Eldridge stated they had to work ten days per month for retirement. He 
said the residents’ expectations are the official would work 5 days a week, 8 hours 
a day just like the employees they supervise.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she would like to discuss it. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated she wasn’t opposed to having standards for everyone. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated if we mandate our employees should be here 8:30 a.m. to 
4:30 p.m. and we are supervising them, that’s when our elected officials should 
be at work. He said he understands that they are going to have time off but he 
said we need to get back to a standard work day and week. 
 
Treasurer Doe said he wondered if there was something they could put in that 
would have meat to it. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated that he guessed it depended on how much you want a pay 
raise at the end of the year. He said if one of the three decided to come to work 
they would get a raise that the other two wouldn’t receive. He said that was the 
only thing he could think of since there was not a state law that mandates it. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated it would be like a performance review. 
 
Denise Kirchoff, Township Resident, stated that she believes that if you are being 
paid you need to work 40 hours a week.  
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident stated she agreed there should be a policy 
for elected officials.  
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident believes that the whole board should be 
accountable not just the Trustees. 
 
Paul Noble, Township Resident was in agreement with a policy but suggested 
more flexibility since the officials have commitments such as board meetings that 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 3 
 
 

they were required to attend. He suggested core hours but they should be able to 
flex the time accordingly. 
 
Trustee Eldridge stated he handed out a proposed policy and asked the board to 
read it and make suggestions and changes. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated they should bring it back to discuss it at the next work 
session. 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe stated that the issue of flex hours was raised and said that both 
the Supervisor and Clerk positions require much more than 40 hours a week to do 
the work. She said she had served in both positions as Supervisor and Clerk.  She 
said both positions take 50-60 hours a week to fulfill the responsibilities of the 
positions and during elections the working hours per week are even more.  
 

2. DISCUSSION ON VIDEO RECORDING OF BOARD MEETINGS 
                                                                .……….…TRUSTEE ROSS-WILLIAMS 

 
Trustee Ross-Williams stated she appreciated the board putting the audio 
recording on the website for residents but she still believed having a video of 
board meetings would better serve the residents.  She said she, Clerk Lovejoy 
Roe, and Supervisor Stumbo had a meeting with Van Buren Township Cable 
Director, Ally McCracken, to discuss how the township provides live video 
recordings of their board meetings on youtube, on a cable access channel, and on 
the Van Buren website. She said that Ms. McCracken stated they had purchased 
professional equipment at a cost of $60,000.00. Trustee Ross-Williams stated 
when this was discussed in December 2017 the board decided since Ypsilanti 
Township did not have a cable access channel and the cost being $60,000.00 they 
would only proceed with the audio portion being available to our residents on our 
website. She said the board would possibly revisit the video portion in the future. 
She said Ypsilanti City provides audio and video of their meeting to residents 
without a cable access channel. Trustee Ross-Williams suggested a video camera 
be used to record all the board meetings with facebook with live streaming. She 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 4 
 
 

said it could go on youtube but Ypsilanti City streams it on facebook. She said the 
estimated cost to be able to provide this would be a lot less than $60,000.00.  
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that we would have to work with Travis from the 
Information Systems Department to come up with a solution.  She said there is a 
way to do it for less cost than originally proposed because other communities 
were doing it.  
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe shared that in the past Derrick Jackson had live streamed the 
board meetings with a camera or a phone on a tripod from the back of the board 
room. She said it would be great for our seniors that can’t get out and for our 
residents that are busy, and it provides transparency which she said was 
important. She also said that from our recent survey it showed that residents 
want more in the area of communication and information from the township.  
 
The board members agreed to move forward on some type of video recording of 
the board meetings.  
 
Denise Kirchoff, township resident, indicated that posting on Facebook Live 
generates a lot of viewers and shared the number of viewers that were on her 
current Facebook Live post. 
 
Trustee Ross Williams said that we could work with the township employee 
responsible for social media to assist.    
 

3. DISCUSSION ON UPDATING  BOARD RULES……...CLERK LOVEJOY ROE 
 

Clerk Lovejoy Roe explained the draft update of the board rules were in the 
packet that she had worked on.   Discussion was held and several suggestions 
were made.  Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she would incorporate the suggestions.  
Supervisor Stumbo said the Attorney should review the rules. 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she would send the updated rules to the Attorney for 
review before bringing back to the board for adoption.  
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 5 
 
 

  
4. AGENDA REVIEW………………….………….…..……….SUPERVISOR STUMBO 

 
A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 WORK SESSION AND REGULAR 

MEETING. 
Supervisor Stumbo shared her suggestions for changes for the March 5, 
2019 Work Session minutes. Clerk Lovejoy Roe said she would review 
the audio tape and update the minutes accordingly and the revised 
minutes would be brought back to the April 2, 2019 meeting for 
approval with the changes.  

 
B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 19, 2019 IN THE  

AMOUNT OF $1,220,926.90 
2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR FEBRUARY 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $54,761.49 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR JANUARY 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,124.50 

 
C. FEBRUARY 2019 TREASURER’S REPORT 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 
Attorney Winters updated the board on the progress with the contract with 
Rutherford Pool and Ypsilanti Township.  He also shared information on the 
productive meeting with Pastor Ford and his contractors about Kaiser 
School.  He said they have agreed to cooperate and meet the requirements 
for fire suppression. He informed the board that he was scheduled to meet 
with Nathan Voght from Washtenaw County to work on finalizing the last 
easement for the sidewalks on Washtenaw Ave. as a part of the Re-Imagine 
Washtenaw project.  He said they have a conference call scheduled with 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 6 
 
 

Camelot Apartments to try and finalize the last easement.  Attorney 
Winters reported they had another meeting set for Fire Fighter 
negotiations tomorrow. He said one of the more serious matters is 923 
Ecorse Rd., Forbes Cleaners which is a major concern for the township 
officials and residents because it is a contaminated site.  He said he had 
talked with Mary Miller, DEQ staff person assigned to the cleanup of this 
site. He said fencing was going to go up to prevent trespassing.  He said we 
still do not know the extent of the contamination and reported more 
testing was being conducted.  He said funding had been secured for part of 
the cleanup.  He said all hands were on deck to make sure DEQ does right 
by the township to make sure the area is properly remediated. 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. RESOLUTION 2019-09, WASHTENAW REGIONAL RESOURCE 
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (WRRMA)  

 
2. REQUEST APPROVAL OF YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ASSET MANAGEMENT 

PLAN FOR COUNTY DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AS PRESENTED BY THE 
WASHTENAW COUNTY WATER RESOURCE COMMISSIONER’S OFFICE 
DATED JANUARY 2019 
Supervisor Stumbo reminded the board that Evan Pratt, Washtenaw County 
Water Resource Commissioner and his office had presented this Asset Plan 
at a work session and were now requesting the township to adopt the plan. 
She said the township had spent some $160,000 this year on repairs and 
maintenance of drains.   She said the township did work on a road plan, on 
a water and sewer plan and now we needed to address our drains with a 
plan to handle the storm water. She said it would be necessary to come 
back with a budget amendment in the future and this request was to adopt 
the plan this evening.  
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 7 
 
 

A. 7:00 PM-RESOLUTION 2019-10, SUPPORT FOR ADMISSION OF MICHIGAN 
NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND APPLICATION FOR IMPROVEMENTS 
TO LOONFEATHER PARK 

 
Supervisor Stumbo reviewed the process completed by engineering staff to 
identify almost $600,000 of needs for renovating Loonfeather Point Park.  
She explained the grant would require a 50% match from the township if the 
grant was awarded. Supervisor Stumbo said the grant application included repairs 
to the shoreline and bank for soil erosion, rehabilitation of two pavilions, the 
bathrooms and the gate house.  She said that since the original grant to develop 
the park around 1986 there had not been any improvements to the park, except 
for the new playground structure.  She said the updates were needed and would 
benefit both the taxpayers and the residents who use the park. 
  
Clerk Lovejoy Roe thanked everyone who helped put the grant together in a very 
short timeframe.  She also said that letters of support for the grant and the park 
improvements were needed to file with the grant and asked individuals and 
organizations to submit letters as soon as possible.  
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said she would write a letter or support.  She said 
Loonfeather Point Park was one of our premier parks and she thought this would 
be a great addition to our park system.   

 
4. RESOLUTION 2019-11, AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCE 

COMMISSION TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND ASSESSMENT 
LIMIT OF FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER YEAR FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE OAKLAND ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
DRAIN 

5. RESOLUTION 2019-12, AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCE 
COMMISSIONER TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND 
ASSESSMENT LIMIT OF FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER 
YEAR FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE RECREATION PARK 
SUBDIVISION DRAIN 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 8 
 
 

6. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENT TO LAVERNE COURTNEY FOR HIS 
CONVEYANCE OF ANY INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY LEGALLY KNOWN AS 
RIVER GROVE TOWNHOMES PHASE II IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-969-010 
 
Attorney Winters said the property referred to as Rivergrove Townhomes 
has 17.19 acres and has 75 lots included in Phase II. He said the developer 
never developed Phase II and went through tax foreclosure. Attorney 
Winters reported that in 2014 Treasurer McClary Quit Claimed this 
property to Mr. Courtney and the terms of the Quit Claim deed, the 
Treasurer made with Mr. Courtney, said that if Mr. Courtney ever defaulted 
on the taxes the property would automatically revert to the township and 
Mr. Courtney would lose his interest in the property. He said this is 
something the township did not ask for but was something Treasurer 
McClary had the legal right to do.  Attorney Winters said the property was 
conveyed to the township on December 29, 2015.  He said developers were 
calling his office in regards to questions about when the township would be 
taking proposals on the property. He said the title company required the 
township to file a complaint to quiet title so the property could eventually 
be able to have a marketable title which is required to sell the property.  He 
said the payment to Mr. Courtney will finalize the process for a deed to the 
property.   
 

Supervisor Stumbo said there is also a grant possibility for connection to the 
bikepaths along this property line.  
 

7. REQUEST TO AMEND THE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
OHM FOR THE CIVIC CENTER AND COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF 
REPLACEMENT PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,450.00 TO BE BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-970-000-975-141 CONTINGENT UPON BUDGET 
AMENDMENT APPROVAL 
 

Supervisor Stumbo said this would allow this project to move forward to have this 
work finally completed.  



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 WORK SESSION 
PAGE 9 
 
 

 
  
8. REQUEST ADOPTION OF A PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL POLLINATOR 

WEEK JUNE 16-22, 2019 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said we do this each year as a requirement to remain as 
a Bee City.  

 
9. BUDGET AMENDMENT #5 

Supervisor Stumbo said this was for PTO payouts and professional services 
for the roof project.  

 
OTHER DISCUSSION……………………………………….…BOARD MEMBERS 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams said she wanted to highlight the Lincoln High School 
Men’s Basketball Team for their State Championship and said it was the 
first State Championship in the school’s history.  She also said Emoni Bates, 
Lincoln High School student and basketball player was awarded the 
Gatorade Player of the Year.  
 
Lt. Marocco gave a brief overview of the Washtenaw County Sheriff’s 
Department report for 2018. He said work was needed in the area of run- 
away’s in comparison with the rest of the State of Michigan. He said we will 
have the addition of three new psu’s this year which he said will help a lot.  
He said Ypsilanti Township operates around 42 officers. He said the 12 hour 
shifts were working well and that the team was working hard for the 
township.  
 

Work Session ended at approximately 6:43 PM. 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE TUESDAY, MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

Supervisor Stumbo called the meeting to order at approximately 7:00 p.m. in the 
Ypsilanti Township Civic Center Board Room, 7200 S. Huron River Drive, Ypsilanti 
Township. The Pledge of Allegiance was recited followed by a moment of silent 
prayer. 
 

Members Present:  Supervisor Brenda L. Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy Roe, 

                                         Treasurer Doe, Trustees: Stan Eldridge, Heather Jarrell Roe                                                                          
                                          Jimmie Wilson, Jr., and Monica Ross-Williams 
 

Members Absent:  none 

                    

Legal Counsel:   Wm. Douglas Winters 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

A. 7:00PM – RESOLUTION 2019-10, SUPPORT FOR ADMISSION OF MICHIGAN 
NATURAL RESOURCES TRUST FUND APPLICATION FOR IMPROVEMENTS TO 
LOONFEATHER PARK 

 
Supervisor Stumbo opened the Public Hearing at 7:01 PM. 
 
Chris Nordstrom, Carlisle Wortman Associates, explained the Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund Grant.  He stated it was a $296,500.00 grant, which was 50% 
of the total cost for the improvements proposed at Loonfeather Park. He said the 
improvements that were proposed would be rehabilitating the guardhouse, 
pavilions, bathrooms, and shoreline stabilization. Mr. Nordstrom stated the 
rehabilitation of the bathroom and sidewalks would be ADA compliant. He said the 
Grant Application requires three forms of ecological sensitive improvements. Mr. 
Nordstrom stated adding a rain garden, adding LED lights, and using sustainable 
resource material for all the improvements would accomplish the grant 
requirements. He said the application must be submitted by April 1, 2019. He said 
in early summer 2019 the DNR would give the communities who have gotten 
through the first step a chance to add supplemental material. He said if we get 
letters of support or had fundraising for the project, we could add that to our 
application. Mr. Nordstrom said that in December 2019 the DNR would announce 
the communities that have been recommended for approval. He said in March of 
2020 the State of Michigan would formally fund the grant for the designated 
communities. He said if Ypsilanti Township were awarded the grant, they would 
have two years to complete the project. Mr. Nordstrom stated this was a 
reimbursement grant, which meant the improvements would need to be made 
first, and then the township would be reimbursed from the DNR. He encouraged 
residents to write letters in support and send them to him and he would forward 
them to the DNR. 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident stated she was in support of the 
improvements for Loonfeather Park. She said she would reach out to the 
community to ask them to write letters of support. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 2 
 
Dennis Dickerson, Township Resident stated he was in support of the 
improvements for Loonfeather Park and would encourage his neighbors to write 
letters for this project. 
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident stated she was in support of the improvements for 
Loonfeather Park. She stated she lives near the park and she enjoys hearing the 
kids playing soccer and seeing others enjoying the park. 
 
Evan Pratt, Washtenaw County Resource Commissioners Office stated they would 
be writing a letter in support of this grant for Loonfeather Park. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo closed the Public Hearing a 7:07 PM. 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Resolution 2019-10, Support for Admission of Michigan Natural 
Resources Trust Fund Application for Improvements to Loonfeather Park (see 
attached). 
 
Clerk Lovejoy Roe thanked everyone for their help in getting this together so 
quickly. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo stated that when we acquired this property in 1986 many laws 
have changed. She said the soil erosion is a huge problem that would be addressed 
with this project. She said it was a great opportunity to bring the park up to todays’ 
standards. Supervisor Stumbo stated that the changes in the park would make 
them ADA compliant. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
JoAnn McCollum, Township Resident, thanked Supervisor Stumbo, Clerk Lovejoy 
Roe, and Trustee Ross-Williams for attending the West Willow traffic committee 
meeting.  She said she was against allowing marijuana dispensaries in Ypsilanti 
Township.  She said was substitute teaching in a local high school and two students 
in her classroom were smoking marijuana. She said that in another classroom she 
overheard a student telling a friend she went into a dispensary, purchased a 
marijuana brownie, and said she had a bad reaction to it. Ms. McCollum stated that 
she was concerned for the youth in Ypsilanti Township and she felt having the 
dispensaries in the township would not be a positive influence for them. 
 
Arloa Kaiser, Township Resident, stated she was against marijuana dispensaries in 
Ypsilanti Township. She said she attended the meeting regarding our roads and she 
stated there would be money for fixing the roads if the government did not spend 
all the money for roundabouts. She said she was against the gas tax increase that 
Governor Whitmer was proposing. She said the proposal was for the main roads in 
Michigan and not local roads. She said the Lt. Governor and MDOT representative 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 3 
 
talked in circles so they did not answer questions. Ms. Kaiser said these people 
were elected to take good care of us and not to line their pockets. 
 
Evelyn Epson, Township Resident, stated she disagreed with opting out of 
marijuana dispensaries. She said in Oregon the studies show that once marijuana 
was legalized the number of youth users and abusers decreased.  

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

A. MINUTES OF THE MARCH 5, 2019 REGULAR MEETING 
 

B. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS 
 

1. STATEMENTS AND CHECKS FOR MARCH 19, 2019 IN THE  

AMOUNT OF $1,220,926.90 

2. CHOICE HEALTH CARE DEDUCTIBLE ACH FOR FEBRUARY 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $54,761.49 

3. CHOICE HEALTH CARE ADMIN FEE FOR JANUARY 2019 IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $1,124.50 

 

C. FEBRUARY 2019 TREASURER’S REPORT 

A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Approve 
the Consent Agenda. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

ATTORNEY REPORT 
 

A. GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE  
 
Attorney Winters commented on the outstanding work that Chief Copeland and 
Fire Marshall, Dan Kimball did on the arson case. 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. RESOLUTION 2019-09, WASHTENAW REGIONAL RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
AUTHORITY (WRRMA)    

 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to 
Approve Resolution 2019-09, Washtenaw Regional Resource Management 
Authority (WRRMA) (see attached). 
 
Supervisor Stumbo questioned whether Recyclables should be stated in the first 
paragraph of the Resolution. 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 4 
 
Attorney Winters stated the Articles of Incorporation states the areas that it was 
going to concentrate on. He said it was motivated by the need for recyclables. He 
said all the communities were struggling with where the recyclables would go since  
China was no longer accepting them. 
 
Supervisor Stumbo said she and Trustee Eldridge have attended meetings 
regarding what to do with recyclables. She said communities have signed on to 
work collectively and communities can bid out garbage and may get a better rate. 
She said if gas goes up $.45 a gallon, we will have a higher expense then we 
expected. Supervisor Stumbo asked how many communities had to adopt this for it 
to move forward. 
 
Evan Pratt, Washtenaw County Resource Commissioner, stated only two 
communities were needed to move forward. He said Ypsilanti Township would be 
the fifth community to join. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

2.  REQUEST APPROVAL OF YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP ASSET MANAGEMENT PLAN 
FOR COUNTY DRAINAGE SYSTEMS AS PRESENTED BY THE WASHTENAW 
COUNTY WATER RESOURCE COMMISSIONER’S OFFICE DATED JANUARY 
2019 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Treasurer Doe to Approve 
Ypsilanti Township Asset Management Plan for County Drainage Systems as 
presented by the Washtenaw County Water Resource Commissioner’s Office 
Dated January 2019 (see attached). 
 
Trustee Ross-Williams asked about the drains by West Willow if that was part of 
Washtenaw County.   
 
Evan Pratt, Washtenaw County Resource Commissioner, stated that it will be a 
couple of years working with the Washtenaw County Roads deciding which drains 
belong to the road commission and which belong to them. He said they have told 
the road commission they would be happy to have everything turned over to them. 
He said they know Ypsilanti Township is supportive of what they do so they come 
out to the Township more frequently than they do in other communities. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

3. RESOLUTION 2019-11, AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCE COMMISSION 
TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND ASSESSMENT LIMIT OF 
FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER YEAR FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE OAKLAND ESTATES SUBDIVISION 
DRAIN 
 

A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Resolution 2019-11, Authorizing the Water Resource Commission to 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 5 
 
Exceed the Statutory Spending and Assessment Limit of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 
($15,000.00) Per Year for the Maintenance and Repair of the Oakland Estates 
Subdivision Drain (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

4. RESOLUTION 2019-12, AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCE 
COMMISSIONER TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND ASSESSMENT 
LIMIT OF FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER YEAR FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE RECREATION PARK SUBDIVISION 
DRAIN 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Eldridge, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Resolution 2019-12, Authorizing the Water Resource Commissioner to 
Exceed the Statutory Spending and Assessment Limit of Fifteen Thousand Dollars 
($15,000.00) Per Year for the Maintenance and Repair of the Recreation Park 
Subdivision Drain (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

5. REQUEST AUTHORIZATION OF PAYMENT TO LAVERNE COURTNEY FOR HIS 
CONVEYANCE OF ANY INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY LEGALLY KNOWN AS 
RIVER GROVE TOWNHOMES PHASE II IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,000.00 
BUDGETED IN LINE ITEM #101-950-000-969-010 

 
A motion was made by Trustee Wilson, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve the Authorization of Payment to Laverne Courtney for his Conveyance of 
any Interest in the Property Legally Known as River Grove Townhomes Phase II in 
the Amount of $4,000.00 Budgeted in Line Item #101-950-000-969-010. 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

6. REQUEST TO AMEND THE CONSTRUCTION SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
OHM FOR THE CIVIC CENTER AND COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF 
REPLACEMENT PROJECTS IN THE AMOUNT OF $8,450.00 TO BE BUDGETED 
IN LINE ITEM #101-970-000-975-141 CONTINGENT UPON BUDGET 
AMENDMENT APPROVAL 

 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Wilson to Approve 
Request to Amend the Construction Services Agreement with OHM for the Civic 
Center and Community Center Roof Replacement Projects in the Amount of 
$8,450.00 to be Budgeted in Line Item #101-970-000-975-141 Contingent Upon 
Budget Amendment Approval (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

7. REQUEST ADOPTION OF A PROCLAMATION FOR NATIONAL POLLINATOR 
WEEK JUNE 16-22, 2019 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
MINUTES OF THE MARCH 19, 2019 REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
PAGE 6 
 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Jarrell Roe to 
Approve Request Adoption of a Proclamation for National Pollinator Week June 
16-22, 2019 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 

8. BUDGET AMENDMENT #5 
 
A motion was made by Clerk Lovejoy Roe, supported by Trustee Ross-Williams to 
Approve Budget Amendment #5 (see attached). 
 
The motion carried unanimously. 
 
A motion was made by Treasurer Doe, supported by Trustee Eldridge to Adjourn. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at approximately 7:45PM. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor                  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti                  Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 

Resolution 2019-10 

Support for Admission of Michigan Natural Resources Trust Fund 
Application for Improvements to Loonfeather Park 

 

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti supports the submission of 
an application titled, “Loonfeather Point Park Improvements” to the Michigan 
Natural Resources Trust Fund for rehabilitation of two picnic pavilions, 
construction of new bathroom facilities, reconfiguration of existing pathways, 
construction of rain gardens, and stabilization of the western slopes at 
Loonfeather Point Park; and,  

WHEREAS, the proposed application is supported by the Township’s 5-
Year Approved Parks and Recreation Plan; and,  

WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti is hereby making a 
financial commitment to the project in the amount of $296,500 in matching funds, 
in cash and/or force account; and,  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti hereby authorizes submission of a Michigan Natural Resources Trust 
Fund Application for $296,500, and further resolves to make available a local 
match through financial commitment and donations of $296,500 (50%) of a total 
$593,000 project cost, during the 2020-2021 fiscal year.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2019-10 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on March 19, 2019. 

                                    

                                                                                    ___________________________________ 

                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  2019-09 
 

WASHTENAW REGIONAL RESOURCE  
MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY (WRRMA) 

 
WHEREAS, ACT 179 of 1947, being MCL 123.301 et. seq. (“Act”), 

enables the incorporation of any two (2) or more cities, villages, or townships, for 
the collective management of garbage and rubbish; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township has participated with other local 
municipalities in discussing and studying the establishment of an Authority under 
the Act, and  

 
WHEREAS, an authority under the Act is authorized by Articles of 

Incorporation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Act prescribes and details the process for incorporation 

as an authority under the Act; and 
 
WHEREAS, the benefits of an authority include consistency in materials 

management, consistency in citizen awareness programs, and beneficial 
contracting positions for area wide services; and  

 
WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township has reviewed the draft Articles of 

Incorporation for WRRMA and find the Articles to be acceptable and consistent 
with the law; and 

 
WHEREAS, Ypsilanti Township believes that becoming a member of 

WRRMA will benefit the community as a whole. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, Ypsilanti Township does hereby 

resolved to become a Constituent Member of WRRMA and instructs the 
Supervisor and Clerk to execute the required documents accordingly and further 
appoints Lisa Stanfield as the designated representative of Ypsilanti Township to 
WRRMA and Brenda Stumbo as the designated alternate representative to 
WRRMA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2019-09 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on March 19, 2019. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 
 



 

   

 

 

Washtenaw County  

Water Resources Commissioner’s Office 

 

 

Ypsilanti Township 

Asset Management Plan 

For County Drainage Systems 
 

 

 

Version 1.0 

January 2019 



2 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Document Control Asset Management Plan for County Drainage Systems                                   

Washtenaw County Green Storm water Infrastructure AMP 

Rev No Date Revision Details Author Reviewer Approver 

1 Jan 2019 First draft of an asset management plan for 
Ypsilanti Township  

SAM   

      

      

      

      

      

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 
1. INTRODUCTION .................................................................................................................................... 4 

Background .......................................................................................................................................... 4 
Goals and Objectives of Asset Ownership ........................................................................................... 7 

2. LEVELS OF SERVICE ............................................................................................................................... 7 
2.1 Expectations ................................................................................................................................ 7 
2.2 Strategic Goals ............................................................................................................................. 7 
2.3 Levels of Service .......................................................................................................................... 8 

3. LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT PLAN .......................................................................................................... 9 
3.1 Background Data ......................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Budget ......................................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Regular Maintenance................................................................................................................... 9 
3.2 Proactive Maintenance .............................................................................................................. 10 
3.5 Renewal/Replacement Plan....................................................................................................... 10 
3.6 Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan........................................................................................... 11 
3.7 Initial Inspection ........................................................................................................................ 11 

4. RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN ................................................................................................................. 12 
4.1 Critical Assets ............................................................................................................................. 12 
4.2 Risk Assessment ......................................................................................................................... 12 
4.3 Service and Risk Trade-Offs ....................................................................................................... 13 

5. PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING ......................................................................................... 14 
5.2 Monitoring and Review Procedures .......................................................................................... 14 
5.2 Performance Measures ............................................................................................................. 14 

6. SUMMARY .......................................................................................................................................... 15 
6.1 Next Steps .................................................................................................................................. 15 

7. APPENDICES ....................................................................................................................................... 16 
A Projected 10-year Capital Renewal and Replacement Works Program.......................................... 16 
B Ypsilanti Township County Drain Map ............................................................................................ 17 
C Reactive Maintenance Summary .................................................................................................... 18 
D Mowing Program Summary ............................................................................................................ 19 
E Vactor/Cleaning Summary .............................................................................................................. 20 
F Renewal Summary ........................................................................................................................... 21 
G Overall AM Summary ...................................................................................................................... 22 
H Resolutions ..................................................................................................................................... 23 

 

 



4 | P a g e  

 

   

 

INTRODUCTION 

Background 

The Michigan Drain Code of 1956, as amended, currently caps the allowable maintenance spending on county drains to 
$5,000 per mile. This equates to less than $1.00 per linear foot of drain and severely limits our office’s ability to inspect , 
remove sediment or woody vegetation, clear obstructions or catch structures, repair breakages, and generally maintain 
the drainage infrastructure. As such, our field operations primarily consists of reactively responding to service requests and 
keeping the drains operational. We would appreciate the opportunity to methodically continue renewing drains to their 
original condition, as they will all continue to deteriorate without taking proactive measures. In other parts of the County, 
this type of approach has dramatically reduced service calls by eliminating sediment and debris in or near the drain, and 
allowing a drain to move into our low-cost mowing program. 

The storm water infrastructure in Ypsilanti Township consists of 91 legally established county drains, two state regulated 
dams, three regional storm water basins, and various other appurtenances. In all, there are approximately 132 miles of 
drainage conveyances with a replacement value estimated at slightly under 43 million dollars. This plan recommends 
overall annual spending of $500-750 thousand, which is between one and two percent of the replacement value. Details 
and reasons supporting this recommendation will be provided in following sections within the report. 

  



5 | P a g e  

 

 

 

The infrastructure assets covered by this asset management plan are shown in Table 1. These assets are used to provide 
stormwater conveyance, agricultural drainage and nonpoint source pollution control. 

Table 1:  Assets covered by this Plan 

Drain Year 
Est. 

Linear 
Feet 

type Chp 
20? 

Replacement Value 

Amberly Grove 1999 12121 enclosed  $545,458.93 
Aspen Ridge 2003 6115 enclosed  $275,152.59 
Beyer Relief 1929 104513 enclosed yes $6,270,776.72 
Brock Tile 1912 6936 combination  $228,743.60 
Budd 1928 5088 enclosed  $228,974.85 
Clubview Estates 1993 3433 enclosed  $154,464.01 
Creekside Village East 2015 8763 enclosed  $394,349.33 
Creekside Village South  11648 enclosed  $524,158.86 
Creekside Village West  8328 enclosed  $374,740.00 
Deauville Parish 1980 6545 enclosed  $294,507.53 
Derbyshire 1919 9727 combination  $343,566.62 
Eaton 1871 1796 open  $26,932.89 
Ford Lake Hghts 1980 3522 enclosed   $158,505.39 
Ford Lake Hghts #4 1991 1110 enclosed  $49,933.72 
Ford Lake Hghts #5 1991 1699 enclosed  $76,455.86 
Ford Lake Hghts Sub #2 1990 2587 enclosed  $116,412.34 
Ford Lake Hghts Sub #3 1990 1681 enclosed  $75,653.19 
Ford Lake Village #1 1992 4364 enclosed  $196,401.80 
Ford Lake Village #2 1994 7409 enclosed  $333,425.63 
Gault Farms Sub 1960 10645 enclosed  $479,036.78 
Gault Village 1974 2064 enclosed yes $92,897.26 
Georgetown 1996 3922 enclosed  $176,485.33 
Golf Estates 1999 1925 enclosed  $86,634.74 
Gorton  1907 9930 open  $148,945.77 
Green Fields 2000 14513 enclosed  $653,091.64 
Greene Farms 1997 52330 enclosed  $2,354,871.09 
Hamilton Tile  11071 enclosed yes $664,261.17 
Huron Cnter Com & Ind Park 0 1455 enclosed  $65,487.10 
Huron Cnter Com & Off Park 1988 1778 enclosed  $80,027.32 
Huron Commons Condo  1025 enclosed  $46,115.49 
Jerome Street 1955 2577 enclosed  $115,970.93 
Laflin 1909 5753 open  $86,294.36 
Lakewood Farms 1997 2060 enclosed  $92,689.08 
Miller 1963 2373 open   $35,599.01 
Nancy Park #3 1955 2498 enclosed   $112,410.97 
N Br of Big Swan Creek IC 2017 13067 open  $196,002.69 
North Ford Lake CONSOL 1975 5239 enclosed yes $284,116.32 
Oakland Estates Sub 1977 12161 enclosed  $547,266.67 
Owen Relief 1964 580 enclosed    $26,088.13 
Packard Br of Paint Creek 1970 20 enclosed  $910.55 
Partridge Creek 1996 45177 enclosed   $2,027,832.21 
Pineview Golf Course Est 1990 191 enclosed   $8,586.56 
Pineview Golf Course Est #2 1995 517 enclosed   $23,286.03 
Pineview Golf North 1999 164 enclosed  $7,378.37 



6 | P a g e  

 

 

Pittsfield-Clubview 1978 496 enclosed  $22,328.46 
Rawsonville Road  2393 enclosed yes $143,581.68 
Raymond Meadows Site Condo 1998 5802 enclosed  $261,099.56 
Recreation Park Sub 1929 10944 enclosed   $492,457.98 
Shady Knolls 1955 6981 enclosed   $314,145.99 
Sines Extension  1922 2755 open   $41,318.44 
Smokler-Textile 1972 10750 enclosed   $483,758.48 
Spruce Falls Subdivision 1989 1933 enclosed  $87,000.80 
Streamwood #3 and #4 1993 7138 enclosed   $321,229.56 
Streamwood #5 1994 2714 enclosed  $122,152.15 
Streamwood #6 1994 4482 enclosed  $201,673.45 
Streamwood #7 1994 6299 enclosed  $283,459.50 
Streamwood #8 1995 5195 enclosed  $233,758.06 
Streamwood Sub 1992 6616 enclosed  $297,698.42 
Swan Creek & Pliney Harris 2017 2621 open   $39,307.58 
The Pines Sub 1961 6565 enclosed  $295,439.99 
Tremont Park Subdivision 2000 15714 enclosed   $707,134.04 
Tyler Dam Drain 2017 8752 open  $131,280 
Upper Paint Creek 1966 11147 combination yes $416,410.35 
Washtenaw-Clubview #1 1928 11793 enclosed   $530,668.30 
Washtenaw-Clubview #2 1928 7371 enclosed   $331,715.04 
W Branch of Paint Creek 1860 4110 open  $61,648.95 
Westlawn 1966 4399 enclosed yes $263,924.97 
Whispering Meadows 1999 16867 enclosed  $759,009.11 
Whittaker Village 2001 6540 enclosed   $294,314.99 
Whittaker-Textile 1977 2836 combination  $94,164.68 
Willow Run 1967 2838 combination yes $143,033.02 
Willow Run Ext 1 & Brnchs 1971 2295 enclosed yes $137,710.30 
Ypsilanti Twp #01 1965 3323 enclosed yes $199,385.11 
Ypsilanti Twp #02 1976 890 enclosed yes $53,388.93 
Ypsilanti Twp #03 1967 3583 enclosed yes $214,997.07 
Ypsilanti Twp #04 1965 11090 enclosed yes $665,373.40 
Ypsilanti Twp #05 1966 1089 enclosed yes $65,320.03 
Ypsilanti Twp #06 1966 3146 enclosed yes $188,746.17 
Ypsilanti Twp #07 1967 22661 enclosed yes $1,359,673.48 
Ypsilanti Twp #07 Ext 1970 3096 enclosed yes $185,773.59 
Ypsilanti Twp #08 1969 6629 enclosed yes $397,769.50 
Ypsilanti Twp #09 1969 3490 enclosed yes $209,415.04 
Ypsilanti Twp #09 Ext 1974 1316 enclosed yes $78,973.51 
Ypsilanti Twp #10 1969 2048 enclosed yes $122,901.02 
Ypsilanti Twp #11 1975 3724 enclosed yes $223,440.23 
Ypsilanti Twp #12 1970 2378 enclosed yes $142,673.44 
Ypsilanti Twp #13 1972 19700 enclosed yes $1,182,020.98 
Ypsilanti Twp #13 Ext 1971 8291 enclosed yes $497,469.32 
Ypsilanti Twp #14 1969 574 enclosed yes $34,434.65 
Ypsilanti Twp #01 Consol 1972 7432 enclosed yes $445,936.88 
Ypsilanti Twp #02 Consol 1974 2325 enclosed yes $139,490.14 
Beyer Dam 1939  dam  $4,625,000.00 
Tyler Dam   dam  $5,375,000.00 
TOTAL  132 miles  $42,999,505.77 

 



7 | P a g e  

 

 

Please note that drain values are approximate and would need to be analyzed on a drain-specific basis for more precise 
cost estimates. 

It is worth mentioning chapter 20 drain charges are the responsibility of the local municipality to pay in their entirety, while 
other drains are apportioned to local property owners/Washtenaw County/railroads in addition to the local municipality. 
In most of these cases, the local unit’s percentage averages between 5 and 30 percent. 

The network of county drain assets does not comprise all storm water runoff conveyance in the Township. There are rivers 
and streams, road culverts, ditches, and private drains that are not designated county drains. 

Goals and Objectives of Asset Ownership 
Our goal in managing infrastructure assets is to reduce reactive maintenance through proactive measures, thereby 
reducing overall costs for present and future consumers. The key elements of infrastructure asset management are: 

 Providing a defined level of service and monitoring performance, 

 Managing the impact of growth through demand management and infrastructure investment, 

 Taking a lifecycle approach to developing cost-effective management strategies for the long-term that meet the 
defined level of service, 

 Identifying, assessing and appropriately controlling risks, and  

 Linking to a long-term financial plan which identifies required, affordable expenditure and how it will be allocated. 

We would like to propose this plan act as the first step in an annual process where we work with you to identify and 
recommend improvements, making adjustments as necessary as the township gets feedback from the residents. 

LEVELS OF SERVICE 

Expectations 
This asset management plan is prepared to facilitate consultation prior to adoption by Ypsilanti Township and the Water 
Resources Office.  Future revisions of the asset management plan will incorporate community consultation on service levels 
and costs of providing the service. This will assist Washtenaw County, the Township Supervisor, and particularly the Board 
of Trustees in matching the level of service required, service risks and consequences with the community’s ability and 
willingness to pay for the service. 

Strategic Goals 
This asset management plan is prepared under the direction of the Washtenaw County Water Resources Commissioner’s 
vision, mission, goals and objectives. 

Our vision is: 

To efficiently address drainage and water quality needs of County residents and communities.  

Our mission is: 

To provide for the health, safety and welfare of Washtenaw County citizens and the protection of surface water and the 
environment and to promote the long term environmental and economic sustainability of Washtenaw County by providing 
storm water management, flood control, development review and water quality programs. 

 

  



8 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Relevant goals and objectives and how these are addressed in this asset management plan are: 

Table 2:  Goals and how these are addressed in this Plan 

Goal Objective How Goal and Objectives are addressed in AM Plan 

Maintain drainage 
network in a cost-
effective manner. 

Continue to transition from 
reactive service requests to 
proactive maintenance. 

Identifies drain segments that require proactive 
maintenance to reduce the likelihood of service requests 

Reduce 
downstream 
sedimentation 

Remove sediment from 
channels 

Identify brush and streambank/other erosion projects for 
open drains. Intercept solids upstream of piped systems 
(through post-construction controls, development 
regulations, and other govt. agency BMP’s) 

Correct drainage 
networks already in 
various states of 
failure 

Restore systems to working 
condition and prevent/reduce 
incidents of flooding 

Identify systems that need to be renewed or re-
constructed and prepare an estimate for initial costs 

Levels of Service 
Supporting the customer service levels are operational or technical measures of performance. These technical measures 
relate to the allocation of resources to service activities to best achieve the desired customer outcomes and demonstrate 
effective performance. 

Technical service measures are linked to the activities and annual budgets covering: 

 Operations – the regular activities to provide services (e.g. opening hours, cleansing, energy, inspections, etc.) 

 Maintenance – the activities necessary to retain an asset as near as practicable to an appropriate service condition. 
Maintenance activities enable an asset to provide service for its planned life (e.g. structure repairs, sediment 
removal, mowing, vactoring), 

 Renewal – the activities that return the service capability of an asset up to that which it had originally (e.g. road 
resurfacing and pavement reconstruction, pipeline replacement and building component replacement), 

 Upgrade/New – the activities to provide a higher level of service (e.g. adding drainage branches, replacing a 
pipeline with a larger size) or a new service that did not exist previously (e.g. a new drain). 

It is important to monitor the service levels provided through regular customer dialogue as these will change. The current 
performance is influences by work efficiencies and technology, and customer priorities will change over time. Review and 
establishment of the agreed position which achieves the best balance between service, risk and cost is essential. 

  



9 | P a g e  

 

 

LIFECYCLE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
The lifecycle management plan details how the WCWRC plans to manage and operate the assets at the agreed levels of 
service while managing life cycle costs. 

Background Data 
County drains in Ypsilanti Township were mostly established between 1900 and the 1950s. Some pre-date this range and 
were inherited from the original Township jurisdiction common in the 1800s. A few were established more recently in the 
past 50 years.  

Most importantly, drains have a wide range of easement access. Some drains have easements, others do not. Easement 
widths vary.  

Budget 
The chart below summarizes the proposed total Township budget for upcoming years, broken down into typical costs for 
the primary maintenance activity we normally perform as well as proposed activities. The chart includes sections outlining 
estimated regular (reactive) maintenance, preventative operations and maintenance activities, and proposed renewals. 
Please note, as a comparison, that the past four year overall average spending has been approximately $705,000 with the 
Ypsilanti Township share constituting approximately $323,000. 

Table 3:  Proposed Asset Management Plan 

Year Activity Total Cost Township share 

    
2019 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$415,000 $124,500 

 Proactive maintenance $89,750 $65,750 
 Renewals $222,500 $127,250 
 Initial inspection $31,500 $11,000 
  $758,750 $328,500 
    
2020 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$340,000 $102,000 

 Proactive maintenance $185,000 $128,500 
 Renewals $210,000 $207,500 
 Initial inspection $13,000 $11,500 
    
2021-2025 Regular maintenance (customer service 

requests) 
$325,000* $97,500* 

 Proactive maintenance $151,750** $47,250** 
 Renewals $925,000** $325,000** 
 Initial inspection $16,500** $6,500** 

*annual estimated costs 

 **total 4 year expenditures 

Regular Maintenance 
Reactive expenditures currently constitute the majority of our office’s efforts in Ypsilanti Township, consisting primarily of 
responding to service request calls. This category also includes post-storm event inspections in the urbanized areas of the 
township north of Ford Lake, where we maintain a large amount of infrastructure located within the public roadways. Many 
roadside inlet structures frequently need to be cleared of debris to allow for drainage, which our field operations performs 
on a seasonal or storm by storm basis depending on history. 



10 | P a g e  

 

 

Other reactive expenditures include instances where portions of the storm water management system fail and need 
immediate repair to make them operational again. This can include replacement of pipe sections in enclosed systems, and 
clearing/woody growth removal in the open channels. 

Without an investment in drain renewal or pro-active maintenance, evidence strongly suggests that reactive maintenance 
costs will escalate within the next 10 years. Pipe failures at the Huron Center Commercial & Office Park Drain (Eagle Crest 
property), flooding issues within the Streamwood development, continued response to concerns at Partridge Creek, and 
others are indicators of aging storm water systems that are beginning to fail. Shifting the focus to pro-active measures now 
should result in reduced costs in reactive maintenance in the future, more than off-setting the additional investment of 
funds in the near term. An added benefit will be the reduction in unexpected expenditures and aid in budget forecasting. 

Proactive Maintenance Plan 
Operations include regular activities to provide services such as public health, safety and amenity, e.g. mowing, light 
cleaning and removal of minor debris that blocks flow at culvert crossings and inlets, and mechanical flushing/cleaning of 
the pipe network.  

Maintenance includes all actions necessary for retaining an asset as near as practicable to an appropriate service condition 
including regular ongoing day-to-day work necessary to keep assets operating. The consequences of not performing 
recommended maintenance are a continuation of problems that are seen and heard about throughout the township for at 
least the past 20-30 years. There is additional risk of flooding along with continued standing water for longer periods of 
time, and the resident concerns such as mosquitos, loss of land use, impact to agriculture, etc. 

Renewal/Replacement Plan 
Renewal and replacement expenditures are major works which do not increase the asset’s design capacity but restores, 
rehabilitates, replaces or renews an existing asset to its original service potential.  Work over and above restoring an asset 
to original service potential is considered to be an upgrade/expansion or new work expenditure resulting in additional 
future operations and maintenance costs. 

Replacement, while not as preferable as ongoing maintenance, will lead to the drains having greatly reduced maintenance 
costs, generally just mowing or inlet and pipe cleaning.  
 
Further refinement of prioritization can be attained to develop more systematic schedules and budgets for renewals 
(brushing and ditching, plus sumps), after some analysis of the inspection point data. Scoring systems with one or more 
factors are common. For example, sediment depths along multiple open drain segments is one factor that yields a score 
for a length of drain. For funding purposes, it might be beneficial to make sediment the only factor for a sediment specific 
linear score so nonpoint source projects and sediment removal can be prioritized. Our office is currently working to develop 
a scoring system that will flag infrastructure needing a closer look for programming decisions. 

 
Summary of future renewal and replacement expenditure 

The projected capital renewal and replacement program is shown in more detail in the attached appendix. This includes 
which specific county drains would be scheduled for renewal along with approximate costs of doing so. These systems were 
chosen based upon the volume of service requests, age and condition of the drain, and the overall consequences should 
the drain experience a failure. For example, there may be systems in wooded environments that do not cause extreme 
property or structural damage should the drain overflow its banks, while others in residential neighborhoods may cause 
flooding for the travelling public or on personal property. 

It is assumed that open channels will not be replaced, and upgrades to capacity are not warranted due to downstream flow 
restrictions (road culverts) and a desire to improve infiltration hydrology, not capacity. It is further assumed that all the 
open channels are subject to renewal (brushing, ditching and sediment “dip outs”). 



11 | P a g e  

 

 

Creation/Acquisition/Upgrade Plan 
New works are those that create a new asset that did not previously exist, or works which will upgrade or improve an 
existing asset beyond its existing function or capacity.  They may result from growth, social or environmental needs.  Assets 
may also be acquired at no cost. 

While factored into the asset management plan, the creation of new infrastructure is not budgeted as currently the 
majority of new drains within the township are built and funded by private development. These include residential site 
condominiums and plats whereby the owner agrees to build the storm water management system for future inclusion into 
the county drainage network. However, every mile of new infrastructure increases long term maintenance needs. 

While other new drains may be created, such as the Tyler Dam Drain, there are no future anticipated projects to budget at 
this time. This may be adjusted, however, if future needs are determined through conversations with the township. 

Finally, the creation of new storm water management systems will necessitate adjustments to the preventative 
maintenance budget as those drains will also benefit from ongoing and periodic proactive work. 

Summary of asset expenditure requirements 

The financial projections from this asset plan are shown in the appendix for projected operating (operations and 
maintenance) and capital expenditure (renewal and upgrade/expansion/new assets).  Note that all costs are shown in real 
values. 

Ongoing operations and maintenance are generally within budget projections save minor growth over time in O&M 
compared to a flat budget. This represents a continuation of current O&M practices of both maintaining proactive and 
service request events within both the $5,000 per mile limit and continuation of established tolerance for at large and 
parcel assessments.  

Renewal projects would require petitioning or some other source of funding (e.g. grants) to complete. 

Initial Inspection Plan 
A portion of the Ypsilanti Township county drains have not been inspected, formally or informally, in a number of years. 
We proposed to use conditional assessment techniques to rate the present condition of these drains as a method to 
continually improve the action plan presented herein. 

Conditional assessment ratings can be used to determine a probability of failure for a drainage system, which can be of 
great assistance in determining future renewal priorities. Knowing a rough risk of a storm management failure, however, 
cannot be the sole deciding factor for a plan of action. In some cases (i.e. natural areas, open spaces, easily accessible 
infrastructure, etc.) a failing drain will not have as severe consequences to the surrounding property or structures. For 
example, the consequence of a deep, large diameter urbanized drain collapsing versus an open channel becoming blocked 
within a nature preserve would cause major financial and property damage. A good asset management plan takes both the 
condition of the drain along its potential consequences as a result of failure to prioritize work. 

Our inspection recommendations include evaluating the condition of some CMP (corrugated metal pipe) systems within 
the next 5 years. This is of note because several of the township’s CMP drains are close to or exceed 50 years in age, which 
correlates to the life expectancy of the pipes and failures related to extensive rusting (deformed/crushed sections where 
the pipe can no longer support the overlying soils, “blowholes” and blockages due to voids forming, or root intrusion into 
the lines). The outcome of these inspections may impact the asset management program by introducing additional 
renewals that would need to be prioritized within the overall plan. 

  



12 | P a g e  

 

 

 

RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN 
The purpose of infrastructure risk management is to document the results and recommendations resulting from the 
periodic identification, assessment and treatment of risks associated with providing services from infrastructure. 

The risk assessment process identifies credible risks, the likelihood of the risk event occurring, the consequences should 
the event occur, develops a risk rating, evaluates the risk and develops a risk treatment plan for non-acceptable risks. 

Critical Assets 
Critical assets are defined as those which have a high consequence of failure causing significant loss or reduction of 
service.  Similarly, critical failure modes are those which have the highest consequences. 

Critical assets have been identified and their typical failure mode and the impact on service delivery are as follows: 

Table 4 - Critical Assets 

Critical Asset(s) Failure Mode Impact 

Segments adjacent to 
actively farmed land 

Overflow and potential 
crop loss  

Reactive mode and 
overtime. Deferred 
response elsewhere 

Marginally operational tile 
in Agriculture areas 

Blocked, collapsed Inability to access during 
growing season 

End sections at road 
crossings 

Blockage, headwall and 
end section failure, 
erosion 

Costly repairs limit ability to 
perform other maintenance 
due to spending limits.  

Gravity main systems 
under or adjacent to 
roadways 

“Blow hole” pipe 
collapses, sink holes at 
catch structure inlets 

Potential structural damage 
to private property, 
restoration challenges 

 

By identifying critical assets and failure modes investigative activities, condition inspection programs, maintenance and 
capital expenditure plans can be targeted at the critical areas. 

Risk Assessment 
The risk management process used in this project is shown in the figure below. 

It is an analysis and problem solving technique designed to provide a logical process for the selection of treatment plans 
and management actions to protect the community against unacceptable risks. 

  



13 | P a g e  

 

 

 

Table 5 - Risk Management Process – Abridged 

 

 

The risk assessment process identifies credible risks, the likelihood of the risk event occurring, the consequences should 
the event occur, develops a risk rating, evaluates the risk and develops a risk treatment plan for non-acceptable risks. 

An assessment of risks associated with service delivery from infrastructure assets has identified the critical risks that will 
result in significant loss, ‘financial shock‘, or a reduction in service.   

Service and Risk Trade-Offs 
The decisions made in adopting this asset management plan are based on the objective to achieve the optimum benefits 
from the available resources. 

What we cannot do 

There are some operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that are unable to be undertaken within the 
next 10 years.  These include: 

 Stream bank stabilization to address morphological changes occurring. Watershed management planning and grant 
funding may improve abilities.  

 Maintainable sediment storage throughout the planning area. Needs dictate we find the most easily achievable 
locations now and identify future locations for discussion and development. This would be a separate planning and 
engineering analysis.  

  
Service trade-off 

Operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that cannot be undertaken will maintain or create service 
consequences for users.  These include: 

 Flow limitations 

 Increased sedimentation rates 

 Continued phosphorus and nonpoint source loading 
 
Risk trade-off 

The operations and maintenance activities and capital projects that cannot be undertaken may maintain or create risk 
consequences.  These include: 

 Larger reactive maintenance in the future 

 Inefficiencies in balancing reactive vs proactive maintenance 

 Future TMDL 

TREAT RISKS

- Identify options
- Assess options
- Treatment plans

ANALYSE & 

EVALUATE RISKS

- Consequences
- Likelihood 
- Level of Risk
- Evaluate

IDENTIFY RISKS

- What can happen ?
- When and why ?
- How and why ?



14 | P a g e  

 

 

 Flooding 

 Need for critical emergency response 

 Property damage 

 Road damage or accelerated failure 

 

PLAN IMPROVEMENT AND MONITORING 

Monitoring and Review Procedures 
This asset management plan will be reviewed during annual budget planning processes and amended to show any material 
changes in service levels and/or resources available to provide those services as a result of budget decisions.  

The AM Plan will be updated annually to ensure it represents the current service level, asset values, projected operations, 
maintenance, capital renewal and replacement, capital upgrade/new and asset disposal expenditures and  projected 
expenditure values incorporated into the long term financial plan. 

The AM Plan has a life of 4 years and is due for complete revision and updating within 2 years of each election cycle of the 
Ypsilanti Township board. 

Performance Measures 
The effectiveness of the asset management plan can be measured in the following ways: 

 The degree to which the required projected expenditures identified in this asset management plan are 
incorporated into the long term financial plan, 

 The degree to which 1-5 year detailed works programs, budgets, business plans and corporate structures take into 
account the ‘global’ works program trends provided by the asset management plan, 

 The degree to which the existing and projected service levels and service consequences (what we cannot do), risks 
and residual risks are incorporated into the Strategic Plan and associated plans. 

Key Assumptions made in AM Plan and Risks of Change 

 Open channel conveyance systems do not have a defined useful life. 

 Additions to the system would be limited or non-existent in the next 10 years.  

 The Township’s ability to absorb special assessments may limited by their annual budget. This would affect the 
number and size of projects undertaken under the plan 

 Some debt service, at least for the larger renewals, is likely needed to manage and optimize the risk-expenditure 
relationship. 

 Risk is associated with probability of failure (condition related to debris jams and log jams) and consequence of 
failure (proximity to cropland subject to loss).  

 

  



15 | P a g e  

 

 

SUMMARY 

Should you approve this initial pilot program, we would anticipate working with you over your  next budget cycle to provide 
a 5-year program proposal that would start showing a noticeable change in several parts of the Township in four ways. 

 Property being usable for more days of the year 

  A reduction in depth and frequency of standing water and related public health issues in those drains where 
maintenance is performed 

  Our drain clean out work will reduce the need for service calls in those areas, correspondingly reducing the 
Township’s risk of extensive service. 

 We would also anticipate a modest but noticeable improvement in property values over a 5-year timeframe of 
maintenance improvement (versus Band-Aids) as with any infrastructure that is visibly kept in good working order. 

As the Board can imagine, these programmed expenditures would be subject to unusual weather such as heavy rains.  As 
part of this arrangement, we would propose to check in with the Township on the actual expenditures before proceeding 
with larger proactive maintenance projects, again considering the flexibility of timing afforded by our differing budget 
cycles to stay within the total amount noted above. 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide what would be a high value improvement to residents at a modest cost.  As you 
are aware, property owners share in the costs of some special assessment work, and we have reviewed mock assessment 
rolls to ensure that there is no undue burden placed on property owners.  These appear to be reasonably affordable 
projects when the costs are shared.  The average one-time property owner share for clearing an open drain, for example, 
would be less than 10 dollars. Actual costs are correlated to acreage owned. In other communities we have found that 
property owners appreciate that the Township is also sharing in the cost, and as you may recall, the Road Commission and 
MDOT will contribute a share of the costs as well. 

Next Steps 
The following appendices contain specific action steps, some of which exceed the annual statutory spending limit of 
$5000 per mile of drain. A resolution from Ypsilanti Township (which our office can draft) to exceed this limit would be 
required in such instances to authorize the work to proceed. As the intent of this plan is to be a collaborate effort 
between our offices, we would be pleased to present the overall asset management plan at your next township board 
meeting and/or working session in order to refine the objectives to best serve the township’s priorities and budget. This 
interactive process may then defer or, in some cases, eliminate some items of work proposed while possibly providing 
new information to our office. 

  



16 | P a g e  

 

 

APPENDICES 
Appendix A Proposed budget recommendations by drain/activity 

 2019    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total 
cost 

Twp % 
 

Twp 
portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

Various Various $415,000 30* $124,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Willow Run Clearing open channel $14,750 85 $12,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Tyler Dam Clearing open channel $5,000 35 $1,750 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $15,000 43** $6,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township 
#1 

Cleaning/vactoring $20,000 80 $16,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Township 
#8 

Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 83 $29,000 

Initial inspection Budd Conditional assessment $9,500 35 $3,250 

Initial inspection Oakland Estates Sub Conditional assessment $22,000 35 $7,750 

Renewal Beyer Relief Catch structure 
rehabilitation 

$110,000 73 $80,250 

Renewal Recreation Park Sub Structures and sumps $97,500 35 $34,000 

Renewal Ypsilanti Township 
#1 Consol. 

Tree removal, root 
intrusions 

$15,000 86 $13,000 

   $758,750  $328,500 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
  



17 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 

2020    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total 
cost 

Twp % 
 

Twp 
Portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

 Various $340,000 30* $102,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Gorton Clearing open channel $42,500 35 $15,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Derbyshire Clearing open channel $6,000 35 $2,000 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $16,500 47** $7,750 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Twp #13 Cleaning/vactoring $85,000 90 $76,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Ypsilanti Twp #13 
Ext. 

Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 78 $27,250 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Twp #7 Ext. Conditional assessment $6,000 92 $5,500 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Twp #11 Conditional assessment $7,000 84 $6,000 

Renewal North Ford Lake 
Consol. 

Structures, eroded outfalls $195,000 100 $195,000 

Renewal Ypsilanti Twp #10 Structures and gravity 
main 

$15,000 78 $12,500 

   $748,000  $449,500 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
  



18 | P a g e  

 

 

 

 2021-2025    

Activity Name of Drain Work proposed Total cost Twp % 
 

Twp 
Portion 

      

Reactive 
maintenance 

 Various $325,000 30* $97,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

N. Br. Big Swan Creek 
IC 

Clearing open channel $22,500 5 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Brock Clearing open channel $3,750 35 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Eaton Clearing open channel $3,750 35 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Miller Clearing open channel $7,500 30 $2,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Sines Ext. Clearing open channel $3,250 34 $1,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Various Mowing program $21,000 40** $8,500 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Wash-Clubview #1 Cleaning/vactoring $55,000 35 $19,250 

Proactive 
maintenance 

Wash-Clubview #2 Cleaning/vactoring $35,000 35 $12,250 

Initial inspection Ypsilanti Township 
#14 

Conditional assessment $1,500 78 $1,250 

Initial inspection The Pines Sub Conditional assessment $15,000 35 $5,250 

Renewal Smokler-Textile Rear yard collection 
replacement 

$925,000 35 $325,000 

   $1,418,250  $476,250 

*Indicates an average apportionment of drains within Ypsilanti Township 
**Indicates an average apportionment of mowed drains within Ypsilanti Township 
 



® 0 3,2001,600
Feet

I²

!"̀$

!"̀$

?â I±

?â

?â I²

Laflin

G
orton

R
yan

Eaton

D
erbysh

ire

S
w

an
 C

reek &
 Plin

ey H
arris

N
orth

 B
ran

ch
 of B

ig S
w

an
 C

reek IC

Miller

W
illow Run

N
orth

B
ran

ch
o fB

ig
S w

a n
C

reek
IC

Y p s i la n t i T o w n s h ip # 0 7

U
p

p
er Paint C

reek

Ypsilanti 
Township #13

Extension

Ypsilanti Township
 #9 Ext

*

Recr
eation Park

Subdivisio
n

O
w

en

Budd

R
aw

son
ville

R
oad

Westlawn

Snidecar

*
Sand Creek

*
Silverleaf

Brock
Tile

*
Georgetown

Condominiums

*
G

reenfields

*
Aspen
Ridge

*
Greene Farms

*
Golf Estates

Beyer Relief

Shady
Knolls

*
Crystal 
Creek

*
Zeke Run Farm

Fairway 
Glens

*

Amberly
Grove

*

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Phase I

Gault
Village

Nancy Park #3

Je
ro

m
e 

S
tr

ee
t

*
Hickory Pointe

Carpenter Road

*
Bestech 
Center

Sm
okler-Textile

*
South Ford Lake

*
Branch of

Horner

*
Clubview
Estates

Deauville
Parish

W
hittaker-Textile

*
Whittaker

Village

Ford 
Lake

Heights

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip #14

Whispering
Meadows

Streamwood 

*
Willow Pond

Pittsfield-C
lu

bview

*
Arbor Meadows

Ford Lake
V

illage #1

Ford 
Lake

Village 
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #5

Ford 
Lake

Heights
#2

Ford Lake
Heights #3Ford 

Lake
Heights #4

*
The Pines

Subdivision

Washtenaw-
Clubview #2

Washtenaw-
Clubview #1

*
Huron Dam
Subdivision

Ypsilanti 
Tow

nsh
ip

#06

*
Meadowview 
Subdivision

Ypsilanti Township
#07 Extension

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 3

*
Creekside 

Village
West

*
Creekside

Village
East

Y p s i la n t i T o w n sh ip # 1 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#01

Ypsilanti 
Township

#05

Ypsilanti 
Township

#03

*
Creekside

Village
South

Gault Farms
Subdivision

*
Partridge Creek

*
R

aym
ond

M
eadow

s
Site C

on
do

*
Oakland
Estates

Subdivision

*
Ashford Village

Subdivision

*
Pineview Golf

Course Estates

*
Oak Park & Washtenaw Heights

*
Trem

ont Park 
Su

bdivision
 # 1

Ypsilanti 
Township

#04

*
Pineview Golf Course

Estates #2

*
Huron 
Center 

Commercial
& Office

*
Pineview 

Golf Course
Estates North

*
Huron Center Commercial

& Industrial

Spruce Falls 
Subdivision
& Extension

O
w

en
 R

elief

West 
Branch
of Owen

Ypsilanti 
Township

#12
Ypsilanti Township
#01 Consolidated

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02

N
ich

olls

Ypsilanti 
Township

#02 Consolidated
Owen Outlet

Willow Run 
Extension

*
Upper

Paint

Creek

U
pp

er
 P

ai
n

t 
C

re
ek

Owen 
Extension

Packard Branch 
of Paint Creek

University
Palisades

Ypsilanti 
Township #9

Ypsila
nti 

Tow
nsh

ip #1
0

*
Lincoln 

Pines
Ph II

*
Huron 

Commons

Michigan Ave.
East Central

*
Arborwoods III

Streamwood
3 & 4

St
re

am
w

oo
d

#5

Streamwood
#8

St
re

am
wo

od
#6

St
re

am
w

oo
d

# 
7

*
Lakewood Farms

*
Arbor 

Ridge II

Sines Extension

Ypsilanti Township #08

Hamilton
Tile

Huron
River

Huron River

Ford Lake

Huron
River

E Clark Rd
Clark Rd

W
hi

tta
k e

rR
d

E Cross St

N Huron St

Textile Rd

W
hittaker R

d

E Ellsworth Rd

Textile Rd

Textile Rd

S H
ew

itt R
d

Le
fo

rg
e

R
d

S 
H

ur
on

 S
t

S G
rove St

E
Hur

on
R

ive
r D

r

W
ia

rd
 R

d

R
id

ge
 R

d

R
aw

sonville R
d

S 
H

am
ilt

on
 S

tS Congress St

W
Mich

igan Ave

Ston
y C

ree
k R

d

G
ol

fs
id

e
R

d

Packard Rd

Grove Rd

E Huron River Dr

N
 P

ro
sp

ec
t S

t

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d
C

ar
pe

nt
er

 R
d

E Michigan Ave

S
H

ur
on

St

Holmes Rd

Tyler Rd

H
og

ba
ck

 R
d

C
ar

pe
nt

er
 R

d

Textile Rd
W

iard R
d

N
H

ew
it t

R
d

Holmes Rd

Su
pe

rio
r R

d

Ecorse Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

St
on

y 
Cr

ee
k 

Rd

W Clark Rd

Spinnaker Way

N
 N

orm
al St

L a
ke

D
r

G
lenw

ood Ave

Pa
rk

 E
st

at
es

 D
r

Lakeview Ave

S 
H

ar
ris

 R
d

Pearl St

O
w

en
da

le
 S

t

Grant St

N
Brookston

Dr

NAshford Way

Holmes Rd

H
itchingham

 R
d

Emmet St

Hickory Pointe Blvd

Cottonwood Dr

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

Hu
nt

C
lu

b
D

r

Colcheste r
Ln

M
un

ge
r R

d
M

un
ge

r R
d

Merritt Rd

S Huron River Dr

La goon Dr

H
om

es te ad

Rd

E Bemis Rd

Stamford Rd

C
ra

ne
R

d
Gregory St

El
m

 S
t

Stadium

V iew Dr

Wen
de

ll A
ve

Christina

Dr

D
or

se
t A

ve

Timothy Trl

Davis St

Stevens
Dr

Lakeshore
Blvd

ArborM
e ad ow

D
r

Ri
dg

ew
oo

d
D

r

M
cC

ar
tn

ey
Av

e

Kingwood St

First Ave

Railroad St

East w ood Ter

O
re

go
n 

St

N
 R

iv
er

 S
t

Airport Dr

Ed
is

on
 S

t

M
cAu ley

D
r

Green Rd

Valley Dr

Mott Rd

Pe
n

R
un

Ecorse Rd

H
ar

ry
 S

t

Woodruff Ln

H
ay

es
 S

t

RooseveltBlvd

Ai
rp

or
t I

nd
us

tri
al

D
r

Jones St

Tim

ber Ri d g
e

Dr

W
oodglen Ave

Towner St

Tyler Rd

Canyon Dr

B
oyne

Dr

W
oodview Rd

Bi
g

Pi
ne

D
r

R
aw

so
nv

ille
 R

d

Eu
ge

ne
 S

t

M
ap

le
vi

ew
Ln

Th
or

nh
ill 

Dr

D
ev

on
sh

ire
 S

t

M
aplelaw

n D
r

Russell St

Pi
tc

h
P i

ne

Ln W

Greene Farm Dr

E Clark Rd

S
M

ansfield
St

Be
rw

ic
k

D
r

O
na

nd
ag

a 
St

M
ichael Dr

Ce
nt

ur
y

Tr
l

Essex Dr

A
m

be
r

W

ay

R
ob

er
t

Cir

Swan LakeCir

S ilve rlea f
Dr

Fairhills D
r

King Richard

Collegewood St

Th
et

fo
rd

Ln

Cloverlane Dr

Sh
ar

e
Av

e

Joan Cir

N
as

h 
Av

e

Parkland Dr

Jac k
Pin e

D
r

H
aw

ks
 A

ve

Merritt Rd

Sunnydale Ave

Colony Way

Blue
Jay

D
r

Crys talC
ree k

D
r

Su
nr

ise
D

r

D
ev

on
St

Country View Dr

Huron River Dr

Ambassador
Dr

Da
wn

 A
ve

M
un

ge
r R

d

Po
pl

ar
 D

r

Bl
os

so

m
Hill Trl

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

Oakridge Dr

Sherman St

As
pe

n 
W

ay

Coolidge Rd

D
es

ot
o 

Av
e

N
M

or
le

y
D

r

S C
lubview

 St

Briarbrook Dr

Creekway

Ba
yb

er
ry

St

Maple StFa
irv

iew
C

ir

G
eo

rg
in

a
D

r

State St

N
ash Ave

C
re

ek
be

nd
Dr

Roxbury Dr

Dover Dr

C
he

rry
w

oo
dD

r

N
C

lu
b v

ie
w

St

Ba
lla

rd
 S

t

N
at

al
ie

 D
r

A
m

rhein
D

r

N
Adam

s
St

H
ul

l S
t

Nottingham Dr

Sm
ith

 S
t

Warwick Dr

Bay Tree Dr

Kirk Profit D
r

Shellbark Dr
N

 R
iv

er
 S

t

W
el

lin
gt

on
 L

n

Valley V iew
Dr

Mollie St Dorothy St

St
ep

he
ns

Dr

Pebbles to n e
Dr

E

lm
w

oo
d

D
r

Indigo Ln

N
ew

M
ea

do
w

Dr

Sh effie ld
D

r

Long Meado
w

Ln

Chevrolet St

Jo
yc

e 
Vi

ew
 D

r

Tyler Rd

Par
kw

oo
d Av

e

Joe Hall Dr

Willo
wbr

idg
eRd

Creekside
C

ir

Foley Ave

Evelyn Ave

Ruth Ave Mary Catherine St

George Ave

Oak StOak St

N
M

an
sf

ie
ld

S t

Conway Ave

Elliott Dr

Ha
m

let
Dr

Eastlawn St

Service Dr

Hunter Ave

O
sb

an
d 

St

C
ha

rle
s 

St
Thoroughbred

W
ay

International Dr

En
ch

a n
te

d
D

r

Midvale St

Juneau Rd

Lathers S
t

Andrea St

Paint Creek Dr

Russell St

H
ogan D

r

G
le n dale Dr

I94
 S

er
vic

e R
d

Cole
m

an
St

Le
st

er
 A

ve

James L Hart Pkwy

H
ol

lis
 A

ve

P
i n

ev
i e

w
D

r

Burns St

Pam
el a Dr

N
 P

ar
k 

St

Pearl St

Redleaf Ln

Tyler Rd

Lo
ri 

St

O
akw

ood St

Center Valley Dr

Davis St

Second Ave

G
re

en
si

de
 S

t

G
at

te
gn

o 
St

Monroe St

G
arland

St

R
osew

ood Ave

Lexington Pkwy

Rice St

Em
erick St

O
aklaw

n Ave

E F ores
t A

ve

Central Blvd

Tyrone
St

Br
ow

ni
ng

 S
t

R
am

bli
ng

Rd

Lake Crest Dr

Pinew
ood St

C
ou

rtl
an

d 
St

M
un

ge
r R

d

Westmoorland St

E G
rand Blvd

R
ue

D
e au vi ll e

B lvd

H
ills

id
e 

D
r

Cole Blvd

Pe
rri

n 
St

Henley Dr

Applew
ood

Dr

Shetland
D

r

E 
G

ra
nd

 B
lv

d

Morris St

W Clark Rd

Lilly Dr

Buckley
Dr

Harm
on

St

B rooksid
e

St

Lakeridge Dr

Sherman St

Se
av

er
D

r

Chester Dr

Ruby St

Lilac
Ln

N
 G

ro
ve

 S
t

Diamond St

M
ea

do
w

la
rk

Ln

Olive St

C
he

rry

Bloss
om Dr

Woodward St

M
ap

le
 D

r

Cliffs Dr

H
untington Dr

W
oo

da
le

 A
ve

Panama Ave

M
cA

ule
y Dr

M
id

w
ay

 S
t

Sy
ca

m
or

e
Dr

Watling St

H
el

en
 S

t

Parkwood Ave

G
re

en
la

w
n 

St

O
akb rook Dr

Madison St

C
lo

ve
rla

w
n 

Av
e

Jefferson St

Village Ln

Fo
x 

Av
e

W
oodlaw

n Ave

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Beverly St

Elder St

Mac
ar

thu
r B

lvd

Lam
ay Ave

Concord

D
r

O
ak

da
le

D
r

Trillium Dr

Shirley Dr

St
on

eh
am

D
r

Rachel Dr

H
ick or y Hollow Dr

Skyway Dr

D
ak

ot
a 

Av
e

D
al

to
n 

Av
e

D
ayton D

r

Lev on a
S t

Merritt Rd

Wismer St

Jerom
e Ave

Ba
gl

ey
 A

ve

Fo
st

er
 A

ve

W
orden St

Id
e 

Av
e

Fa
irf

ie
ld

 S
t

Airport Service Rd

Whittier Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill 
R

d

Woburn Dr

G
au

l t
D

r

Mayhew St

Allen Ave

N
or

ris
 S

t

Auburndale Ave

Merritt Rd

Maplewood Ave

Parkwood Ave

Hawthorne Ave

D
w

ig
ht

 S
t

St
an

le
y 

St

H
em

ph
ill 

St

Tw
in

 T
ow

er
s 

St

Bradley Ave

H
i ll c

re
st

Bl
vd

C
am

pb
el

lA
ve

Lake vi ew Dr

S
As hfo rd

Wa y

D
ea

ke
 A

ve

Blossom Ave

Oakhurst Dr

O
ut

er
 L

n

C
rane R

d

Sw
ee

t R
d

W
e s

tv
ie

w
D

r

Draper Ave

C
ra

ne
R

d

O
ak

 D
r

To
rre

y 
Av

e

K a
ns

as
Av

e

C
al

de
r S

t

C
ar

y 
D

r

Se
m

in
ol

e 
R

d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

H
ea rths i d e Dr

Merritt Rd

Bo
rg

st
ro

m
St

Harvest Ln

Ellis Rd

Rue
W

ille
tte

Bl
vd

Merrill St

Be
ec

h 
D

r

E Morgan Rd

M
ai

n 
Av

e

Hickory Ct

Wat e
rs

id
e

Xi
ng

Es
ta

te
s 

D
r

O
hi

o 
St

Crestwood Ave

NutmegDr

W
ia

rd
 R

d

C
ar

lto
n 

D
r

Harding Ave

CommonwealthAve

Carlton Dr

Oswe
go

St

Wiard Blvd

Orchard Ln

Ardis D
r

William Ave

McKinley Ave

Ly
nn

e
Av

e

Maxine Comm

on

El
lis

 R
d

W
oo dstream Dr

C
ry

st
al

 D
r

Suns
et

Tr
l

R
an

do
lp

h 
C

t

Crane Ct

G
ra

nt
Dr

C
en

te
nn

ia
l A

ve

D
eer C

reek D
r

D
ay

to
na

Av
e G

rayf i e ld Cir

Kensington Dr

Wildwood St

W
h

istlin
g Way

McGregor Rd

Snow Rd

Spencer Ln

Th
or

no
aks

Dr

D
ea

n 
D

r

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

Sh
a d

y
Kn

ol
lL

n

Woodland Ct

H
itchingham

 R
d

Swallow Ln

W
atson St

G
lencoe

Hills Dr

Bunton R
d

M
cKean R

d

Morgan Rd

Merritt Rd

BrynM
awrLn

Bry n

M
aw

r

Ln

RobinhoodBlvd

Robinhood Blvd

Ainsw
o r th C ir

Bynan D
r

Indian Hills DrI ndian Hil ls Dr

1:19,200

Legend
Lakes

County Drain Systems

Waters of the State

Map Published On :

Ypsilanti Township
County Drain

Map

Date: 12/8/2017

Evan N. Pratt P.E.
Washtenaw County
Water Resources
Commissioner

705 N. Zeeb Rd.
Ann Arbor, MI 48107

Ph: 734-222-6860
Fax: 734-222-6803

www.washtenaw.org/drains

Appendix B Ypsilanti Township County Map

19| Page



705,606$         Four Year Average Spending (2015‐2018)
322,744$         Four Year Average Spending Ypsilanti Township Only
75,734$           Four Year Average Spending Ypsilanti Township Property Owners

759,250$         Proposed Spending 2019
328,500$         Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Only
178,000$         Proposed Spending 2019 Ypsilanti Township Property Owners

42,999,506$   Total Replacement Value, refer to page 6
0.75% Four Year Average Annual Ypsi Twp Spending to Total Replacement

0.18%
Four Year Average Annual Ypsi Twp Property Owners Spending to Total 
Replacement

Beyer Relief,  $86,814 , 17%

North Branch of Big Swan Creek IC,  $53,618 , 11%

North Ford Lake Consolidated,  $48,982 , 10%

Upper Paint Creek,  $33,084 , 7%

Partridge Creek,  $19,155 , 4%
Ypsilanti Township #07,  $14,738 , 3%

Ypsilanti Township #04,  $12,421 , 2%

Smokler‐Textile,  $11,819 , 2%

Recreation Park Subdivision,  $11,123 , 2%

Huron Center Commercial and Office,  $10,283 , 2%
West Branch of Paint Creek,  $8,230 , 2%

Ypsilanti Township #01 Consolidated,  $8,137 , 2%
Ypsilanti Township #13,  $7,601 , 1%

Spruce Falls Subdivision and Extension,  $7,387 , 1%

Sines,  $6,805 , 1%

Streamwood #7,  $6,176 , 1%
Tremont Park Subdivision,  $6,150 , 1%

Whittaker‐Textile,  $6,107 , 1%

Willow Run Extension #1,  $5,891 , 1%

Swan Creek and Pliney Harris,  $5,836 , 1%

Ypsilanti Township #03,  $5,243 , 1%
Streamwood #3 and #4,  $5,195 , 1%

Streamwood Subdivision,  $5,060 , 1%

72 Others (Less than $5000 Ave/Year),  $121,099 , 24%

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP‐‐DRAIN SPENDING FOUR YEAR AVERAGE
(2015‐2018)

Appendix C Reactive Maintenance Summary

20| Page



Existing Mowing

2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Mowing Program 
Summary
by Year
Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix D Mowing Program Summary

21| Page



2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Vactor / Cleaning 
Summary

by Year

Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix E  Vactor/Cleaning Summary

22| Page



2019

2020

2021-2025

Water Bodies

County Drain Systems

Road Centerlines

Renewal Summary
Ypsilanti Township

¯ 0 0.5 10.25
Miles

Appendix F Vactor/Cleaning Summary

23| Page



Derbyshire
$2,000

Ypsilanti
Township #14
$1,250

The Pines
Sub
$5,250

Budd
$3,250

Miller
$2,250

Ypsilanti Twp #11
$6,000

Sines Ext.
$1,250

Ypsilanti Twp #7
Ext.

$5,500

Eaton
$1,250

Tyler Dam
$1,750

Brock
$1,250

N. Br. Big
Swan Creek IC
$1,250

Wash-Clubview #2
$12,250

Oakland
Estates Sub

$7,750

Ypsilanti Township
#1 Consol.
$13,000

Ypsilanti Twp #10
$12,500

Gorton
$15,000

Ypsilanti
Township #1
$16,000

Willow Run
$12,500

Ypsilanti
Township #8

$29,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
Ext.
$27,250

Wash-Clubview #1
$19,250

Recreation
Park Sub
$34,000

Ypsilanti Twp #13
$76,500

Smokler-Textile
$325,000

North Ford
Lake Consol.
$195,000

Beyer Relief
$80,250

12

12
Packard Rd

W
Mich

igan Ave

W
hi

tta
ke

r R
d

Textile Rd

Bu
nt

on
 R

d

Martz Rd

E Forest Ave

S H
ew

itt R
d

N
H

ew
itt

R
d

Airport Dr

R
id

ge
 R

d

Washtenaw Ave

St
on

y 
C

re
ek

 R
d

Tyler Rd

Tu
ttl

e 
H

ill
 R

d

Ecorse Rd

R
aw

sonville R
d

E Michigan Ave

S H
arris R

d

Holmes Rd

Grove Rd

E Clark Rd

S Huron River Dr

S
H

ur
on

S
t

E Ellsworth Rd

W
iard R

d

E Cross St

Merritt Rd

M
cK

ea
n 

R
d

S 
Fo

rd
 B

lv
d

M
cG

re
go

r R
d

Ellis Rd

Br
id

ge
 R

d

N
 F

or
d 

B
lv

d

94

Total Proposed 
Spending Per Drain

Ypsilanti Township
Asset Management Plan

Washtenaw County
Reference Map

***Not to Scale***

0 0.5 1

Miles

Drain Projects
Cost

Low
Moderate
Medium
Highest

Published 1/26/2019

Geographic 
Information 

System

24| Page

Appendix G Overall AM Summary



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-11 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 
TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND ASSESSMENT LIMIT OF 

FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER YEAR FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF  

THE OAKLAND ESTATES SUBDIVISION DRAIN 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Oakland Estates Subdivision Drain is a drain located in 
the municipality of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, which drain was 
constructed in accordance with the Drain Code of 1956; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner is entrusted with the 
responsibility of ensuring proper maintenance and repairs are made to said drain; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner, pursuant to statute, has 
inspected the drain which inspection revealed that repair work is necessary 
inasmuch as said inspection identified the need for system wide condition 
assessment; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner of Washtenaw County 
has estimated that the repair of the drain will be approximately twenty-three 
thousand two hundered dollars ($23,200.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Drain Code of 1956, the Water Resources 
Commissioner cannot exceed the statutory spending limit of fifteen thousand 
dollars ($15,000.00) for the maintenance and repair of the drain unless approved 
by a resolution of the Township Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner has requested the 
Township Board to pass such resolution authoring the office of the Water 
Resources Commissioner to exceed the statutory spending limit allowed on the 
Oakland Estates Subdivision Drain, to wit: fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) 
per year, so as to allow repair of said drain. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Board of Trustees for the municipality of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti hereby approved and authorizes the office of the Water Resources 
Commissioner to exceed the statutory spending limit of fifteen thousand dollars 
($15,000.00) per year for the repair of the Oakland Estates Subdivision Drain in 
the exceeded amount of eight thousand two hundred dollars ($8,200.00). 
 

 

 

 

 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2019-11 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on March 19, 2019. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-12 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER 
TO EXCEED THE STATUTORY SPENDING AND ASSESSMENT LIMIT OF 

FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($15,000.00) PER YEAR FOR THE 
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR OF THE  

RECREATION PARK SUBDIVISION DRAIN 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Recreation Park Subdivision Drain is a drain located in 
the municipality of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, which drain was 
constructed in accordance with the Drain Code of 1956; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner is entrusted with the 
responsibility of ensuring proper maintenance and repairs are made to said drain; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner, pursuant to statute, has 
inspected the  drain which inspection revealed that repair work is necessary 
inasmuch as said inspection identified the need for renewal/repairs of system 
structures and sumps; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner of Washtenaw County 
has estimated that the repair of the drain will be approximately ninety-eight  
thousand four hundred ($98,400.00); and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Drain Code of 1956, the Water Resources 
Commissioner cannot exceed the statutory spending limit of fifteen thousand 
dollars ($15,000.00) for the maintenance and repair of the drain unless approved 
by a resolution of the Township Board; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Water Resources Commissioner has requested the 
Township Board to pass such resolution authoring the office of the Water 
Resources Commissioner to exceed the statutory spending limit allowed on the 
Recreation Park Subdivision Drain, to wit: fifteen thousand dollars ($15,000.00) 
per year, so as to allow repair of said drain. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti Board of Trustees for the municipality of the Charter Township of 
Ypsilanti hereby approved and authorizes the office of the Water Resources 
Commissioner to exceed the statutory spending limit of fifteen thousand dollars 
($15,000.00) per year for the repair of the Recreation Park Subdivision Drain in 
the exceeded amount of eighty-three thousand four hundred dollars 
($83,400.00). 
 

 

 

 

 

 
I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify the above resolution is a true and exact copy of Resolution No. 2019-12 
approved by the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, Board of Trustees assembled at a Regular 
Meeting held on March 19, 2019. 
                                    
                                                                                    ___________________________________ 
                                                                                                                Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                          Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

 











CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #5

March 19, 2019 
AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $9,547.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $1,097.00

Net Revenues $1,097.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-201-000-708.004 $1,019.00

FICA 101-201-000-715.000 $78.00
Net Expenditures $1,097.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $8,450.00

Net Revenues $8,450.00

Expenditures: Civic Center Roof 101-970-000-975.141 $8,450.00

Net Expenditures $8,450.00

266 - LAW ENFORCEMENT FUND Total Increase $6,103.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 266-000-000-699.000 $6,103.00

Net Revenues $6,103.00

Expenditures: Salary-Pay Out 266-301-000-708.004 $3,280.00
FICA&Medicare 266-301-000-715.000 $251.00
Salary-Pay Out 266-304-000-708.004 $2,389.00
FICA&Medicare 266-304-000-715.000 $183.00

Net Expenditures $6,103.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout at 75% of the hours requested.  This will be funded by an Appropriation 
of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for PTO payouts at 75% of the hours requested.  This will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for OHM to preform professional services for the Civic Center Roof project.   This will 
be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance.

1 of 1



Motion to Amend the 2019 Budget (#5)  

 

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $9,547 to $9,537,555 and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Law Enforcement Fund budget by $6,103 to $7,680,157 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

ATTORNEY REPORT 

 
GENERAL LEGAL UPDATE 

 
 



 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

 



Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 

RESOLUTION 2019-07 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2019-485) 

 
Amending the Township Code of Ordinances, Chapter 

42 Section 210, Regulating the Days and Hours  
Fireworks May Be Used 

 
 
 Whereas, in 2013, the Michigan Legislature enacted a law which 

permitted the use of consumer fireworks during  specified National Holidays, 

including the day before and the day after the specified National Holiday:    and ;  

 Whereas, under the State law adopted in 2013 the specified National 

Holidays were: New Year’s Day (January 1); Martin Luther King Jr’s Birthday (the 

third Monday in January); Washington’s Birthday (the third Monday in February); 

Memorial Day (the last Monday in May); Independence day (July 4); Labor Day 

(the first Monday in September); Columbus Day (the second Monday in October); 

Veterans Day (November 11); Thanksgiving Day (the fourth Thursday in 

November); and Christmas Day (December 25). 

 Whereas, the 2013 State law expressly prohibited local municipalities 

from adopting ordinances regulating the use of fireworks during the National 

Holidays specified in the law (including the day before and the day after the 

National Holidays); 

  Whereas, the Michigan Legislature, on December 28, 2018, in 

response to citizen complaints regarding the use of fireworks during  the 30 days 

identified as National Holidays, without any local control over the hours or days, 

adopted Public Act 634 of 2018; 

  Whereas, under Public Act 634, the Township has the right to 

prohibit the use of fireworks on any day of the year except for the following days 

of the year: December 31 until 1:00 am on January 1; and the Saturday and 

Sunday immediately preceding Memorial Day until 11:45 PM on each day; June 

29 to July 4 until 11:45 pm on each of those days; July 5 if that date is a Friday or 

Saturday until 11:45 pm; and the Saturday and Sunday immediately preceding 

Labor day until 11:45 pm on each day. 



 Whereas, under Public Act 634, the Township also has the right to 

prohibit fireworks before 11:00 am; and 

 Whereas, the Township Board has received numerous complaints from 

residents concerning   the disturbances caused to their families, persons 

suffering from PTSD, and pets when fireworks are ignited late at night and into 

the early morning during the 30 National holidays identified in the 2013 State 

Law; and 

 Whereas, the Township Board believes that adoption of Ordinance 2019-

485 restricting fireworks during specified days and times, permitted under Public 

Act 634, is in the best interest of the Township and its residents, 

 Now Therefore, Be it resolved, that Ordinance No. 2019- 485   is hereby 

adopted by reference. 

 

 

 

 



 1 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO.  2019-485 
 

An Ordinance to Amend the Charter Township of Ypsilanti  
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42-210 entitled Fireworks 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that the Charter Township 

of Ypsilanti Code of Ordinances, Chapter 42-210 entitled Fireworks, is amended 
as follows: 

 
Delete:  In its entirety, Section 42-210 entitled Fireworks and 
 
Add:  The following new Fireworks provisions to Chapter 42. 
 
(a) Definitions: As used in this section; 
 

(1) Consumer fireworks means fireworks devices that are designed to 
produce visible effects by combustion, that are required to comply with 
the construction, chemical composition, and labeling regulations 
promulgated by the United States Consumer Produce Safety 
Commission under 16 CFR parts 1500 and 1507, and that are listed in 
APA standard 87-1, 3.1.2, 3.1.3, or 3.5.  Consumer fireworks does not 
include low-impact fireworks 
 

(2) Firework or fireworks means any composition or device, except for a 
starting pistol, a flare gun, or a flare, designated for the purpose of 
producing a visible or audible effect by combustion, deflagration, or 
detonation.  Fireworks consist of consumer fireworks, low-impact 
fireworks, articles pyrotechnic, display fireworks, and special effects. 

 
(3) Low-impact fireworks means ground and handheld sparking devices as 

that phrase is defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.3, 3.1.1.1 to 3.1.1.8 
and 3.5 

 
(4) Novelties means that term as defined under APA standard 87-1, 3.2, 

3.2.1, 3.2.2, 3.2.3, 3.2.4, and 3.2.5 and all of the following: 
 

a. Toy plastic or paper caps for toy pistols in sheets, strips, rolls, or 
individual caps containing not more than .25 or a grain of explosive 
content per cap, in packages labeled to indicate the maximum 
explosive content per cap. 
 

b. Toy pistols, toy cannons, toy canes, toy trick noisemakers, and toy 
guns in which toy caps as described in subparagraph (a) are use, that 
are constructed so that the hand cannot come in contact with the cap 
when in place for the explosion, and that are not designed to break 
apart or be separated so as to form a missile by the explosion.  

 
c. Flitter sparklers in paper tubes no exceeding one-eighth-inch in 

diameter. 
 

(b) Prohibition on use of consumer fireworks: A person shall not ignite, 
discharge or use consumer fireworks within the township on any day of the year, 
except for the following days after 11:00 a.m. 
 

(1) December 31 until 1 a.m. on January 1. 
 

(2) The Saturday and Sunday immediately preceding Memorial Day until 
11:45 p.m. on each of those days. 

 
(3) June 29 to July 4 until 11:45 p.m. on each of those days. 
 



 2 

(4) July 5, if that date is a Friday or Saturday, until 11:45 p.m. 
 
(5) The Saturday and Sunday immediately preceding Labor Day until 11:45 

p.m. on each of those days. 
 

 
Violation – Civil Infraction 
 

Violation of this ordinance constitutes a municipal civil infraction with a civil 
fine of $1,000 for each violation and no other fine or sanction.  The local law 
enforcement agency responsible for enforcement of this ordinance shall be entitled 
$500 of the civil fine collected from violations. 
 
Severability 
 

Should any provision or part of the within Ordinance be declared by any court 
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or enforceable, the same shall not affect the 
validity or enforceability of the balance of this Ordinance which shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 
Effective Date and Repeal of Conflicting Ordinances 
 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
This ordinance shall take effect after publication in a newspaper of general 

circulation as required by law. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I, Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti, County of Washtenaw, State of 
Michigan hereby certify approval of the first reading of Proposed Ordinance No. 2019-485 by the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti Board of Trustees assembled at a regular meeting held on March 
5, 2019. The second reading is scheduled to be heard on April 2, 2019. 
 

 
_______________________________ 

Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
                                                                                                            Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



                                   

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO 2019-484 
 

An Ordinance Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments within 
Ypsilanti Township as Provided by the Recreational Marijuana Ballot 
Initiative 1 of 2018 
  

 The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby ordains that pursuant to the 

authority granted to municipalities in the Recreational Marijuana Ballot Initiative 1 

of 2018, otherwise known as the Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marijuana 

Act (the Act), as amended,  marijuana establishments as defined in the Act, are 

prohibited within the boundaries of Ypsilanti Township. 

 

Penalty for Violations: Violation of this Ordinance constitutes a municipal civil 

infraction punishable by a $500 fine. The violator shall be required to pay all 

direct and indirect expenses incurred by the Township in connection with the 

prosecution of the civil infraction. Each day during which a violation continues to 

exist shall be a separate offense. 

 

The Township may seek injunctive relief against persons alleged to be in 

violation of this Ordinance and such other relief as may be provided by law. 

  

Severability 

 Should any section, subdivision, sentence, clause or phrase of this 

Ordinance be declared by the Courts to be invalid, the same shall not affect the 

validity of the Ordinance as a whole or any part thereof other than the part as 

invalidated. 

 
Publication 
 This Ordinance shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation as 

required by law.   

 
 
Effective date 
 This Ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.   

 

 

 

 

  

 



 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

 



1 

 

RESOLUTION 2019-20 
(In Reference to Ordinance 2019-484) 

 
Prohibition 

Of Recreational Marihuana Establishments  
 
  

 Whereas, in November of 2018, Michigan voters approved the legalization 

of recreational marihuana hereinafter referred to as the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act; and 

 Whereas, prior to the approval of the 2018 Michigan Regulation and 

Taxation of Marihuana Act Michigan voters and the Michigan legislature 

approved two (2) separate and independent statutes which govern medical 

marihuana only, to-wit:  the Michigan Medical  Marihuana Act, Initiated Law 1 

of 2008 legalizing  medical marihuana and the Michigan  Medical Marihuana 

Facilities Licensing Act of 2016; and  

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2019-484 entitled Prohibition 

of Recreational Marihuana Establishments applies only to  commercial 

recreational marihuana businesses authorized by the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act; and 

 Whereas, proposed Township Ordinance 2019-484 does not affect 

medical marihuana patients’ rights or medical marihuana caregivers’ rights under 

the 2008 Medical Marihuana Ballot Initiative, including an individual medical 

marihuana patient’s right to grow up to twelve (12) marihuana plants for personal 

use or a medical marihuana caregivers right to grow up to seventy-two (72) 

plants for their patients and themselves, and; 

 Whereas, the focal point of proposed Township  Ordinance 2019-484 

concerns potential recreational marihuana businesses that could be located 

within the boundaries of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti ; and 

 Whereas, under the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act, a recreational marihuana business includes a number of 

different types of commercial enterprises which are as follows:  



2 

 

(1) Recreational marihuana growers and sellers of up  

     to 2,000 marihuana plants;  

(2) Recreational marihuana safety compliance   

      facilities (defined as testing facilities for potency   

      and presence of contaminants);  

     (3) Recreational marihuana processors (preparation of 

marihuana plants by compounding, blending, extracting, 

and infusing marihuana);  

     (4) Recreational marihuana microbusinesses (cultivates, 

processes, and packages up to 150 marihuana plants); 

and  

                          (5) Recreational marihuana retailer (retail sale of  

                                marihuana)  

               (6) Recreational marihuana transporters (transports  

           marihuana to and from other marihuana 

           establishments); and 

Whereas, under the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act the Michigan Department of Licensing and Regulatory Affairs 

(LARA) is responsible for adopting rules and regulations applicable to 

commercial recreational marihuana businesses; and 

Whereas, LARA’s initial meeting regarding the drafting of rules and 

regulations to govern recreational marihuana businesses pursuant to the 2018 

Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act was scheduled to 

convene during the week of March 25, 2019; and 

Whereas, under Governor Gretchen Whitmer’s recent executive order, a 

new State agency is expected to oversee the licensing of recreational marihuana 

businesses pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act once the governing the rules and regulations have been properly 

promulgated and approved as required by the Act; and 

Whereas, Municipalities have the right, under the 2018 Michigan 

Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act, to decide whether commercial 



3 

 

recreational marihuana businesses are permitted within their communities and if 

they are permitted, the type or types of businesses so allowed, the zoning 

districts in which said businesses would be permitted as well as the enactment of 

other local regulations and requirements that would be deemed to be in the best 

interests of the community; and 

Whereas, before the Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees can consider 

the salient issues of whether commercial recreational marihuana businesses are 

in the best interests of the Township, and if so, the types of businesses that may 

be suited to the Township based upon the zoning district(s) for such businesses 

and whether other local regulations and requirements should be adopted, the 

Township Board needs to be fully apprised prior thereto of all of the rules and 

regulations that will be promulgated and adopted by LARA governing commercial 

recreational marihuana businesses pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation 

and Taxation of Marihuana Act,; and 

Whereas, pursuant to the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of 

Marihuana Act, if the Township does not adopt an Ordinance prohibiting 

commercial recreational marihuana businesses, any commercial recreational 

marihuana business licensed by the State, is automatically allowed to operate 

within Ypsilanti Township; and 

Whereas, in order to avoid a situation where a commercial recreational 

marihuana business is licensed by the State to operate within the Township, 

before the Township Board has carefully considered whether to allow the 

businesses to operate within the Township, the Township Board hereby 

determines that it is in the best interest of the Township to maintain the status 

quo until the State of Michigan by and through LARA adopts the required rules 

and regulations applicable to commercial recreational marihuana businesses so 

as to allow the Township Board an opportunity to carefully review the same;  

  Now Therefore, 

 Be it resolved, that Ordinance No. 2019- 484 prohibiting recreational 

marihuana establishments (businesses) within Ypsilanti Township as set forth in 



4 

 

the 2018 Michigan Regulation and Taxation of Marihuana Act is hereby 

adopted by reference. 

 

 

 

 



 

1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN 
 

PROPOSED ORDINANCE 2019-484 
 
 

Prohibition of Recreational Marihuana  
Establishments Ordinance  

 
 An ordinance to provide a title for the ordinance; to define words; to 

prohibit marihuana establishments within the boundaries of the Charter Township 

of Ypsilanti pursuant to Initiated Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq as may 

be amended; to provide penalties for violation of this ordinance; to provide for 

severability; to repeal all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict therewith; 

and to provide an effective date. 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
COUNTY OF WASHTENAW, STATE OF MICHIGAN 

  
ORDAINS: 

 
Section I 

Title 
 
 This ordinance shall be known as and be cited as the Charter Township of 

Ypsilanti Prohibition of Marihuana Establishments Ordinance.  

Section II 
Definitions 

 
Words used herein shall have the definitions as provided for in Initiated 

Law 1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq, as may be amended.  

Section III 
No Marihuana Establishments 

 
The Charter Township of Ypsilanti hereby prohibits all marihuana 

establishments within the boundaries of the Township pursuant to Initiated Law 

1 of 2018, MCL 333.27951 et seq as may be amended. 



 

2 
 

Section IV 
Violations and Penalties 

 
1.  Any person who disobeys, neglects or refuses to comply with any 

provision of this ordinance or who causes, allows or consents to any of 

the same shall be deemed to be responsible for the violation of this 

ordinance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed to be a nuisance  

per se.  

2.  A violation of this ordinance is a municipal civil infraction, for which the 

fines shall not be less than One Hundred and No/100 ($100.00) Dollars 

nor more than Five Hundred and No/100 ($500.00) Dollars, in the 

discretion of the Court.  The foregoing sanctions shall be in addition to 

the rights of the Township to proceed at law or equity with other 

appropriate and proper remedies.  Additionally, the violator shall pay 

costs which may include all expenses, direct and indirect, which the 

Township incurs in connection with the municipal civil infraction. 

3.  Each day during which any violation continues shall be deemed a  

separate offense.   

4. In addition, the Township may seek injunctive relief against persons 

alleged to be in violation of this ordinance, and such other relief as may 

be provided by law.  

5. This ordinance shall be administered and enforced by the Ordinance   

Enforcement Officer of the Township or such other person(s) as 

designated by the Township Board from time to time. 

Section V 
Severability 

 
The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be severable.  If 

any clause, sentence, word, section or provision is hereafter declared void or 

unenforceable for any reason by a Court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not 

affect the remainder of such ordinance which shall continue in full force and 

effect. 



 

3 
 

Section VI 
Repeal  
 

All ordinance or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed. 

Section VII 
Effective Date  

 
This ordinance shall become effective upon publication in a newspaper of 

general circulation as required by law.  

 
 

  

 









CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-08 

FEE SCHEDULE AND VALUATION DATA FOR BUILDING, 
ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, SIGN AND BIKE PATH 

PERMITS 
 

WHEREAS, Section 6 and 22 of Act 230 of the Public Acts of 1972, being the 
State Construction Code Act of 1972 provides for the establishment and 
collection of fees; and 

 
WHEREAS, Article II of the Buildings and Building Regulations Code of the 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti assures responsibility for the administration 
and enforcement within the township of the State Construction Code Act of 
1972 as amended, and the building, plumbing, mechanical, and electrical 
codes promulgated thereunder, as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board has established other permits to be 
administered by the Building Department and establishes fees for said 
permits; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township Board last reviewed Building, Mechanical, 
Electrical and Plumbing permit fees in December of 2016. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the attached said fees, 
valuation data and inspection policy are hereby established. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all previous resolutions regarding fees or 
valuation date for building, electrical, plumbing, mechanical, sign or bike path 
permit fees are hereby revoked. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that Resolution No. 2019-08 shall become 
effective May 6, 2019. 

 
 
 
 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
  Dave Bellers, Chief Building Official 
 

Re: Request to approve Fee Schedule and Valuation Data for Building, Electrical, 
Plumbing, Mechanical, Sign and Bike Path permits. 

 

Copy: Brenda Stumbo, Supervisor 
McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 

 

Date:  March 22, 2019 
 
Office of Community Standards staff recently completed an evaluation of building and trade 
permit fees and permit application formatting.  At the direction of Chief Building Official Dave 
Bellers, fee adjustments and a standardized permit application format have been developed 
and recommended for implementation effective May 6, 2019.  The changes will more closely 
align Building Department operations with standards in use at most other area municipalities 
and will enhance efficiency for the department’s customers. 
 
Furthermore, staff has thoughtfully analyzed construction costs in the Ypsilanti Township area 
as compared to the International Code Council (ICC) valuation data that is currently used to 
verify improvement costs reported by customers seeking permits.  Staff has determined that 
local construction costs are approximately 75% of the ICC valuation data, which is a national 
average.  Accordingly, Mr. Bellers recommends adjusting our valuation numbers to 75% of 
published ICC data to appropriately adjust costs for property owners. 
 
The Board of Trustees last reviewed all building and trade permit fees and valuation data on 
November 1, 2016.  Resolution No. 2019-08, the proposed fee schedule, the most recent ICC 
valuation chart, and copies of proposed permit application forms are enclosed for reference. 
 
Please place this request on the agenda for the April 2, 2019 meeting of the Board of Trustees 
for its consideration.  If approved, the changes will be effective on May 6, 2019 to give clerical 
staff adequate time to learn the changes and update permit and invoice programming in the 
BS&A software. 
 
Enclosures: Resolution 2019-08 
  2019 Building Department Fee Schedule (proposed) 
  February 2019 ICC Valuation Chart 



DECSCRIPTION FEE DESCRIPTON FEE

Special Inspection $50 One and Two Family Residential $75

After Hours Inspections (per hr. - 2 hr. min) $55 Multi-Family, Commercial & Industrial $250

$1.00 - $3,000 $50 Inspection and Certificate $75

Each $1,000 (or part of) over $3,000 $10

$501 - $10,000 $35

Deck Valuation Cost per Square Foot - Wood $20

Deck Valuation Cost per Square Foot - Composite $40

Basement Finish Valuation per Square Foot $30 $50,001 - $100,000

Roofing Valuation Cost Per Square (100 sq. ft.) $300

Siding Valuation Cost per Square (100 sq. ft.) $350 $100,001 and above

PLAN REVIEW

New Single Family Residential $50

All Other Residential Projects $25 Zoning Permit - $50 minimum

Multi-Family, Commercial, Industrial $300 Sign face change, fences, driveways and sheds of 100 sq. ft.

(or 25% of building permit fee, whichever is greater) Code Inspection - $50 minimum

                       (per each trade inspection)

DESCRIPTION

Fire Sprinkler Plan Review

Fire Sprinkler Inspection (up to 20 heads)

Fire Sprinkler Inspection (over 20 heads)

Fire Sprinkler Hydrostat Test

Kitchen Hood System Plan Review & Wet Test

Paint Booth Plan Review and Test

Inspection Fee (Wet Test / Paint Booth)

DESCRIPTION FEE

Fire Alarms / 1 - 10 Devices $50

Fire Alarms / 11 - 20 Devices $100

Fire Alarms / more than 20 Devices $100 + $5 ea.

Fire Alarm Plan Review $100

Fire Alarm Test (Bldg., Fire, Elec.) $150

FIRE ALARM PERMIT FEES
Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)

FIRE ALARMS

All other item not provided for in the Building Valuation Data shall bear reasonable costs to actual value (not material costs) and are subject to 

the review and possible adjustment of the Building Official

Article II of the Buildings and Building Regulations Code of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti assures responsibility for the administration and 

enforcement within the township of the State Construction Code Act of 1972 as amended, and the building, plumbing, mechanical, and 

electrical codes promulgated thereunder, as amended.

EXCEPTIONS

$30 + $5 for each $1,000 or part thereof over $10,000

$50 + $3.50 for each $1,000 or part thereof over $50,000

$67.50 + $1 for each $1,000 or part thereof over $100,000

FEE BASED ON IMPROVEMENT COSTS

Section 6 and 22 of Act 230 of the Public Acts of 1972, being the State Construction Code Act of 1972 provides for the establishment and 

collection of fees.

TEMPORARY CERTIFICATE OF OCCUPANCY

Improvement cost shall be determined by applying the following building valuation data. The most recent International Code Council Building 

Valuation Date may be view at:   https://www.iccsafe.org/codes-tech-support/codes/code-development-process/building-valuation-data/

BUILDING PERMIT FEES
Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)

OTHER

RE-OCCUPANCY (NON-RESIDENTIAL)

BIKE PATH (One time charge)

$10,001 - $50,000

SPECIAL INSPECTION

FEE

FIRE SUPPRESSION PERMIT FEES
Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)

$100

$150

$150

$50 ea.

FIRE SUPPRESSION

$100 + $.75 ea.

$400

$100



DESCRIPTION FEE DESCRIPTION FEE
1.   A/C Residential $20 18. Power Units - Up to 10 hp kva $8

     A/C Interruptible meter $20 (Motor /                        > 10 - 20 hp/kva $12

2.  A/C Commercial, GEO Thermal Transformers)         > 20 - 40 hp/kva $15

     up to 5 ton $22                                           > 40 - 60 hp/kva $20

     over 5 ton - up to 40 ton $40                                           > 60 - 75 hp/kva $40

     over 40 ton $60                                           > 75 - 100 hp/kva $60

3.  Ceiling Fan / Exhaust Fan $8                                           > 100 hp/kva $80

4.  Circuits 1 to 60 (EACH) $11 19. Pump (sump & fire) $8

     61 & up (EACH) $3 20. Re-Inspection $50

5.  Dishwasher $10          Renewal $50

6.  Disposal $10 21. Rough Inspection $25

7.  Electric Dryer / Range / Oven        3 Roughs $60

220 / 240 Pwr Unit, Water Heater (1st unit) $17        4-5 Roughs $75

Additional Units each $15        Each addition rough over 5 $15

8.  Electrical Space Heating / First Room $17 22. Service New, 100 amp or less $20

      Each Additional Room $15 (service ent cables)   >100 - 200 amp $27

9.  Each Feeder up to 100 ft. (Busway) $38 ea. >200-400 amp $50

Over 100 ft., ea. 100 ft. increment up to 1000 ft. $18 ea. >400-800 amp $70

Over 1000 ft., ea. 100 ft. increment $4 ea. >800 $100

10. Fixtures - 25 lamps or tubes Temporary Service                   _______ amp $50

(1000 wt. floodlights, cluster of floodlights, Commercial Service Relocate/Chg. Ser    _____ amp $80

clusters of floodlights=1000 wt., neon type 23. ***Smoke Detectors - First 5 = $20 and

gas tube lamp - lamp shall be considered as          each add'l 4 or faction thereof = $7

one power unit) 24. Special Inspection - general $50

11. Furnace $12         Carnivals, circus, road shows $100

12. Garage Door Opener $8 25. Standby Generator    0-5 kw/kva $40

13. General Repair $40 Load Calculations required   5-30 kw/kva $60

14. Hot Tub / Spa $30 for whole house generators Over 30 kw/kva $60

      Hydro massage Tub $15 26. Other - call for fees $40

15. Low Volt Burglar ___  CCTV ___ 27. Annual Maintenance Permit

      Data ___  Phone ___  Security ___ Commercial / Industrial     < 25,000 sq. ft. $75

Commercial requires 1 Rough-Minimum                                        25,001 to 50,000 sq. ft. $100

16. Pool Wiring - Above & In ground                                     50,001 to 100,000 sq. ft. $150

        With one motor $43                      over 100,000 sq. ft. call for fees 

        Each additional motor $4 28. Solar Panel (each)-Needs Plan Review

17. Office / Modular / Furniture         and Building Permit

        Each cubical or work up to 50 $8

        Each cubical or work up to 50 $5

        Each power pole $8

$10

***
$15 each set

$40 each 

system

ELECTRICAL  PERMIT FEES
Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)



DESCRIPTION FEE DESCRIPTION FEE
1.      Appurtenances-Humidifiers, Air Cleaners    13.  Duct Smoke Detectors

          with furnace          First 5 detectors or less (each unit) $20

          Without furnace $25          Each additional detector $7

2.      Make-Air Unit / Air Handlers $40 14.   Exhaust Fans - Residential

3.       Boiler (Res-see gas fired equipment)            Kitchen/bath (etc.) fans

4.      Chimney, Factory built/liner $30 14. (a) Commercial Bath Fans $20

           Installed with new furnace $15 15.  Fuel-Oil Fired Equipment (burners,

           Each add'l at same occupancy $12           tanks) & solid fuel appliances) Room

5.      Commercial kitchen hoods, dip tanks,           Heaters (stoves/portable & wood 

           spray booths, ind furn. Ea. sys           burning fireplace)

6.      Commercial hood plan review $150 All other under 5 GPH $35

           +$25 per page $25 ea.                        All other over 5 GPH $50

7.      Compressor (see Refrigeration) Alterations to existing $30

8.      Dampers - Automatic & fixed vent 16.   Gas Fired Appliance - Burners Make:

          dampers with furnace            Model # BTU:

9.      Dampers only $30            Less that 75,000 BTU $50

10.   Dampers Fire/Smoke (Commercial)            75,001 to 500,000 BTU $60

          First 5 units - each unit $10           Over 500,000 BTU $70

          Each additional unit (same location) $4 (call if over 5 units at same location)

11.  Duct/pipe alteration-comm minor $50 17.    Gas Piping - Residential $30

          Complete-commercial $75            Commercial Under 2" each 60' $40

          VAV boxes each $20            Commercial Over 2" each 60' $60

12.   Duct/pipe alteration (Residential) $25            Pressure Test - Residential $30

          Complete residential and/or over 2           Pressure Test - Commercial (each) $30

           branch ducts or registers           Not Ready/Disapproved (res/comm) $50

18.   Generator $35 20.    Re-inspection $50

19.   Refrigeration Installation 21.    Renewal or Transfer $50

          Model # 22.   Water Heater - Replacement Only $30

         Remote systems activated by motors of 23.    GENERAL REPAIRS $40

          5hp or less 24.    Extra Rough Inspections (each) $40

          Systems activated by motors or engines  25.    Special Inspections, Geo Thermal

         over 5hp to 30 hp            Systems or Mini Splits 

         Over 30hp $120 26.    Plan Review (if applicable)

$50

$13

$50

$20

Make:

H/P

$30

$60

$20

$40

MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

$50



DESCRIPTION FEE FEE
1.    Air Admit Valve $12 $50 

2.    Bathtubs $12

3.    Backflow Preventers ** $20 $30

4.    Catch Basins / Manholes $15 $12

5.    Dishwashing Machine $12 $12

6.    Drinking Fountains $12 $25

7.    Floor Drain Traps $12 $50

8.   Garbage Disposal $12 $25

9.    Hose Bibbs $12 31.   Water Dist Size Water Service

10.   Laundry Trays $12 Per 100 ft. each Per 50 ft.

11.   Lavatories (bathroom sink) $12 1/2" 3/4" $20

12.   Medical Gas System $50 3/4" 1" $22

           More than 1 system at same time $20 ea. 1" 1 1/4" $25

13.   Medical Pressure Test $30 1 1/4" 1 1/2" $35

14.   Passive Radon System $12 1 1/2" 2" $50

15.   Pump / Waterlift / Ejector $12 2" 2 1/2" $65

16.   Reinspection fee $45 2 1/2" 3" $80

           Renewal fee $50 3" 4" $100

17.   Replacement Piping (same size) $30 Exceeding 4" Exceeding 4" $180

18.   Showers $12 $12

19.   Sinks $12 $25

20.   Special Equip - humidifier/beverage mach. Call $40

21.   Stacks (new alteration) (soil, waste, vent) $12

22.   Subsoil drains $30

23.   Sump / Interceptors $12

Sanitary Sewer Storm Sewer $30

NEW Each 60 ft. Each 60 ft. $50

Up to 6" Up to 6" $50

8" 8" $60

10" 10" $70 $30

12" 12" $80 $30

14" 14" $100  Cap off of Sewer / Open Piping $30

16" 16" $120 Water Service Connection - see Water 

Over 16" Over 16" $150 Distribution for price

Manholes / Catch Basins (each)

Crock to iron / Lead Connection

$30

** Certification test report required for main & bypass devices. If part

of Fire Suppression, permit not subject to minimum or admin fee.

Sanitary Sewer Repair  - Up to 10 ft.

33.   Additional Rough

34.   General Repairs

35.   Other (call for fee)

32.   Water Treatment Device

Over 10' up to 50'

Each add'l 50' or faction thereof at the 

same time

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES
Administration  Fee  (non-refundable) - $25

Minimum  Permit  Fee (not including administration fee) - $50

Permit Cancelation Fee - $25 or 25% (whichever is greater)

The following can be pulled by excavators, etc. (Exterior Only)

29.   Water Heater Commercial

30. Water Heater (Tankless)

with backflow device

25.   Underground Inspection

26.   Urinals

27.   Water Closet (Toilet)

28.   Water Heater (Not Tankless)

DESCRIPTION
24.   Underground Irrigation



 

 

Building Valuation Data – FEBRUARY 2019 
 

The International Code Council is pleased to provide the 
following Building Valuation Data (BVD) for its members. The 
BVD will be updated at six-month intervals, with the next 
update in August 2019. ICC strongly recommends that all 
jurisdictions and other interested parties actively evaluate and 
assess the impact of this BVD table before utilizing it in their 
current code enforcement related activities. 
 
The BVD table provides the “average” construction costs per 
square foot, which can be used in determining permit fees for 
a jurisdiction. Permit fee schedules are addressed in Section 
109.2 of the 2018 International Building Code (IBC) whereas 
Section 109.3 addresses building permit valuations. The 
permit fees can be established by using the BVD table and a 
Permit Fee Multiplier, which is based on the total construction 
value within the jurisdiction for the past year. The Square Foot 
Construction Cost table presents factors that reflect relative 
value of one construction classification/occupancy group to 
another so that more expensive construction is assessed 
greater permit fees than less expensive construction. 
 
ICC has developed this data to aid jurisdictions in determining 
permit fees. It is important to note that while this BVD table 
does determine an estimated value of a building (i.e., Gross 
Area x Square Foot Construction Cost), this data is only 
intended to assist jurisdictions in determining their permit fees. 
This data table is not intended to be used as an estimating 
guide because the data only reflects average costs and is not 
representative of specific construction. 
 
This degree of precision is sufficient for the intended purpose, 
which is to help establish permit fees so as to fund code 
compliance activities. This BVD table provides jurisdictions 
with a simplified way to determine the estimated value of a 
building that does not rely on the permit applicant to determine 
the cost of construction. Therefore, the bidding process for a 
particular job and other associated factors do not affect the 
value of a building for determining the permit fee. Whether a 
specific project is bid at a cost above or below the computed 
value of construction does not affect the permit fee because 
the cost of related code enforcement activities is not directly 
affected by the bid process and results. 
 
Building Valuation 
 
The following building valuation data represents average 
valuations for most buildings. In conjunction with IBC Section 
109.3, this data is offered as an aid for the building official to 
determine if the permit valuation is underestimated. Again it 
should be noted that, when using this data, these are 
“average” costs based on typical construction methods for 
each occupancy group and type of construction. The average 
costs include foundation work, structural and nonstructural 

building components, electrical, plumbing, mechanical and 
interior finish material. The data is a national average and 
does not take into account any regional cost differences. As 
such, the use of Regional Cost Modifiers is subject to the 
authority having jurisdiction. 
 
Permit Fee Multiplier 
 
Determine the Permit Fee Multiplier: 

1. Based on historical records, determine the total annual 
construction value which has occurred within the 
jurisdiction for the past year. 

2. Determine the percentage (%) of the building 
department budget expected to be provided by 
building permit revenue. 

3.  
 
 
 
 

Example 
 
The building department operates on a $300,000 budget, and 
it expects to cover 75 percent of that from building permit fees. 
The total annual construction value which occurred within the 
jurisdiction in the previous year is $30,000,000. 
 
 
 
 
 

Permit Fee 
 

The permit fee is determined using the building gross area, the 
Square Foot Construction Cost and the Permit Fee Multiplier. 
 
Permit Fee = Gross Area x Square Foot Construction Cost 
  X Permit Fee Multiplier 

 
Example 
 
Type of Construction: IIB 
Area:    1st story  = 8,000 sq. ft. 

2nd story = 8,000 sq. ft. 
Height: 2 stories 
Permit Fee Multiplier = 0.0075 
Use Group: B 

1. Gross area: 
Business = 2 stories x 8,000 sq. ft. = 16,000 sq. ft. 

2. Square Foot Construction Cost: 
B/IIB = $175.70/sq. ft. 

3. Permit Fee: 
Business = 16,000 sq. ft. x $175.70/sq. ft x 0.0075 
= $21,084 

 

Bldg. Dept. Budget x (%) 
 

Total Annual Construction Value 

Permit Fee Multiplier = 

$300,000 x 75% 
 

$30,000,000 

Permit Fee Multiplier = = 0.0075 



Important Points 

 

• The BVD is not intended to apply to alterations or 
repairs to existing buildings. Because the scope of 
alterations or repairs to an existing building varies so 
greatly, the Square Foot Construction Costs table 
does not reflect accurate values for that purpose. 
However, the Square Foot Construction Costs table 
can be used to determine the cost of an addition that is 
basically a stand-alone building which happens to be 
attached to an existing building. In the case of such 
additions, the only alterations to the existing building 
would involve the attachment of the addition to the 
existing building and the openings between the 
addition and the existing building. 

 

• For purposes of establishing the Permit Fee Multiplier, 
the estimated total annual construction value for a 
given time period (1 year) is the sum of each building’s 
value (Gross Area x Square Foot Construction Cost) 
for that time period (e.g., 1 year). 
 

• The Square Foot Construction Cost does not include 
the price of the land on which the building is built. The 
Square Foot Construction Cost takes into account 
everything from foundation work to the roof structure 
and coverings but does not include the price of the 
land. The cost of the land does not affect the cost of 
related code enforcement activities and is not included 
in the Square Foot Construction Cost. 

 
Square Foot Construction Costs a, b, c 

 

Group (2018 International Building Code) IA IB IIA IIB IIIA IIIB IV VA VB 

A-1 Assembly, theaters, with stage 246.61 238.50 232.82 223.18 209.86 203.80 216.12 191.69 184.50 

A-1 Assembly, theaters, without stage 225.65 217.54 211.85 202.22 189.15 183.09 195.16 170.98 163.79 

A-2 Assembly, nightclubs 191.96 186.56 182.12 174.70 164.94 160.39 168.64 149.29 144.33 

A-2 Assembly, restaurants, bars, banquet halls 190.96 185.56 180.12 173.70 162.94 159.39 167.64 147.29 143.33 

A-3 Assembly, churches 226.69 218.58 212.89 203.26 191.60 185.54 196.20 173.43 166.24 
A-3 Assembly, general, community halls, libraries, 
museums 190.63 182.52 175.84 167.20 153.09 148.07 160.14 134.97 128.78 

A-4 Assembly, arenas 224.65 216.54 209.85 201.22 187.15 182.09 194.16 168.98 162.79 

B Business 197.81 190.62 184.70 175.70 160.65 154.63 168.95 141.15 134.99 

E Educational 209.43 202.23 196.97 188.01 175.28 166.43 181.55 153.08 148.70 

F-1 Factory and industrial, moderate hazard 117.60 112.19 105.97 101.84 91.54 87.26 97.61 75.29 70.95 

F-2 Factory and industrial, low hazard 116.60 111.19 105.97 100.84 91.54 86.26 96.61 75.29 69.95 

H-1 High Hazard, explosives 109.99 104.58 99.35 94.22 85.14 79.87 89.99 68.89 N.P. 

H234 High Hazard 109.99 104.58 99.35 94.22 85.14 79.87 89.99 68.89 63.56 

H-5 HPM 197.81 190.62 184.70 175.70 160.65 154.63 168.95 141.15 134.99 

I-1 Institutional, supervised environment 197.83 191.05 185.12 177.91 163.28 158.81 178.06 146.98 142.33 

I-2 Institutional, hospitals 330.92 323.73 317.81 308.81 292.72 N.P. 302.06 273.22 N.P. 

I-2 Institutional, nursing homes 229.68 222.49 216.58 207.57 193.53 N.P. 200.83 174.02 N.P. 

I-3 Institutional, restrained 224.86 217.67 211.75 202.75 188.96 181.94 196.00 169.45 161.29 

I-4 Institutional, day care facilities 197.83 191.05 185.12 177.91 163.28 158.81 178.06 146.98 142.33 

M Mercantile 142.95 137.54 132.11 125.68 115.38 111.83 119.62 99.73 95.77 

R-1 Residential, hotels 199.70 192.92 186.99 179.78 164.90 160.43 179.93 148.60 143.96 

R-2 Residential, multiple family 167.27 160.49 154.56 147.35 133.71 129.23 147.50 117.40 112.76 

R-3 Residential, one- and two-family d 155.84 151.61 147.83 144.09 138.94 135.27 141.72 130.04 122.46 

R-4 Residential, care/assisted living facilities 197.83 191.05 185.12 177.91 163.28 158.81 178.06 146.98 142.33 

S-1 Storage, moderate hazard 108.99 103.58 97.35 93.22 83.14 78.87 88.99 66.89 62.56 

S-2 Storage, low hazard 107.99 102.58 97.35 92.22 83.14 77.87 87.99 66.89 61.56 

U Utility, miscellaneous 85.30 80.55 75.51 71.75 64.72 60.49 68.56 51.18 48.73 

 
 

a. Private Garages use Utility, miscellaneous 
b. For shell only buildings deduct 20 percent 
c. N.P. = not permitted 
d. Unfinished basements (Group R-3) = $22.45 per sq. ft. 



FEE SCHEDULE AND VALUATION DATA FOR 
BUILDING, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING, MECHANICAL, 

SIGN AND BIKE PATH PERMITS 

An administrative investigative fee of $100 shall be assessed  
if a permit was not obtained prior to the commencement of work 

2016 BUILDING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

Minimum Fee …. ..................................................................................................   $50.00 
Contractor Registration Fee ...................................................................................  $15.00 
All Re-Inspection Fees ........................................................................................... $50.00 
Permit Cancelation Fee ................................................ $25 or 25% (whichever is greater) 

Special Inspection ....................................................................................................... $50 

 After Hours Inspection (per hr. – 2-hr. minimum).............................................. $55 

FEE SCHEDULE BASED ON IMPROVEMENT COSTS AS FOLLOWS 

 $1.00 - $3,000 .................................................................................................. $50.00 

 Each $1,000 (or part of) over $3,000 ................................................................ $10.00 

Improvement cost shall be determined by applying the following building valuation data. 
The most recent International Code Council’s Building Valuation Data may be 
viewed at  https://www.iccsafe.org/codes-tech-support/codes/code-development-
process/building-valuation-data/
Exceptions: 

 Deck Valuation Costs per Square Foot .........................................................  $20.00 

 Basement Finish Valuation Costs per Square Foot .......................................  $30.00 

 Roofing Valuation Costs per Square (100 square feet) ................................ $200.00 

 Siding Valuation Costs per Square (100 square feet) .................................. $200.00 

All other items not provided for in the Building Valuation Data shall bear reasonable 
costs to actual value, (not material costs) and are subject to the review and possible 
adjustment of the Building Official. 

PLAN REVIEWS 

 New Single Family Residential....................................................................... $50.00 

 All other residential projects ........................................................................... $25.00 

 Multi-Family, Commercial, Industrial:  ........................................  $300 or 25% of 
building permit fee, whichever is greater 

 Outside Plan Review ......................................................................... Cost times 1.2 

TEMPORARY CERTIFICATES OF OCCUPANCY 

 One and Two-family Residential ......................................................................  $75.00 

 Multi-family, Commercial, Industrial ................................................................ $250.00 

RE-OCCUPANCY (NON-RESIDENTIAL) 

 Inspection and Certificate ................................................................................. $75.00 

Other: 

Zoning Permit shall be $50.00 minimum (Signs face change, fences, driveways, and 
sheds over 100 square feet) 

Code Inspections shall be a minimum of $50.00 per inspection per trade. 

https://goo.gl/6oFbtA


2 | P a g e

BIKE PATH PERMITS 

The bike path permit is a one-time charge, at the time of issuing building permits for new 
construction of homes, multi-family, commercial, and industrial buildings. These permit 
fees shall be used to pay for the costs of installing, constructing and maintaining the bike 
paths throughout the Township. 

Fee Schedule as follows: 

 $501.00 to $10,000.............................................................................................. $35.00 

 $10,001 to $50,000.......... $30.00 + $5.00 for each $1,000, or part thereof over $10,000 

 $50,001 to $100,000 ... $50.00 + $3.50 for each $1,000, or part thereof over $50,000.00

 $100,001 and above ...... $67.50 + $1.00 for each $1,000, or part thereof over $100,000 

SECTION 6 - NEW CONSTRUCTION INSPECTIONS REQUIREMENTS 

ELECTRICAL: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

 Temporary Service, Rough Insp., Final Insp., and Permanent Service shall be
required.

 A permanent/auxiliary generator will require a final inspection.

ELECTRICAL: MULTI-FAMILY, COMMERCIAL, AND INDUSTRIAL 

 For a multiple-family structure or multi-tenant commercial or industrial buildings, a
rough and final inspection shall be required for each designed unit in such a
structure.

 For all other buildings of this class, inspections shall be required for each visit
required from the electrical inspector. The inspector shall estimate the number of
visits required.

 A separate inspection shall be required for a temporary service and final service.

MECHANICAL: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

 Rough mechanical inspection, if applicable, final mechanical inspection and gas
line, (if applicable), shall be required for each heating system. Gas line pressure
test shall also be required. A rough fireplace and final fireplace shall be required for
each heating system. A separate inspection shall be required for each cooling
system. A heating or cooling unit without a distribution system shall require one
inspection. A mobile home shall require two inspections, gas line and final.

 A permanent/auxiliary generator will require a final inspection.

MECHANICAL: MULTIPLE-FAMILY, COMMERCIAL, AND INDUSTRIAL 

 Each heating and/or cooling unit shall require one inspection. Each heating and/or
cooling unit with a distribution system shall require an additional inspection
provided, however, that a combined distribution system shall only require one
inspection. Where an underground inspection in required, an additional inspection
shall be charged per building.

 A fireplace in a multiple-family building shall also require a rough fireplace and final
fireplace inspection.

 Refrigeration units of one horsepower or greater shall require one inspection per
unit plus one inspection for each distribution system.

PLUMBING: SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL 

 Requires five (5) inspections: water /sewer service, sump line, underground
plumbing, rough plumbing and final plumbing.



3 | P a g e  
 

PLUMBING: MULTIPLE-FAMILY, COMMERCIAL, AND INDUSTRIAL 
 

 Each unit in a multiple-family structure or in a multi-tenant structure shall require a 
rough and final inspection. An additional inspection for underground plumbing shall 
be required for each unit in a strip center. A multiple-family structure or multi-tenant 
building shall require an additional inspection for underground plumbing at the rate 
of one inspection per building/unit. An additional inspection shall be required for 
water and sewer service. 

 

 All other commercial and industrial buildings shall be charged at a rate of one 
inspection for each visit required from the plumbing inspector. The inspector shall 
estimate the number of visits required. 

 
BUILDING: ALL CONSTRUCTION 
 
Building inspections shall follow the schedule below to the extent applicable: 
 

 Basement Footing (setback per zoning req.) = before footing is poured 
 

 Foundation Wall Reinforcement (when required) 
 

 Backfill = before foundation wall is backfilled and before the slab floors are poured 
with sill plates in place and anchor bolts. 

 

 Garage Footing = before footing is poured. 
 

 Garage slab = prior to the pouring of concrete slab with sub base and forms 
installed 

 

 Basement Slab = prior to pouring of concrete slab with sub base and vapor barrier 
in place and provisions for a passive radon system have been installed. 

 

 Rough = before any framing is covered and after rough electrical, plumbing, and 
mechanical inspections have been approved, and any masonry flashing has been 
installed. 

 

 Insulation = prior to covering insulation. 
 

 Drywall = before drywall is taped. 
 

 Fireplace = Masonry - when damper and first flue liner are in place. 
 

 Porch slab - prior to pouring concrete slab with forms installed. 
 

 Brick Flashing 
 

 Final = after final electrical, mechanical, and plumbing have been approved. 
 

 Lot Grade = verifying lot grade per grade certificate and master grading plan if 
within larger development and prior to lot stabilization. 

 

 Final Certificate of Occupancy = after all inspections are approved and prior to 
occupancy. May take approximately 5 business days to process. 

 

 Lot stabilization = after lot grade is approved to insure disturbed ground is 
stabilized to prevent soil erosion. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 | P a g e  
 

 
2016 ELECTRICAL PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 

 
 
Administration Fee (non-refundable) ........................................................................... $25 
Minimum Permit Fee ................................................................................................... $50 
Exception – Re-connection for Furnace/AC & Signs .................................................... $30 
Permit Cancelation Fee ................................................ $25 or 25% (whichever is greater) 
 
 
Special Inspection ....................................................................................................... $50 

 After Hours Inspection (per hr. – 2-hr. minimum).............................................. $55 
 
 
Circuits 

 General (Lighting/Power) Dedicated/Special Equipment (each) ....................... $10 
 
Lighting Fixtures (up to 25) .......................................................................................... $10 
 
Pools ........................................................................................................................... $50 
 
Service (New, changes, etc.) 

 Up to 400 AMP ................................................................................................ $50 

 Over 400 AMP ................................................................................................. $65 

 Interruptible ...................................................................................................... $35 
 
Feeders/Bus Ducts 

 First 100’ .......................................................................................................... $20 

 Each Additional 100’ ........................................................................................ $10 
 
Transfer Switches (Automatic/Manual) 

 Up to 100 AMP ................................................................................................ $30 

 Over 100 AMP ................................................................................................. $45 
 
Motors/Generator/Power Units/Inverters/Wind Turbines/HVAC Units 

 Up to 20 HP or KVA ......................................................................................... $25 

 21-50 HP or KVA ............................................................................................. $30 

 Over 50 HP or KVA .......................................................................................... $35 
 
Fire Alarms 

 Alarm Devices (Horns/Strobes) ........................................................................ $10 

 Heat/Smoke Detectors ....................................................................................... $4 

 Panel ............................................................................................................... $15 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
 

2016 PLUMBING PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 
 
Administration Fee (non-refundable) ........................................................................... $25 
Minimum Permit Fee ................................................................................................... $50 
Exception – Water Heater Replacement ...................................................................... $30 
Permit Cancelation Fee ................................................ $25 or 25% (whichever is greater) 
 
 
Special Inspection ....................................................................................................... $50 

 After Hours Inspection (per hr. – 2-hr. minimum).............................................. $55 
 
 
All Fixtures (per fixture) ............................................................................................... $10 

 Including sumps, drains, stacks, hose bibbs, sinks, water closets  
 and all water connected appliances 
 
Residential Water Heater ............................................................................................ $30 
Commercial Water Heater ........................................................................................... $50 
 
Backflow Preventer  

 Up to 2” ............................................................................................................ $10 

 Over 2” ............................................................................................................. $30 
 
Water Distribution (Inside of building) 

 Up to 2” ............................................................................................................ $25 

 Over 2” ............................................................................................................. $35 
 
Water Service (Outside of building) 

 Up to 2” ............................................................................................................ $25 

 Over 2” ............................................................................................................. $35 
 
Back Flow Preventer for Irrigation ................................................................................ $50 
 
Sub Soil Drainage System ........................................................................................... $25 
 
Sewer & Drains (Sanitary/Storm) 

 Up to 8” ............................................................................................................ $30 

 Over 8” ............................................................................................................. $50 
 
Medical Gas System .................................................................................................... $50 
 
Contractor Registration ................................................................................................ $15 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
 

2016 MECHANICAL PERMIT FEE SCHEDULE 
 
 
Administration Fee (non-refundable) ........................................................................... $25 
Minimum Permit Fee ................................................................................................... $50 
Exception – Water Heater Replacement ...................................................................... $30 
Permit Cancelation Fee ................................................ $25 or 25% (whichever is greater) 
 
 
Special Inspection ....................................................................................................... $50 

 After Hours Inspection (per hr. – 2-hr. minimum).............................................. $55 
 
 
New Fire Sprinkler System Plan Review ............................................................... $300.00 
 
Fire Sprinkler Limited Area Plan Review (up to 20 heads ..................................... $100.00 
(Add-On, Replacement or Alteration) 
 
Fire sprinkler Limited Area Plan Review (> 20 heads) ...................... $100.00 + $.75/head 
(Add-On, Replacement or Alteration) 
 
Fire Sprinkler Hydrostat Test ................................................................................ $100.00 
 
Kitchen Hood System Plan Review and Wet Test ................................................ $125.00 
 
Paint Booth Plan Review and Test ....................................................................... $125.00 
 
Furnace/Boiler ........................................................................................................ $50.00 
 
Resident Water Heater ........................................................................................... $30.00 
 
Swimming Pool Heater/Boiler ................................................................................. $40.00 
 
Commercial Water Heater ...................................................................................... $50.00 
 
Make-up Air Unit/Air Handlers ................................................................................ $40.00 
 
Gas Fired Appliances ............................................................................................. $30.00 
(including but not limited to: gas, logs, lights, pre-fab units 
 
Wall Furnaces/Room Heater .................................................................................. $30.00 
 
Wood/Coal Burning Equipment .............................................................................. $50.00 
 
 
 
Kitchen/Bath Exhaust Fans .................................................................................... $25.00 
 
Heat Pumps/Air Conditioners (including split system) ............................................. $30.00 
 
Humidifiers/Air Cleaners ......................................................................................... $20.00 
 
Duct/Additions, Alterations – Residential ................................................................ $25.00 
 
Duct/Additions, Alterations – Commercial ............................................................... $30.00 
 
Residential Duct System ........................................................................................ $40.00 
 
Commercial Duct System ....................................................................................... $60.00 
 
Fire Dampers (each) ............................................................................................... $10.00 
 
Chimney Damper ................................................................................................... $10.00 
 
V.A.V. Boxes .......................................................................................................... $20.00 
 
Unit Heaters/PTAL Units ........................................................................................ $20.00 



7 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 
 
GAS/PROCESS PIPING 
 
New Installation (each opening).............................................................................. $10.00 
 
Gas Pressure Test.................................................................................................. $30.00 
 
LP Gas System & Storage ...................................................................................... $50.00 
 
Commercial Gas Piping .......................................................................................... $45.00 
 
Residential Unit/Hydronic Hearing .......................................................................... $30.00 
 
 
Chillers ................................................................................................................... $35.00 
 
Cooling Towers ...................................................................................................... $35.00 
 
Compressors .......................................................................................................... $35.00 
 
Generators ............................................................................................................. $35.00 
 



 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI  

Resolution No. 2019-13 
 

Professional Service Fees for Township, 
Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department 

 
 
WHEREAS, on April 17, 2018 the Charter Township of Ypsilanti adopted 
Resolution No. 2018-10 Professional Service Fees for Township, Attorney, 
Planner, Engineer and Fire Department, which fee schedule has from time to time 
been amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti wishes to amend Resolution No. 
2018-10, Professional Service Fees for Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer 
and Fire Department inclusive of all subsequent fee resolution amendments 
approved since adoption of Resolution No. 2018-10; and 
 
WHEREAS, the attached Professional Services Fees for Township, Attorney, 
Planner, Engineer and Fire Department incorporate all of these changes. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
specifically adopts and incorporates by reference the attached Professional 
Services Fees for Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department with 
hourly rate exhibits in its entirety. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that any previous Professional Service Fees not in 
conformity with those contained in the attached fee schedule shall be repealed. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Professional Service Fees for Township, 
Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department shall become effective 
immediately. 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

OFFICE OF COMMUNITY STANDARDS 
 

Building Safety  Planning & Zoning  Ordinance Enforcement  Police Services 
 
 

7200 S. Huron River Drive    Ypsilanti, MI  48197    (734) 485-4393 

 

 
To:  Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, OCS Director 
  Charlotte Wilson, Planning & Development Coordinator 
  Nancy Wyrybkowski, Executive Coordinator 
 

Re: Request to approve Resolution No. 2019-13, Professional Service Fees for 
Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer and Fire Department 

 

Copy: McLain & Winters, Township Attorneys 
 

Date:  March 22, 2019 
 
Please accept the enclosed resolution and proposed Professional Services fee schedule for 
planning and development activities for inclusion in the Board of Trustees April 2, 2019 meeting 
agenda. 
 
The schedule establishes fees and hourly rates for professional services provided by Office of 
Community Standards and Fire Department staff, the Township Attorney, planning consultant 
Carlisle Wortman Associates, and engineering consultants OHM Advisors and Stantec 
Consulting Services. 
 
The last general revision of the fee schedule was adopted on April 17, 2018 and represented a 
total overhaul of the schedule and format.  The only changes for 2019 are adjusted hourly rates 
for township staff and professional consultants based upon cost increases incurred this year, 
and a $50 increase in the cost for a development pre-application meeting due to compensate 
engineering time. 
 
There are no new fee categories. 
 
Thank you for your thoughtful consideration.  Please contact us with questions or concerns so 
that they can be addressed prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
Enclosures: Resolution No. 2019-13 

Professional Services Fee Schedule with 2019 Hourly Rates Exhibits 



Professional Services Fees for

Township, Attorney, Planner, Engineer 

and Fire Department 

Effective April 2, 2019

- Fee Schedule 1-8

- Hourly Rate Schedules
• Carlisle Wortman Associates 9

10

  11
• OHM Advisors
• Stantec Consulting
• Township Staff & 

Attorney       12    



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Pre‐Application Meeting $700 N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Rezoning $1,500 $1,500 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,500
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $2,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $2,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $2,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $1,200
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $1,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $1,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres

2019 Fee Schedule

Planned Development 
Stage I and Rezoning

$1,500 + $20 per acre

Sketch $500

Administrative $100

Pre‐Application Meeting

Rezoning

Preliminary Site Plan Review

Full $500

Page 1



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Special Land Use/Uses 
Subject to Special 

Conditions (other than 
group day care home)

$1,000 $1,000 

Group day care home $100 N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Residential $125 N/A

Non‐Residential $500 N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Regular Meeting N/A N/A
Special Meeting $1,100 N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Regular Meeting N/A N/A
Special Meeting $1,100 N/A

Zoning Board of Appeals Application

Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting

Planning Commission Meeting

Special Land Use/Uses Subject to Special Conditions

Page 2



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit

Full $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 3rd 
review.

Sketch $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 3rd 
review.

Administrative $100

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 3rd 
review.

Planned Development $500

1.5% of cost for infrastructure improvements including water, sanitary, 
storm, retention/detention basins, grading, earth balance and paving 
(minimum $2,000). With costs over $2,000,000 the engineer may reduce 
the rate through estimated hourly review cost. A mandatory meeting shall 
be scheduled after the 2nd review (if not approved) before submittal of 3rd 
review.

Detailed Engineering Review*
*Fees cover two (2) detailed engineering reviews. A mandatory meeting will be scheduled to review design specifics after the 2nd
detailed engineering review (if not approved) before submittal of a 3rd detailed engineering review. Township engineer, Township staff
representative(s), developer, and project engineer must be in attendance for the mandatory meeting.

Page 3



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
less than two (2) acres: $1,000
two (2) acre to ten (10) acres: $1,500
over ten (10) acres to forty (40) acres: $2,500
over forty (40) acres to 100 acres: $3,500
greater than 100 acres: $3,500 + $30 per acre over 100 acres
less than two (2) acres: $2,000
two (2) acre to ten (10) acres: $2,500
over ten (10) acres to forty (40) acres: $3,500
over forty (40) acres to 100 acres: $5,000
greater than 100 acres: $5,000 + $30 per acre over 100 acres

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,500
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $2,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $2,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $2,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $1,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $1,200
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $1,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $1,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres
less than one (1) acre: $3,000
one (1) acre to five (5) acres: $4,000
over five (5) acres to ten (10) acres: $5,500
greater than ten (10) acres: $5,500 + $50 per acre over ten (10) acres

Planned Development 
Stage II

$1,000 + $20 per acre

Administrative $100

Sketch $500

Final Site Plan Review

Full $500

Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control 

Inspections
N/A

Soil Erosion and 
Sedimentation Control 

Review
$100

Soil Erosion and Sedimentation Control Review and Inspections

Page 4



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Full N/A $2,500 

Sketch N/A $2,500 
Administrative N/A $2,500 

Planned Development N/A $2,500 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Pre‐Construction Meeting $575 $500 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Earth Balancing and 

Excavation
$300 + $20 per acre $500 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Private Road Review $500  $2,000 

Private Road Inspection N/A $1,000 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Future Land Use 
Map/Master Plan 

Amendment
$1,500  $1,500 

Private Road

Future Land Use Map/Master Plan Amendment

Development Agreement

Pre‐Construction Requirements and Meeting

Earth Balancing and Excavation

Page 5



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Miscellaneous 

Administrative Review 
$100  $1,000 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Miscellaneous Engineering 

Review 
$100  $1,000 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Landscape, Bike 

Path/Sidewalk, Open Space 
Site Inspections

$150 per inspection N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Miscellaneous Inspection $50 per inspection N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Residential $50  N/A

Non‐Residential $100  N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Zoning Permit $50  N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Sign Permit $25 + $50 per sign face N/A

Zoning Verification Letter

Zoning Permit

Sign Permit

Miscellaneous Engineering Review (Structural/Traffic/ect.)

Landscape, Bike Path/Sidewalk, Open Space Site Inspections

Miscellaneous Inspection

Miscellaneous Administrative Review

Page 6



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Woodlands $100  $1,000 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Wetlands $100  $1,000 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Single Address $50 per lot (1 or 2 addresses) N/A

Residential Development $25 per lot (3 or more addresses) N/A

Re‐Addressing 
Development

$475 + $25 per lot N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit

Land Division, Combination, 
and/or Boundary Change

$25 per lot N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Collection Box Application 

Fee
$200  N/A

Cash Surety $250  N/A

Annual Permit Renewal Fee $50  N/A

Code Violation Response 
Fee

$75  N/A

Collection Box Permit

Woodlands

Wetlands

Addressing

Land Division, Combination, and/or Boundary Change

Page 7



Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Junk Yard License 
Application Fee

$150  N/A

Junk Yard Annual 
Inspections

$150  N/A

Junk Yard Re‐Inspections $50 per inspection N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit

Liquor Annual Inspections $150  N/A

Liquor Re‐Inspections $50 per inspection N/A

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Smoking Lounge Application 

Fee
$200  N/A

Smoking Lounge Annual 
Inspections

$150  N/A

Smoking Lounge Re‐
Inspections

$50 per inspection N/A

Smoking Lounge Zoning 
Compliance

N/A $180 

Non‐Refundable Fee Refundable Deposit
Business License Fee $200  N/A

Fees shall be paid prior to processing applications and/or permits.

Smoking Lounge Permit

Business License

Junk Yard Permit

Liquor License Inspection

Outstanding fees, bills, and deposits shall be paid prior to advancing project in the development review process.
Site plan review fees paid are for one (1) review by Township, Planning, Engineering and Fire unless otherwise noted. 
Effective Date: 2‐24‐92  Amended:3‐21‐95; 6‐30‐95; 2‐1‐97; 2‐4‐97; 2‐28‐97; 6‐17‐97; 9‐15‐98; 7‐22‐99; 5‐18‐00; 12‐18‐01; 12‐12‐02; 3‐10‐04; 5‐1‐05; 12‐8‐05; 12‐20‐05; 4‐4‐06; 01‐08; 1‐5‐09; 2‐
14‐14; 1‐5‐15; 9‐1‐16; 04‐17‐18; 04-02-19

Page 8



Richard K. Carlisle, President    Douglas J. Lewan, Executive Vice President    John L. Enos, Principal 

   David Scurto, Principal   Benjamin R. Carlisle, Principal   Sally M. Elmiger, Principal    Craig Strong, Principal    R. Donald Wortman, Principal  

Laura K. Kreps, Associate     Paul Montagno, Associate 

MUNICIPAL CONSULTATION
2019

Personnel Hourly Rate 

Principal $135 
(R. Carlisle) 

Principal $110 
(B. Carlisle) 

Senior Associate $100 

Graphics (GIS) Technician $75 

Support Staff $65 





OHM ADVISORS 
2019 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE 

Professional Engineer IV/Architect IV $175.00 

Professional Engineer III/Architect III $158.00 

Professional Engineer II/Architect II $145.00 

Professional Engineer I/Architect I $133.00 

Graduate Engineer IV $138.00 

Graduate Engineer III $130.00 

Graduate Engineer II $125.00 

Graduate Engineer I $115.00 

Graduate Architect III/Landscape Architect III $125.00 

Graduate Architect II/Landscape Architect II $105.00 

Graduate Architect I/Landscape Architect I $95.00 

Technician IV $132.00 

Technician III $115.00 

Technician II $98.00 

Technician I $78.00 

Engineering/Architectural Aide $62.00 

Professional Surveyor III $158.00 

Professional Surveyor II $145.00 

Professional Surveyor I $132.00 

Graduate Surveyor $113.00 

Surveyor III $110.00 

Surveyor II $102.00 

Surveyor I $82.00 

Surveyor Aide $60.00 

Planner IV $158.00 

Planner III $135.00 

Planner II $115.00 

Planner I $90.00 

Planner Aide $62.00 

Graphic Designer $108.00 

Administrative Support $68.00 

Clerical Aide $55.00 

Principal $200.00 

Sr. Associate $190.00 

Associate $178.00 

Rates as reflected subject to review and adjustment on an annual basis. 

2019 Public Rates  11/14/18 



Page 1 of 1

12/11/2017https://spark.ohm-advisors.com/files/project_management/contracts/2018_public_hourly_rates_finalpdf~1



V:\2075\promotion\General Proposals\2019\Rate Table\2019 Fee Schedule-Table 1.doc 2075 - EI 

2019 Fee Schedule 

Title 
Hourly 
Rate Description 

Construction Technician 
CAD Technician 

$87 - $105 

• Junior-level position
• Independently carries out assignments of limited scope using standard procedures,

methods, and techniques
• Assists senior staff in carrying out more advanced procedures
• Completed work is reviewed for feasibility and soundness of judgment
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program or equivalent
• Generally, four years’ work experience

Engineering Assistant 
Engineer-In-Training 
Construction Technician 

$110 - $121 

• Fully qualified professional position
• Carries out assignments requiring general familiarity within a broad field of the

respective profession
• Makes decisions by using a combination of standard methods and techniques
• Actively participates in planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
• Works independently to interpret information and resolve difficulties
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, six years experience

CAD Manager 
Designer 
Process Designer 
Project Engineer 
Senior Project Engineer 
Survey Manager 
Construction Technician 
Senior Civil Engineer 
Environmental Engineer 
Survey Crew Chief 

$131- $147 

• First level supervisor of first complete level of specialization
• Provides applied professional knowledge and initiative in planning and coordinating work

programs
• Adapts established guidelines as necessary to address unusual issues
• Decisions accepted as technically accurate, however may on occasion be reviewed for

soundness of judgment 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, nine years’ experience

Associate 
Senior Associate 
Project Manager 
Field Services Manager 
Landscape Architect $151 - $166 

• Highly-specialized technical professional or supervisor of groups of professionals
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of

expertise
• Participates in short and long range planning to ensure the achievement of objectives
• Makes responsible decisions on all matters, including policy recommendations, work

methods, and financial controls associated with large expenditures
• Reviews and evaluates technical work
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, ten years’ experience with extensive, broad experience

Principal 

$184 - $227 

• Senior level consultant or management function
• Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of

expertise
• Independently conceives programs and problems for investigation
• Participates in discussions to ensure the achievement of program and/or project

objectives
• Makes responsible decisions on expenditures, including large sums or implementation

of major programs and/or projects
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent
• Generally, fifteen years’ experience with extensive professional and management

experience
 Survey Crew $160 

$225 
1 person crew 
2 person crew 



 

V:\2075\promotion\General Proposals\2018\Rate Table\2018 Fee Schedule-Table 1.doc                                                          2075 - EI 

2018 Fee Schedule 
 

 
 

Title 
Hourly 
Rate Description 

Construction Technician  
CAD Technician 

$80 - $95 

• Junior-level position 
• Independently carries out assignments of limited scope using standard procedures, 

methods, and techniques 
• Assists senior staff in carrying out more advanced procedures 
• Completed work is reviewed for feasibility and soundness of judgment 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program or equivalent 
• Generally, four years’ work experience 
 Engineering Assistant 

Engineer-In-Training 
Construction Technician 

$102 - $115 

• Fully qualified professional position 
• Carries out assignments requiring general familiarity within a broad field of the 

respective profession 
• Makes decisions by using a combination of standard methods and techniques 
• Actively participates in planning to ensure the achievement of objectives 
• Works independently to interpret information and resolve difficulties 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent 
• Generally, six years experience 
 CAD Manager 

Designer 
Process Designer 
Project Engineer 
Senior Project Engineer 
Survey Manager 
Construction Technician 
Senior Civil Engineer 
Environmental Engineer 
Survey Crew Chief 

$121- $137 

• First level supervisor of first complete level of specialization 
• Provides applied professional knowledge and initiative in planning and coordinating work 

programs 
• Adapts established guidelines as necessary to address unusual issues 
• Decisions accepted as technically accurate, however may on occasion be reviewed for 

soundness of judgment 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent 
• Generally, nine years’ experience 

Associate 
Senior Associate 
Project Manager 
Field Services Manager 
Landscape Architect $144 - $180 

• Highly-specialized technical professional or supervisor of groups of professionals 
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of 

expertise 
• Participates in short and long range planning to ensure the achievement of objectives 
• Makes responsible decisions on all matters, including policy recommendations, work 

methods, and financial controls associated with large expenditures 
• Reviews and evaluates technical work 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent 
• Generally, ten years’ experience with extensive, broad experience 
 Principal 

$180 - $210 

• Senior level consultant or management function 
• Recognized as an authority in a specific field with qualifications of significant value 
• Provides multidiscipline knowledge to deliver innovative solutions in related field of 

expertise 
• Independently conceives programs and problems for investigation 
• Participates in discussions to ensure the achievement of program and/or project 

objectives 
• Makes responsible decisions on expenditures, including large sums or implementation 

of major programs and/or projects 
• Graduate from an appropriate post-secondary program, with credentials or equivalent 
• Generally, fifteen years’ experience with extensive professional and management 

experience 
 Survey Crew $150 

$220 
1 person crew 
2 person crew 

 



2019

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP

HOURLY COST RECOVERY RATES 

$60

$43

$35

$30

$47

Fire Marshal 

Planning & Development Coordinator 

Clerical Support  

Ordinance Officer 

Ordinance Administrator

Building Inspector

Chief Building Official

Community Standards Director

Township Attorney
(development agreement rate)

$58

$54

$63

$200



2018 

YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 

HOURLY COST RECOVERY RATES 

 

 

Township Attorney     $200 

Fire Marshal      $58 

Planning & Development Coordinator  $40 

Clerical Support      $25 

Ordinance Officer     $26 

Building Inspector     $42 

Community Standards Director   $55 



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 
To:  Karen Roe, Clerk 
 

From:  Michael Radzik, Director 
  Office of Community Standards 
 

Re: Request to authorize and sign agreement with the Washtenaw County Road 
Commission for the installation of traffic calming devices on Edison Ave in the 
amount of $61,950  budgeted in General Fund account 101-446.000-818.022. 

 

Date:  March 25, 2019 
 

Copy To: Javonna Neel, Accounting Director 
  Doug Winters, Attorney 

 
Residents have successfully completed the petition process for the installation of traffic calming 
devices known as speed humps on Edison Ave between Packard Rd and Greenside St.  Petition 
forms were submitted to the Washtenaw County Road Commission and signatures were 
verified as being consistent with property ownership records maintained by the township 
assessor’s office. 
 
Pursuant to the Washtenaw County Road Commission’s Neighborhood Traffic Management 
Program Policy and Procedure, the township is responsible for the cost of installation.  The road 
commission has submitted a proposed agreement to fund the installation of these devices 
based upon engineering estimates as follows: 
 
Edison Ave between Packard Rd and Greenside St 

 9 speed humps, signage and pavement markings 

 $61,950 

 78% approval (47 of 60 affected properties) 
 
I have enclosed copies of the engineering estimate and proposed location layouts for the 
project.  Funding for these projects is budgeted in the General Fund Highways & Streets Fund in 
account 101-446.000-818.022.   
 
Please contact me with any questions or concerns.  Thank you for your continued support of 
traffic calming efforts in our neighborhoods. 



AGREEMENT BETWEEN  
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI AND 

THE WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this ______ day of ____________, 2019 between 
the Board of the Charter Township of Ypsilanti (the “Township”) and the Board of Washtenaw 
County Road Commissioners (the “Road Commission”). 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter Township of Ypsilanti desires to install nine (9) speed humps on Edison 
Avenue between Packard Road and Greenside Avenue (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, proper authority is provided to the parties of this Agreement under the provisions of 
Act 51 of Public Acts of 1951 as amended; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Road Commission will prepare bid documents for the Project, including plan 
preparation and project bidding; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Township shall promptly reimburse the Road Commission upon receipt of any 
invoices for all costs and expenses attributed to the Project; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT AGREED that the Township will pay the Road Commission for all actual 
costs incurred associated with the construction of the Project estimated to be $61,950.00. 
 
IT IS FURTHER UNDERSTOOD that the Charter Township of Ypsilanti will be a named 
insured on the Washtenaw County Road Commission’s coverage for liability for the activities 
described above. The Road Commission will submit a certificate of insurance evidencing such 
coverage to the Township Clerk prior to implementation of services under the contract.  Each 
party to this contract shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its employees and agents. 
         

 
AGREEMENT SUMMARY 

Estimated Cost 
 
Installation of nine speed humps on Edison Avenue            $61,950.00. 
 
FOR YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP: 
 
___________________________________ 
Brenda L. Stumbo, Supervisor 

____________________________ Witness 

 
___________________________________ 
Karen Lovejoy Roe, Clerk 

 
____________________________ Witness 

 
FOR WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION: 
 
___________________________________ 
Douglas E. Fuller, Chair 

____________________________ Witness 

 
___________________________________ 
Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Managing Director 

 
____________________________ Witness 

 



Project: Speed Hump Installation
Location: Edison Ave, Ypsilanti Twp
Date: 03/25/2019

ITEM 
CODE DESCRIPTION QUANTITY UNIT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT NOTES

SPEED HUMP INSTALLATION 9 EA $4,700.00 $42,300.00 Contractor Install
PVMT MKGS INSTALLATION 9 EA $500.00 $4,500.00 Contractor Install
TRAFFIC SIGNS 20 EA $310.00 $6,200.00 WCRC Install

SUBTOTAL $53,000.00
CE/INCID 15% $7,950.00 Eng./Inspect. Costs
CONST EST $60,950.00

TRAFFIC CONTROL LS $1,000.00 Contractor Cost

PROJECT TOTAL: $61,950.00

PRELIMINARY ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE  



0 200.00

4,800

NOTE: Parcels may not be to scale.

1:

800.0
The information contained in this cadastral map is used 
to locate, identify and inventory parcels of land in 
Washtenaw County for appraisal and taxing  purposes 
only and is not to be construed as a "survey description". 
The information is provided with the understanding that 
the conclusions drawn from such  information are solely 
the responsibility of the user. Any assumption of legal 
status of this data is hereby disclaimed.

© 2013 Washtenaw County
THIS MAP REPRESENTS PARCELS ATTHE TIME OF PRINTING.  THE OFFICIAL PARCEL TAX MAPS ARE MAINTAINED SOLELY BY THE WASHTENAW COUNTY
EQUALIZATION DEPARTMENT AND CAN BE OBTAINED BY CONTACTING THAT OFFICE AT 734-222-6662.

400.0

Feet

11/12/2018





Support Parcel Number Street Number Street Name Street Suffix Rental Name Owner Address Display String City State Zip

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-022 2506 BURNS ST NO ISSA, MOHAMMAD N & LUBNA K ATWAH 2506 BURNS ST YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-442-020 2480 DRAPER AVE NO BOEHK, JAMES & LINDA 2480 DRAPER AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-020 3 EDISON AVE No CROSBY, WILLIAM 3 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-021 9 EDISON AVE No SCHLOSSER, PAMELA N 9 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-023 21 EDISON AVE No GREGG, KATHRYN A 21 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-442-019 24 EDISON AVE Yes BANDYOPADHYAN, KARUNA KUMAR 938 COLONY DR SALINE MI 48176

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-024 27 EDISON AVE No STEWART, RACHEL LYNN 27 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-025 33 EDISON AVE No MUEHL-MILLER, DANIEL 33 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-026 39 EDISON AVE No MILLER, BRYAN & MARY A 39 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-027 45 EDISON AVE No HAYWOOD, WILLIAM J 45 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-028 51 EDISON AVE No MYER, SCOTT 51 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-029 57 EDISON AVE Yes ISSA, SAID 2900 GOLFSIDE, STE. 2 Ann Arbor MI 48108

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-030 63 EDISON AVE No RILEY, JASON & JENNIFER 63 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-031 75 EDISON AVE No BALTIC, JOHN D 75 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-440-037 80 EDISON AVE No WALCH, NICOLE R. 80 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-032 85 EDISON AVE No ROUNSIFER, MARY ELLEN 55 HILLCREST YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-033 105 EDISON AVE No JACKSON, EMMA 105 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-034 117 EDISON AVE No HARTENSTEIN, MELISSA 117 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-439-017 130 EDISON AVE No COPE, LORA 130 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-036 141 EDISON AVE No HAMLIN TRUST, DUANE & DOROTHY 141 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-305-037 155 EDISON AVE No HAYWOOD, RYAN 155 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-023 231 EDISON AVE No MUNIR, SHAHID &  AYESHA 231 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-024 237 EDISON AVE No NORMAN TRUST, MANUEL & MARY JUNE 237 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-162-007 240 EDISON AVE No DUNN, M SCOTT & CHERYL T 240 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-025 243 EDISON AVE No HINCHCLIFF, JAMES & DORIS 243 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-026 249 EDISON AVE No FRIEND TRUST, MARY A 249 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-028 271 EDISON AVE No LIABENOW, JONATHAN K. 271 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-033 305 EDISON AVE No MCNITT, SARAH 305 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-010 314 EDISON AVE No MCCLURE, MEGAN 314 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-034 319 EDISON AVE No BALLIOS TRUST, JOHN G 319 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-035 323 EDISON AVE No WORK TRUSTEE, STEWART 323 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-008 328 EDISON AVE No KELSEY, LEE JAY & DOROTHY 328 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-036 329 EDISON AVE No SHUEY, MARIAN R. 329 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-007 332 EDISON AVE No KING, FLOYD J & BARBARA 332 EDISON YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-037 333 EDISON AVE No JENNINGS, GERALD L. 333 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197



Support Parcel Number Street Number Street Name Street Suffix Rental Name Owner Address Display String City State Zip

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-038 339 EDISON AVE No GANNON, CAROL JEAN 339 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-005 340 EDISON AVE No SPRAGUE, EDWARD D. 340 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-039 343 EDISON AVE No BYKS, STEVEN S 343 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-004 344 EDISON AVE No MCKAY,  EUGENE & JOAN 344 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-207-001 345 EDISON AVE No WELLS, VALERIE J. 345 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-003 350 EDISON AVE No PAPPAS, ANDREW 350 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-002 360 EDISON AVE No HERRING, JOSHUA M. & JESSICA L. 360 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-131-001 366 EDISON AVE No BEVER, CYNTHIA 366 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-205-012 373 EDISON AVE No FINCH TRUST, DIANE & JOYCE BLOMGREN 373 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-162-006 2447 MIDVALE ST NO MELLBERG, RAYMOND & MYRA 2447 MIDVALE ST YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-205-001 2541 PACKARD RD NO ENGIN, BRIGITTE 2541 PACKARD RD YPSILANTI MI 48197

Owner signed support K -11-07-161-008 310 SENATE AVE NO MASTERS TRUST, CATHERINE M. 310 SENATE AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-305-022 15 EDISON AVE No CLINANSMITH, KENNETH 15 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-305-035 129 EDISON AVE No PECK, STEPHEN  C. 129 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-207-027 257 EDISON AVE No LUNDY, RALPH J. 257 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-161-010 274 EDISON AVE No PEREZ DIAZ, DELISSA MARILYS 290 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-207-029 285 EDISON AVE No HAMILTON, WALTER & NANCY 285 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-161-009 290 EDISON AVE No HOPPS, DELSA PEREZ 290 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-207-032 303 EDISON AVE No LUCAS, MARTHA A. 303 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-131-011 306 EDISON AVE No BRYAN, MARGARET 306 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-131-009 324 EDISON AVE No BERMAN, EDWARD & SHWU-SHYA 324 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-131-006 336 EDISON AVE No BROWER, PATRICK J. 336 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-207-002 353 EDISON AVE No DUNN, PETER & KIM 353 EDISON AVE YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-441-019 2460 MERRILL ST NO SHAVER, ANDREW A 2460 MERRILL YPSILANTI MI 48197

No Signature Submitted K -11-07-131-020 2449 VALLEY DR NO WILKENS, ROBERTY L. 2449 VALLEY DR YPSILANTI MI 48197

support obtained 47 78.3%

support needed 45 75.0%



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #6

April 2, 2019 
AMOUNTS ROUNDED UP TO THE NEAREST DOLLAR 

101 - GENERAL OPERATIONS FUND Total Increase $168,662.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $947.00

Net Revenues $947.00

Expenditures: Salaries Pay Out - PTO & Sick 101-253-000-708.004 $880.00

FICA 101-253-000-715.000 $67.00
Net Expenditures $947.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $111,740.00

Net Revenues $111,740.00

Expenditures: Equipment 101-774-000-977.000 $111,740.00

Net Expenditures $111,740.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 101-000-000-699.000 $55,975.00

Net Revenues $55,975.00

Expenditures: Equipment 101-774-000-977.000 $55,975.00

Net Expenditures $55,975.00

Request to increase budget for PTO payout at 75% of the hours requested.  This will be funded by an Appropriation 
of Prior Year Fund Balance.

Request to increase budget for the purchase of a Toro Groundsmaster 5910 mower for parks and grounds. This 
will be funded by an Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance. 

Request to increase budget for the purchase of a Ford F550 and Arbortech 11' Chipper Body  that will be used in 
parks/grounds and as a back up for Environmental Services. The $69,969 purchase will be shared 80%  ($55,975) 
General Fund - Parks & Grounds and 20% ($13,994) Environmental Services Fund. The 80%  will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance from the General Fund. 

1 of 2



CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI
 2019 BUDGET AMENDMENT #6

April 2, 2019 

212 - BIKE, SIDEWALK, REC, ROADS GENERAL FUND (BSRII) Total Increase $9,867.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 212-000-000-699.000 $9,867.00

Net Revenues $9,867.00

Expenditures: Equipment 212-212-000-977.000 $9,867.00

Net Expenditures $9,867.00

226 - ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FUND Total Increase $13,994.00

Revenues: Prior Year Fund Balance 226-000-000-699.000 $13,994.00

Net Revenues $13,994.00

Expenditures: Equipment 226-226-000-977.000 $13,994.00
Net Expenditures $13,994.00

Request to increase the budget for the purchase of a Bobcat 36" convertible tree spade. This will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance. 

Request to increase budget for the purchase of a Ford F550 and Arbortech 11' Chipper Body that will be used in 
parks/grounds and as a back up for Environmental Services. The $69,969 purchase will be shared 80%  ($55,975) 
General Fund - Parks & Grounds and 20% ($13,994) Environmental Services Fund. The 20%  will be funded by an 
Appropriation of Prior Year Fund Balance from Environmental Service Fund.

2 of 2



Motion to Amend the 2019 Budget (#6)  

 

 

 

Move to increase the General Fund budget by $168,662 to $9,706,217and approve the 

department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Bike, Sidewalk, Rec, Roads, General Fund II budget by $9,867 to 

$1,635,412 and approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

Move to increase the Environmental Service Fund budget by $13,994 to $3,031,023 and 

approve the department line item changes as outlined. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

AUTHORIZATIONS AND BIDS 

 

 

























Page 1 of 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 

 
To:   Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Accept the proposal of Comcast for the installation of Ethernet Network Service 
between 9 Township locations budgeted in account 101.266.000.857.100 with a 60 
month agreement and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign 
necessary agreements upon legal counsel review. 

 

Date:   2019-Mar-22 
 

 
On the February 19th Township Board of Trustees meeting the Township Board authorized Computer 
Support to seek proposals for improving the connectivity Township facilities. 
  
The bid was posted on MITN and the Township received proposals from three service providers as listed 
below. 

Service Provider Term Speed* OTC MRC TCO** 

ACD 60 1000Mbps/1000Mbps $298,832 $2,475 $447,332 

ACD 120 1000Mbps/1000Mbps $298,831 $1,944 $532,111 

ACD 60 1000Mbps/1000Mbps $0 $9,122 $547,320 

ACD 120 1000Mbps/1000Mbps $0 $6,231 $747,720 

Comcast 60 700Mbps/100Mbps $40,930 $3,202 $233,035 

Convergia 60 100Mbps/100Mbps $8,000 $5,990 $367,400 
*Speed is “Primary Sites / Secondary Sites” 
** Does not include equipment reduction savings 
OTC = One Time Cost 
MRC = Monthly Reoccurring Costs 
TCO = Total Cost of Owners, total cost over the term. 

 
The Township’s current site connectivity is limited to Virtual Private Networks across cable modem.  
These cable modems have very limited connectivity speed and as highly susceptible to DDoS attacks.  
The site are generally limited to a connection speed of 10Mbps. 
 
This project is intended to resolve many of the bandwidth challenges we currently have. 
 
The Township will see other cost savings where this service replaces existing equipment and service.  I 
estimate this cost saving at $10,000 per year. 
 
I respectfully request the Township Board accept the proposal of Comcast for the installation of 
Ethernet Network Service between 9 Township locations budgeted in account 101.266.000.857.100 with 
a 60 month contract and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign necessary 
agreements upon legal counsel review. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



































































 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 
 

 
To:   Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Accept the proposal of ACD for the installation of a 1Gbps Internet Connection to 
service the Township Civic Center at a cost of $699.95 with a 60 month 
agreement and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign 
necessary agreements upon legal counsel review. 

 

Date:   2019-Mar-20 
 

 
On the February 19th Township Board of Trustees meeting the Township Board authorized 
Computer Support to seek proposals for the replacement of the Civic Centers current primary 
internet service connection 
  
The bid was posted on MITN and the Township received proposals from five service providers 
as listed below. 

Service Provider Term Connection Speed Monthly Cost 

ACD 60 1Gbps $699.95 

ACD 60 0.5Gbps $549.90 

Amerinet 60 1Gbps $1,445.00 

Amerinet 60 0.5Gbps $1,175.00 

Comcast 60 1Gbps $1,475.00 

Comcast 60 0.5Gbps $1,010.00 

Granite Tellcom LLC 120 1Gbps $1,600 

Granite Tellcom LLC 96 0.5Gbps $1,480 

Makannah Group 60 1Gbps $1,700 

Makannah Group 60 0.5Gbps $1,400 

 
The Township is currently paying $1,239 per month for a connection speed of 0.050Gbps.  The 
current service agreement will expire in July. 
 
I respectfully request the Township Board Accept the proposal of ACD for the installation of a 
1Gbps Internet Connection to service the Township Civic Center at a cost of $699.95 with a 60 
month contract and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign necessary 
agreements upon legal counsel review. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



























 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 
 

 
To:   Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Accept the low bid proposal from Next International for the purchase of server 
hardware budgeted in account 101.266.000.977.000 at a cost of $61,600. 

 

Date:   2019-Mar-20 
 

 
On the February 19th Township Board of Trustees meeting the Township Board authorized 
Computer Support to seek proposals for the purchase of four new computing servers. 
  
The bid was posted on MITN and the Township receive three proposals as listed below. 

Vendor Brand Cost 

Access Interactive Dell $111,137.61 

HyperTech HPE $130,095.89 

Next International SuperMicro $61,600* 
*specs where improved from the submitted bid 

 
I respectfully request the Township Board accept the lowest cost proposal from Next 
International for the purchase of server hardware with a cost of $61,600 budgeted in account 
101.266.000.977.000. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 















 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 
 

 
To:   Ypsilanti Township Board of Trustees 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Accept the proposal of Granite Telecommunications POTs service and authorize 
the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign necessary agreements upon 
legal counsel review. 

 

Date:   2019-Mar-20 
 

 
On the February 19th Township Board of Trustees meeting the Township Board authorized 
Computer Support to seek proposals for the replacement of Plain Old Telephone Servers (POTs) 
lines used for Fire Department back phones and faxing. 
  
The bid was posted on MITN and the Township receive one proposal. 
 
The sole bid was received from Granite Telecommunications Inc for an estimated cost of $281 
per month with a 12 month service agreement.  This cost is lower than the current $430 per 
month the Township is currently paying. 
 
I respectfully request the Township Board accept the proposal of Granite Telecommunications 
POTs service and authorize the Township Supervisor and Township Clerk to sign necessary 
agreements upon legal counsel review. 
 
Thank you for your consideration, 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 



































 

Page 1 of 1 
 

CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF YPSILANTI 
 

INFORMATION SERVICES 
 

Computer Support  Web Content Management  Communications Services 
 

 
 

 
To:   Township Board 
 

From:   Travis McDugald, IS Manager 
 

Re:  Request to authorize Township IT to organize a one day “Cash And Carry” event 
to dispose of retired and obsolete IT assets, and allow IT to dispose of any unsold 
items through responsible recycling methods. 

 

Date:   2019-Mar-22 
 
As equipment is replaced, breaks, or becomes obsolete it is currently held in storage until it can 
be properly disposed of. The IT storage area is starting to fill and could using a clean out. 
 
Township IT is looking to hold a one day, four hour event to sell any equipment which may have 
value to others.  Any equipment not sold through this event will need to be disposed of. 
 
Equipment where Township IT cannot ensure security of Township data will be physically 
destroyed and properly recycled, it will not be sold through this event.  Essentially, equipment 
would not be sold with hard drives or other storage media. 
 
Equipment would be sold as-is, no returns, no refunds, and cash only.  Purchasers must take the 
equipment with them at the time of purchase. 
 
To give time to prepare for the sale, a date is currently unset, an estimated time range would 
be late April or beginning of May.  It would be held on a Saturday at the Civic Center. 
 
I respectfully request to authorize Township IT to organize a one day “Cash And Carry” event to 
dispose of retired and obsolete IT assets, and allow IT to dispose of any unsold items through 
responsible recycling methods. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 
 
Travis McDugald 
IS Manager, Charter Township of Ypsilanti 
 
 



  

 
Charter Township of Ypsilanti 

Hydro Station

 
 
MEMORANDUM 

 
7200 S. Huron River Drive 

Ypsilanti, MI 48197 
Phone:  (734) 544.3690 

Fax:  (734) 544.3626 
 

www.ytown.org 

TO: Board of Trustees 
 

FROM: Michael Saranen, Hydro Operations  

DATE: March 22, 2019 

      RE: Request to forgo formal bid process to 
seek prices for new pickup for 
department use 

 
I am asking to Board authorize me to gather prices for a new pick-up 
truck for department use. 
 
The quotes and funding will be brought back to the Board for 
consideration at the next Board meeting. 
 
Quotes will be from MiDeal vendors and local dealers. 
 
Please place this item on the next available Board Meeting agenda 
under Authorization and Bids.     
    

Truck Specification (minimum)  

 

½ ton 4x4 

6.5 or 7 ft. box 

White exterior 

Vinyl seat and flooring 

Power package (lock, doors, cruise) 

Blue tooth 

A/C 

Back up camera 

Spray on bed liner 

Hitch 

Air Bags 

A/M F/M radio 

 

Supervisor 
BRENDA L. STUMBO 

Clerk 
KAREN LOVEJOY ROE 

Treasurer 
LARRY J. DOE 

Trustees 
STAN ELDRIDGE 
HEATHER ROE 
MONICA ROSS-

WILLIAMS JIMMIE 
WILSON, JR. 

http://www.ytown.org/


 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 

 


	April 2, 2019
	Work Session Agenda
	Attendance Policy
	Review Agenda
	Other Discussion

	Regular Meeting Agenda
	Lincoln Basketball Proclamation
	Public Hearings
	Res. 2019-14, SAD Lights for Lakewood/Majestic Lakes
	Res. 2019-15, SAD Cameras for Lakewood/Majestic Lakes
	Res. 2019-16, SAD Lights for Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds
	Res. 2019-17, SAD Cameras for Ponds at Lakewood and Majestic Ponds
	Res. 2019-18, SAD Lights for Redwood/Nautica Point Apts.
	Res. 2019-19, SAD Cameras for Redwood/Nautica Points Apts.

	Public Comments
	Consent Agenda
	March 5, 2019 Work Session Minutes
	March 19, 2019 Work Session Minutes
	March 19, 2019 Regular Meeting
	Statements and Checks April 2, 2019

	Attorney Report
	Old Business
	2nd Reading Res. 2019-07, Proposed Ord. 2019-485, Fireworks
	1st Reading Proposed Ord. 2019-484, Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments

	New Business
	1st Reading Res. 2019-20, Proposed Ord. 2019-484, Prohibiting Recreational Marijuana Establishments
	Appointmet to AAATA Board
	Res. 2019-08, Fee Schedule
	Res. 2019-13, Professional Service Fees
	Request to Approve Contract with WCRC for Speed Humps on Edison
	Budget Amendment #6

	Authorizations and Bids
	Request to Approve Low Quotes for Park Equipment
	Request to Accept Proposals
	Request to Accept Proposal for Ethernet Service at 9 Twp. Locations
	Request to Accept Proposal for Civic Center Internet
	Request to Accept Proposal for Server Hardware
	Request to Accept Proposal for Analog Phone Service
	Request to Dispose of IT Equipment
	Request to Seek Bids for Truck to be Used at Hydro Station 

	Other Business



